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How to use this
book?

* Learn By Doing: This book like any other book is designed in
a Hands-on Manner. You learn the most when you actually do
something along rather than just reading/listening about it
This book has practical templates and a detailed case study.
Make sure you practice along to get the maximum value out
of this book Practice, practice, and practice. That is the key!

* QR Codes and Explainer Videos: At Zebral earn we like to go the
extra mile. For each topic, you have an Explainer Video as a OR code.
You can use any QR code scanner to scan these and access them.
You do not need to go through each Explainer Video. It is already
covered in the text. But, wherever you face difficulty understanding
the topic, scan the QR code next to the topic and you have your
Explainer.

LET'S GET STARTED WITH OUR LEARNING. IT IS GOING TO BE AN
AMAZING LEARNING EXPERIENCE!
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Hey there!

We're glad you have taken a step towards building your career in finance and decided
to get better at analyzing and valuing companies. Not only will we teach you how to
make and present a financial model, but we'll also make one along the way since we
believe that learning something is best done by doing it. Let's dive right in!

Let's take a look at what we would be learning:

« All about modelling: We'll first learn what financial modelling is, what purpose it
serves and who uses it

» Building business understanding: In financial modelling, you'll be forecasting a
real business and its numbers. So, before preparing any financial model, we must
have an understanding of the business and the industry in which it operates.

« Getting the data right: We'll leam how to encode data from annual/quarterly
reports into an Excel sheet and make it analyst friendly before using it

» Forecasting: We'll learn how to reflect available information into our assumptions,
which will help us forecast the value of a business in different scenarios.

» Valuations: Finally, we will leam about the different ways you can use to value a
business. We'll also help you choose which technigue to use at what times.

Thesejargons may seem intimidating to you. Butdon't worry, they are all fundamental
concepts that you are going to leam with ease throughout this bock. In the end, you'll
be able 1o build a complete financial model from scratch! Are you excited?

Modeling | Introduction
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what is a Financial
Model? o

Welcome to the first module of the Financial Modelling Book! Let's start with knowing what a
financial model is in the first place.

Financial modelling is a very detailed representation of a company’s finances in the past, present
and use of that to assumptions and forecast the future finances. This can then be used to take
multiple decisions.

- e e e e R e e R R R e R e e R e R e R R

It essentially involves analyzing the past and current conditions
to make an educated guess for the future. |t is a tool used for
decision-making by individuals, companies, NGOs, govemment,
or any other party.

R

e e e I R

In our book, we would be learning financial modelling from the
perspective of valuing listed companies and their shares. We
make certain assumptions while building financial models, and &
such assumptions are at the heart of the whole exercise. The
aim should always be to make assumptions that are as close to
reality as possible. The better the assumptions, the better the

quality of decisions taken based on the model.

e
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A detailed definition of the Financial Model would be:

“Financial Model is anelaborate spreadsheet (Microsoft Excel or Google
Sheets) that explains the business’s past performance and helps forecast the
future performance”

The process of creating a detailed Financial Model with realistic assumptions

is called Financial Mudelling. When we say a detailed financial model,
we include everything - cost, revenue, users, assets, debt and so much more. We will
understand all of this throughout the book.



Role of Financial Model

-----------------------------------------------------------------

1. Detailed Financial Breakdown 3. Forecast Future
[as detaled as possibe] Performance

2. Explains Past

Performance
: = R Different cost drivers
Trends inrevenuein .....< ;% ... in the company and
past years its past trends
Cashflow management Types of assets in the
in the company company

Things to keep in mind!

Past data cannot
alwaus be used to
predict the future as
nature of business
keePs on chanﬂi ;
instead of being perkect
Wwe want to be as close
to rEafrhj 35 possible,

Even ik business
does not Charﬂ'?-
unkorseen events ke
COWD 49 can make
Gnancial models
icrelevant,
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An ideal financial model

A good financial model should possess the following characteristics:

» It should be a detailed spreadsheet. 'Detailed’
here means that it should identify the key financial
iterns and should identify and track the factors
that affect these. It should break down line items
to understand each of therm well.
it should explain the past performance of a
business. We'll learn about the different methods
you can use to achieve this (eg: financial ratios)

Forecasts for business performance should be
based on realistic assumptions.
You should at least have a sense of direction the
business will move in while building a financial
maodel, forecasts may or may not be accurate.

for examele, You are Pro\'f.cﬁnﬂ sales for indian retail c.omf::antj D-Hart.

Assume that the sales for the previous 3 years are 20,800 crores, ¥24,000 crores, and 30,000

crores (hypothetical numbers). A good model for using this information may look like this:

lTotaI Sales

Year Fy2020 FY2021 FY2022 FY2023E | FY2024E
Sales from Stores 15,000 16,000 20,500 26,000 30,000
Sales from Website 5800 8,000 9,500 10,000 13,200
Total Sales 20,800 24,000 30,000 36,000 43,200
YoY Growth
Sales from Stores 6.67% 28.13% 26.85% 28.13%
Sales from Website 37.93% 18.75% 526% 32%
15.38% 25.00% 20.00% 20.00%

* it s detaied, e, has a breakdown of where

thoze revenues came from.
* We can even break it down further based on the
purpose of mc}emnﬁ. Tor €. saks from stores

can be broken down reﬂ'»on wise,

* It explaine past performance, Le. YO growth.
» Forecasts are based on histerical average 5mw+'h
and the ccmf;an:j'a expansion plans, We wil karn

the different ways to forecast 30'(\5 ahe ad,




It is always a good practice to evaluate your financial model after the real numbers are cut and
make changes to your model so that you can take decisions accordingly. We will discuss how
does a model evolve overtime further in the book.

Year Forecasted Sales Actual Sales

\3 Compar'irB forecasted with actual numbers
wil gve You an idea of how Sood and close to
redlity your assumptions were. with time, as
we keee on makir\ﬂ chanjea, we wil see how W
evolves,

Let's now look at a financial model and its components.

What does a financial model look like?

Before we go ahead, it would be good to glance through a financial model. You must recollect that
afinancial model is a representation of a company's past; using which you can make an educated
guess for its future. Though we will look at each of its components in detail throughout the book,
here is an overview of different segments it has. Also this is a standard model for company
evaluation but models keep on changing based on the purpose of financial modelling. The idea
is, at the end, you should be comfortable with Financial Models in general and be able to adapt to
whatever model you are working on.

Now, let's have a look at one!

| Mogelling | introduction
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The sheet presented earlier is that of ratios. Financial ratios are nothing but multiples or numbers
in percentage terms that aim to show a relationship between different line items present in the
financial statements. Ratios can be used to calculate relationships from the past to forecast the
future. There are several types of ratios, and each of them aims to reveal something about the
performance of the business. There are some commeoen ratios used by analysts widely:

* Current Rato

. T * Quick Ratio
........... Liquidity  Absolute Uquidity Ratio
Ratio * Cash Ratio
. R Aase. ‘|‘ T
Turnover et soete
Ratio . Receivable ! “"‘*
Turnovar Ratio Capital Ratio
. Capital Turmover * Cash Conversion
vato Cycle

. Eal'ﬂ'il'a Har&'n

* Return on ime streent
* Return on Eq‘ulﬂ'!j

. Eam'iras Par share

Operating
Profitability Ratios

+ Financial LEvEFaﬁE
« Total LE.M'EFBSE

Business
Risk Ratios

* Debt quwj Ratio
* interest Cowver watio
* Debt Service Cmeraaﬁ Ratio

* Fixed Pezet Ratio

* Ratio to Curent Pasets
fo Fixed Aszets

- 'T-”rq;riﬁ’r&r}j Ratio

Stability
Ratios

* Fixed Interest Cover

Coverage
* Fixed Dividend Cover

Financial Ratios

- Capacity Ratie
» Pctivity Rat
- E{ﬂﬁgﬁmﬂ Fatio

Control
Ratios

[
E
........... (o
[
[
[
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You can also add industry-specific metrics to represent the performance of the company.

o & A2

® & 8 e &

Telecom Company Telecom Subscribers

1|1i||1;1|m||}

Use metrics like average revenue per subscriber
to find out how much revenue is Jio able to churn
out from each subscriber on an average.
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We can also create something called Comparables and Comparables-Consensus. \We can also
create customized sheets as well, where we cantalk about other things like KPI (Key Performance

Indicators).

Tor ex Key indicators for E’.V&Maﬂﬂﬂ a hotel company would be
« Mo of rooms
« Revenue jeneraﬂad per room
" Occupancy rate

Comparables are used 1o conduct Relative Valuation. We will understand this later in the book.

In INR Lacs unless otherwise stated
Updated as on

[DATE]

Company 3
Company 3

Company 4

Company &

Company ¥
Company &
Company 9

Company 10

Muaan

Median

e

#

All else being constant,
model should reflect

but it can be tweaked

andtailor-made according to your requirements. A mode|

made for credit analysis and one made for equity research
will have different components and characteristics.

your financial

You will see different models for different purposes and different models for sarme purpose but in
different companies. Before we get started with analyzing companies and modelling them, let's

get ourselves aware of who uses these financial models and what purpose they serve.
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Explainer Videa

Banks and
Other Lenders

Project Finance, Credit
Appraisal, Due Diligence

Private Equity/
Venture Capital

Investment Decisions,
Performance Tracking,
Valuations

Listed Equity
Investors

Investment Decisions,
Valuations, Investor

Relations
Credit Rating
___________________________________ Credit Rating, Credit
Outlook, Short Term and
Long term outlook
Entrepreneurs

Fundraise, Operations,
Performance Tracking,
Valuations

Business
owners

Fundraise, Operations,
Performance Tracking,
Valuations
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Project Finance

Banks use financial models for a variety of reasons. One such important reason is lending. A
financial model is created to decide how much credit should be given to an entity and what
should be the ideal interest rate. They create different financial models for different sets of
projects. They also create multiple models for different scenarios. For example,

to raize
m funds b for .
REliance I L'l (L

Telecom Project

rl HDFC BANK lllllﬁrﬁﬁﬁ?’mm’
L

Detailed Financial
Model Forecasting

They would estimate revenues, costs, and other details of the company based on the
management's commentary and proposed plan. If HDFC Bank concludes that Reliance would be
able to repay its debt on time and without difficulty, it would go ahead and lend money to Reliance
at an interest rate that justifies the risk that the bank is taking.

| Mogelling | introduction
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Credit Appraisal

A model can also be made for credit appraisal, which is the process of determining the economic
viability and creditworthiness of a borrower. Such a borrower can be a small business or even an
individual. Such a model can be made through the data available in the loan application.

creates = »
fit i
|h'5_ =
Detailed
CDI'I.'II?BI'IY/ Financial Model
Individual

to check credit
worthiness

The creation of Banking Products s not an easy task.

One needs to closely observe various sets of people,

different factors at play, risks that may arise and run “ 4B

multiple scenario analysis to develop a good banking >
. \

product that is profitable as well as not too risky for the
bank.

This can only be done with a very detailed and future
forecasting, which is essentially done with the help of
financial modelling.



Due Diligence

Due Diligence technically means verification. Businesses at times have to submit their
financials or key numbers for purpose of credit evaluation or even to raise external funds.
So, these have to be checked or verified by banks or investors. This can be done by the bank
themselves or third parties. To conduct such due diligence as well financial models are
created. Similarly, a lot of banking products warrant the use of a financial model to check its
viability.

For instance: When a company wants a loan, for say Rs 5 crores, the bank employs a third
party or sometimes an internal team member to perform a background verification of the
borrower.

The bank will appoint a Submit all the required Application for a loan
third party or an internal documents along with to any bank or lending
team member to perform the application. institutions.
background verification.

The due diligence team A due diligence The loan amount will
will utilise a financial report is issued. be sanctioned with the

model to conduct their tenure, and the interest
verification process. rate based on the due

diligence report.

%
]
The bank enquires and checks the accuracy of the E
information provided by the company or an individual |
such as Past Sales figures, Profits, and other performance E
indicators. They ensure that the bank is not misled to lend !
money based on wrong data. E

[
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private Equity/
\._@"‘ / Venture Capital

""'li-—d-"'

ivest n

Private Equity/ Start Up/ Early
Venture Captial Stage Companies
(}‘% e.o.s | Investment
)“&G Decisions
3 3 W PTTTITTTR

J Bl A " Track
i) T Performance
Financial Model F———

k\ Valuation

it irvohes J?or&cas’rlf\j revenues, erofits,
economic cimate, valuations, and other such
necessany information that wil hele make an
investrment decision. Meediess to say fnancial
modelﬁnﬂ 15 a must-have skil it \jou're ‘rhink'mﬂ
of getting into the erivate equity space,
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| Modelling | Introduction

Probably the most widely used area of financial modelling is equity research. Financial modelling
serves the same purpose for listed Equity investors as it did for private equity investors, except
the fact that these people invest in listed stocks/equities.

Buy & Sell Listed Equity/Stocks
Side Analyst
]
Q
1 q?n?,éa = ,' R The model concludes whether a
Y KL MLl share is currently overvalued or
D jseiar undervated, based on which an

investment decision can be taken,

» Here, publicly available information from the past and present is used to forecast a company's
future.
+ Different valuation methods are used to arrive at a valuation for a share of the company.

aw

For example,

TATA ELXSI
< 1,000 | <12
value of the share accord‘mﬂ value of the share at
| to the fnancial model current market price [

Hence, we conclude that the share is overvalued and it
might not be wise to buy it.
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f ﬂ ‘, Credit Rating
R / Agencies

"‘h—:d"

Credit rating agencies such as CRISIL & ICRA, assign ratings to companies based on
their credit worthiness. For instance, if Reliance is issuing debt in the open market,
CRISIL would rate reliance on their likeliness to repay their debt.

A credit rating agency assigns a credit rating, based on a debtor's ability to pay back debt
determind by making timely principal and interest payments, and its likelihood of default.
Similar to a bank's objective such an agency prepares financial models to determine a
company's credit worthiness and financial viability. Models here also involve scenario
analysis, where the recovery of principal and interest is estimated based on a variety of
scenarios. Based on such analysis, a rating is given to the company.

CRISIL conducts the entire analysis and would give ratings
like AAA, AAA+ or AA, BBB, etc.

Company X Company Y
A High CRISIL Rating WV Low CRISIL Rating
WV Low Interest A High Interest

A higher rating from CRISIL would mean that the companies get loans at
a lower interest from any financial institution. Similarly, a company that
is likely to default would receive a lower rating and would need to pay a
higher rate of interest for any line of credit.

They also use financial modelling to determine how a company is likely to perform in the
short term and long term, given its past operations and economic environment. Such
short-term and long-term outlook helps a rating agency arrive at a rating that reflects the
true creditworthiness of a company.
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Valuations

Operations Performance
Tracking i

Fundraising

Operations

Tracking
Performance

Valutions

business before taking any decision. They
::-fl.e: | 85k Tr_.--" models .:sf'l'..| ;:.r_-;fec’[ ons that reflect the entrepreneur's plan
moving forwar

|'|. &
A

Business owners often prepare models : for conducting

ning budgets ford T’rP rent ac es. They are used
hen taking decisions. They can also have targets that

ress of the business

operations and as
as a guiding light
help track the pr

trepreneurs can compare target values of a model like forecasted

profit marging and other operating metrics
to evaluate business performance Such a mr'--'ie'
performance of the company and whether it is on tra

cnirepreanedrs tnemseives can

modelling methods to amive at =

nelps them define valuations

So, these are the different ways how Financial Modelling can be used in different places.

al Modelling | Introduction
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Lets have a look at a
sample Financial Model,
one we will learn to use

going forward.

i Elg.:ﬁ@
O :.| [m] 2 .r;

Scan to download Scan to download
Financial Model Template Britannia's Financial Model

7/



Our
Approach

We just named a few profiles where
financial modelling is useful.

Although we will be learning modelling
from a valuation perspective, the process
ismore or lesssimilarforotherroles having
different agendas. It is a critical toolkit to
have for any finance professional.

P ittt
I"—————-——-————-—-————-.——-————————’

2



Financial
Model.

7



Financial Modelling | Bas

Introduction

Now that you knaw what a financial medel is and why itis important, let’'s undersiand
the basics of building one. But before that, we have to get into the right mindset to
build an accurate financial modsl.

We shall go through the key peints that should be kept in mind while making a
financial model We shall also look at the different types of mistakes beginners make.
This is what we shall be focusing on in this chapter Based on the above, we shall
understand in a detailed manner the night mindset while preparing a financial model
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Financial Modelling.
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Building models appears to be a technical process. You may think that it Fud] ‘-;!'-‘ 4
requires a lot of calculations and many people may advise you that the more [=]:n:1E

formulas you use, the better. Explainer Viceo

O N

A good financial Building the right While it's easy to get
model is rarely about mindset means realizing engrossed in predicting
formulas. It should one fundamental thing future numbers itis
instead, be an accurate - Thereis a business important to not lose
representation of what behind that model and sight of the real picture,
you think a company its not built out i.e., the real business.

locks like inside out. of thin air

It makes sense to understand the drivers of those numbers rather than
make believe the numbers or simply from the past numbers.

Real Business

If wetake alook atthe Balance Sheet, we can see that a lot of numbers
and line items are reported. When looking and working with these
numbers and financial statements for sometime, we often miss the
bigger picture that there is a real business behind it. This particulary
commeon when starting out.

We have to remember that the numbers are
not materialised but there are real people who
run these real businesses which the numbers
represent.

This mistake is a very common one and must
be avoided.
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Good unc:lErsi'énd'.

business and '.ndus’rr\j j \

Reasonable {inancial

as ;-‘_a.um{a't lons \/

Good Financial Hodel

D=Mart |, N Meta

Revenue %%% No. of O ﬁ Time spent

depends on stores Eer user

- I e per ’H“"ﬂ”“ User
' n % store ‘Ni i{d@ Base

Do you think it would be fair to use the exact same
method for both these companies in predicting their
future statements? No, right?

‘IHIIFIII

This tells us the importance of understanding a
company and its industry before getting started with
the modelling process.
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Now let us look at the Sales figures,

z O
: \_J
1
| i CC‘;"IF‘H"'F |||||||||’
ales
| ()
1
: .
: ;I.r.’ 33X
: L -
1
v C [ | O
' oy
1 U | >
: ()] i S5O i L
1 J/ ."'.\, I'\H.‘_ ._:
: s ’ O I:]
] .
1 l ’ o Should increase at
i 1X a similar pace.
]

If a company's sales have increased by 5 times, then the cost of producing the goods
would have changed on similar lines. Unless you have very specific reasons, for example,
the company is a tech or a media company, the cost-revenue relation should hold true.
So, such things need to be checked and we need to understand ifits economically correct
or not.

Here is a list of things you can do to ensure that you understand the business
to build a financial model:

» Spend some time researching the industry. Get a grip on the basic industry situation,
prices, average margins, etc.

* Understand the business model of the company.

= Compare the numbers of the company under consideration with its peers.

+ Make your assumptions about the future of the business only after you understand the
industry, business, and environment in which it operates.

» Always check your projected margins, asset turnovers, and other ratios with those of
peer companies. If they are far below or above average, then have very clear reasons
on why that difference exists.

To understand and evaluate the business, we
shall spend some time studying the business.
The context under which a financial model is
being created needs to be kept in mind. Only
then, a model will be created that is close to
reality and serves its purpose.
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2'2 Explainer Vides

principles
not
rules.

Before preparing a detailed financial model, one

has to invest time in it to understand and the

company and the industry. Basis this, they will

find that different industries require different

approaches to create a model and generate rules
do not apply anywhere.

You will come across many rules in this reading

that would help you build an ideal framework

for your model. But as much as they are helpful,

beware of them. They are just guidelines and are
not to be treated as hard and fast rules.

You should take the liberty of deviating from

such rules to create a model that suits the

industry and company. Fundamentally, the logic

should be correct, the method can be adapted
accordingly.

Rules have to be used in the
right context.
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Research and preliminary analysis of an enterprise will help you choose which rules are relevant.
Some of how you can analyze the business are:

« Analyzing the company's profitability, efficiency, liquidity, solvency and performance
using appropriate ratios.

* Understanding the competitive forces of the industry the company operates in.

» Talking to customers, suppliers, investors, creditors and other stakeholders of the
company.

* Understand the macroeconomic factors that govern its performance.

We will go through these in detail in a further chapter.

: i
] ]
i :
1 ]
] I
: '
] ]
; '
] H H [}
E Realistic Creative E
: Manner Manner !
W i
i Truing to estimate the The goal is not to be creative i
- direction of the moverment of with numbers, but inastead !
i a comf:aﬂﬁ'a financials iook'an be as realistic as possible. i
¢ at the facts and reflecting Fancy models wont get you :
E them in the cumbers angu ere, Fnancial models E
[ should not be a work of fiction. 1

A realistic representation of the ground reality is more important than a fictional and creative
depiction. Although the latter may look better it can lead to poordong term decisions. So, we
should not follow any HARD and FAST RULES. There is no correct way when creating a financial
model Instead know the rules and make changes to it so that it represents the reality as closely
as possible.

“Don’t be exactly wrong,
roughly correct.”
- [:imn\jmouz

Using the rules as a guide to understand the rationale of concepts will serve you better. But
take the liberty to make changes to it, for it to depict the reality as closely as possible.



Be Realistic. neither

conservative nor aggressive.

Building financial models is all about —\

b
-

i "
i Discounting the Future Cash "
i Flows to cdkulate ‘estimated” E
' intrinzsic vae of the COMEANY. .. ;
Ve :
1 ]
i ;
i , - - -. - ;
! 0 1 2 3 4 5 :
1 ]
1 ]
i 100 150 80 10 160
: E
: Estimating Future Cashflows :
1 1
1 *We willleam this in the 4" chapter :

You don't know what will happen in the future with certainty, so you make some assumptions.

For example, if you assume that consumer spending on cars is going to improve inthe upcoming
years, you will project growing revenues for a car company. But if your assumptions don't turn out
to be true, that is if you find out that consumer spending is not growing in line with what you had
anticipated, your projected numbers tum out to be grossly wrong.

Consumer Sf;endhj

| Modelling |

E
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. The assumgptions of a fnancial model is where most of the |
| expertise lies and it goes without saying that experienced
analysts, in general, have more accurate assumptione. |

Alot of times analysts are tempted to have a predetermined value that they feel is fair And then
they end up reverse-engineering the assumptions of the model. At other times, they are tco,
aggressive or too conservative with their assumptions.
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Aggressive Approach
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Company A % 5,00,00,000

4

7 Rssumes - '
‘__,,J’ » The n:omf:-antj'a sales and

TS Pro@'ﬁrss wil ncrease raP'tdltj.
o« The company wil repay lidbiities.
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This model truly does not reflect the assumptions of
analysts. It is influenced and too aggressive.
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If you have an overly optimistic opinion about the company
you are modelling, you would tend to have assumptions that
increase the company’s projected value, like above average
growth in its revenues and fewer liabilities.

This is known as being aggressive.

On the other hand, if you have an unfavorable or questionable opinion about the company, you
would tend to build assumptions that decrease the company's projected value. This may be

reflected in the model as having below average growth in its revenues and increase in liabilities
overtime. This is known as having a conservative approach. A conservative approach can be

noticed in the following example:
/-) Assets

-y . i
5.00.00.000

k) Labiities
Company A < 5,00,00,000

Assumes -

. Comf;anﬁ'a sales and profits wil
ﬂro'.u at a slow pace.

« The company will take on
additional ﬁa't:'l'ﬂ'\j.

o

Analyst1

‘% iy > Foset

=

Makes low growth assumptions due to < 10,00,
caution.

T W g Wy

\é Liabiites
% 6,00,00,000

Estimating a value which is lower than the actual expected
number, just like this one, is known to follow a conservative
approach.
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Estimating future value of a company

Analysts often get too aggressive in assumptions when they are biased towards the company
or have a pre-determined value that they want to reverse engineer. On the other end, they might
get too conservative for the sake of caution. Neither of them is the right approach. A financial
model should be as close to our realistic assumptions as possible. Neither aggressive due to
our bias, nor conservatice due to our caution, but realistic.

A good model is one that does not reflect your first opinion, but
one that reflects reality as accurately as possible.

L X
B
b

Aggressive Conservative
Assumptions Assumptions

The more information you have, the more realistic your
assumptions are.



everything.

Research is like a rabbit hole. You will never be able to find out each and
everything about a company. At times, due to lack of data & other times,
just due to lack of time.

- g o e T e B e e e e $ -
N'here is always some Information asymmetry between the

= Tl -t | —~4= k= | = =
managers and stakeholders.

The earlier you accept
this, the better.

* Butthereis some good news here. You can access
all the publicly available information, which is
exactly the same information others have access
to as well. So it's a level playing field.

*  Yourjob as an analyst is to make the best decision
with whatever information you can avalil. It is here
that your thought process and analytical skills are
put to the test.

All the below points have to be kept in mind as well while
developing a2 Financial Model:

* Finance is all about making the best possible decisions
with whatever information is available.

* Dynamic Process - Keep making changes as and when
new information is available.

*  For Financial Model as well, only limited information will
be available.

*  You will often be incorrect. Be okay with that. Direction
is more important. Be roughly correct and then keep on
making changes as facts become more clean.
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company can reveal a ot of information outside
ite €inancial statements.

For example you are modelling a fast growing cab service company like OLA Cabs.

Assuming that you are in the pre Covid era, there was no chance you could have predicted a
pandemic like Covid where transport ceased to exist for a long time. You would have predicted

growing business for it in the subsequent years, only to be proved wrong later. You can see the
difference in the following timelines:

Modeled Revenues for Ola Cabs before Pandemic
(in billion T)

2018 2019 2020 2021
18.48 25.44 525 40.5

Modeled Revenues for Ola Cabs after the news of COVID 19
(in billion )

2018 2019 2020 2021
18.48 25.44 8.4 12

Your aim when preparong models must be to reflect all publicly available information you can
lay your hands on. Rerember that financial modelling is a dynamic process, and you can tweak

your assumptions to reflect the information you have as of today that you keep on receiving after
creating the first model..



ﬁ Easier to model
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for 10 Uears
Product A 82
i ii.?-—
saosssss s —
« New Launch
- Unrelated to Product A
Product B :
Company X rocu 1 - Mew infrastructure
Just launched; Results are sREW peopie

unpredictable. Revenues, costs *MRw way of SEe oy

and Proﬁ’rs, cannot forecasted

make an

EEssssssssasssssad

educated guess

B Wl 5

Product B

[P ————

Company X we can start with assumetions Ioo'lc'ur?ﬂ at  Industry Peers

indus peers amd when we g2t more
inrformation, we can reflect this inkormation in
our model and imerove the accuracy of results,

In the end, understand that you are human, and regardless of how much you try, predicting the
future with certainty is impossible. Even the best in the business go wrong with their estimates.
Your aim is to estimate the direction correctly at least (growth or degrowth).

Khowledge box
information as.-armxekg occurs when substantial
information about a comPérﬁ s knoun ‘ntl its mawagars
but not its stakeholders (creditors, ivestors).
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Scenario Analysis

Ewr | i -
Expiainer video

Forecasting numbers perfectly is impossible, but estimating a range is guite achievable. There
is one practice that helps you do just that..Enter scenario analysis. Scenaro analysis, as the
name suggests, means establishing different possible scenarios for the future of a company and
forecasting outcomes for each. One can also estimate the probability of each scenario.

Standard scenarios most analysts work with are:

e

Base Case
Re#lel:ﬁrﬁ aueraje

economic conditions
and average
expectations.

Best Case Worst Case
reflecting a Re{ledhﬂ a
favorable scenario poor scenario
for 5ow+h with pessimistic
with optimistic or conaervative
assumetions. assumptions,

For example,

Scenario for a
Car Company

........ i NSO U SE—
1 ] [] ] i i
! WorstCase: : BaseCase | | Best Case |
E Consumer spending E E Consumer spending E E Consumer spending i
. deterioration - always same k9 improves '

Revenue Grows Revenue Grows Revenue Grows

4% 7% 10%



An even broader approach would be to estimate ranges instead of exact numbers.
Range for a
Car Company

Worst Case Base Case Best Case

Revenue Grows
3-5%

Revenue Grows
6-8%

Revenue Grows
9-11%

The advantages of scenaric analysis can be best explained with an example. Suppose you
are analyzing a pharmaceutical enterprise. You notice that there is heavy expenditure being
undertaken on research and development.

This means that there may b a new dru

be"“ﬂ dﬁve.lof:ed. But arent so sure
whether it would b2 a success,

Here is where scenaric analysis comes to the rescue. You can build the following scenarios:

/—> Revenue

__ ¥1,00,000
¥ 50,000

Cost

Before new
drugis
launched

..... csnseh

Newdrug
launch fails

i Revenue ¥ 1,00,000 \ Revenue ¥ 1,30,000 Revenue < 1,60,000
| Cost — 370,000 | | Cost — ¥ 70,000 i Cost — 70,000

_PROFIT T 30,000

You can see how different scenarios can |

imnpact the dn.a

“ /" New drug launch

does okay

_PROFIT X 60,000 _

New drug
launch succeeds

%.__l.PRDFIT =3 '3(:)1,1;1(11;1____,:E

comPanS‘e. Prcr? its in ditferent Luaas,?.
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Work with ranges

Working with a range can be very important in
certain situations!

. A range acts as a safety net and helps in
reducing errors because if the actual figures are
not 100% accurate, they might fall in this range.
However, we must understand the different
scenarios while working with a range and allow
for different cutcomes.

Range allows for uncertainity within the model
itself.

It always a Dynamic Exercise

Creating a financial model is a dynamic
exercise. We start with limited
information and as time passes and
more information appears, the models
1 need to be improved based on the
assumptions.

Now that we have understood certain things that we
need to keep in mind while creating a model, lets
move to the next chapter and start with the basics of
financial models and the terms related to it.
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Introduction

With a basic mindset in place, let's get ourselves equipped with concepts and
terms that are required for financial modelling.

Some essential terms to get you started

There are some terms that will help you understand financial models well. Actually,
these terms are what models are made up of in the first place Being aware of
them and their meaning will help you in understanding the financial information of
a business rather easily Needless to say, most analysts use these terms on a day
to day basis.

We will leam about

- Financial Statements and its types

-« Time Yalue of Money

= Free Cash Flow

= Weighted Average Cost of Capital

- Cost of Equity

-+ Discounted Cash Flow

- Types of Valuation Methods - Relative Valuation and Absolute Valuation

If you are familiar with any topic, you can safely skip it

o
g
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To learn about a company in and out (and of course to model it), the first thing you must
analyse is its financial statements. In the literal sense, financial statements are written
records that convey the operations and financial transactions of a business. They aim
1o show the financial performance of a company during a given period. This information
includes everything from how much did the company sell, how much cost did it incur,
size of loans it has taken/given and even describes the assets that it holds

Income Statement

List of all the sales and expenses incurred by
the company during the year resulting in net
profit or loss.

Balance Sheet

List of all that the company owns [assets]
and owes [liabilities] at a given point of time.

Cash Inflows

List of Cash Inflows and Outflows from the
company during the year.

There are 2 types of financial statements - standalone and consolidated.
If a company has multiple businesses under it (called subsidianes),
then the standalone statements reveal the performance of the parent
company. To know how all the subsidiaries and the parent company
have performed, one can lock at its consolidated statements. |t reports
its performance as a consolidated, single entity. We will always use
consclidated financial statements for our analysis unless specifically
mentioned to use standalone.

- o  E  Em E E e
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yYou can find financial statements of listed companies on multiclewehsites, buthers are alist of the
most ’“'Cﬂ.ﬂ ones| "=I’ ndian listed companies).
0“55 erTre—————rT— PLLLTEE= ]
& . . & o
: - ]
screenen o
Gl bl L e b i
e sy
e o R~ - -
.

Screenr NSE Website

(https:/inwww.screener.in/) (https:/Avww.nseindia.comy)

[ —— i ————

BSE Website

(https:/fiwww. bseindia.comy/)

e T Al I WY 2 L S L . - - I NSO [P NN 1 e DS 4
Financial staterments Tor unlisted and prvate companies can be tound at the Ministry of Corporate
A

& misiTmy o
CORPORATE Iaroarsss BsITs SETHERGA G 10N o i
AFTAIRD o

®=_ FIT = | %o

S22 INDIA ol

Ministry of Corporate Affairs Website
https./\www.meca.gov.in/content/mea/global/en/home. html

\Make sure to get financial data dirsctly

obtaining themn from the company w
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Let us look at the income statement of a listed company as seen in their Annual Reports. We
can find the total income for the current year and the previous year. We can aso read the notes
along with the given income sheet available to us in the annual report.

F ~
] ]
] ]
] ]
] "Hlm" Coaporais Obsrsimy Shohiory Raporis Frraricia Stainmern i
1 BOCNEAT IMWER & TEPAT 1
] ]
] ]
] ]
] = ]
i Consolidated Statement of Profit & LOSS 1o the vear ended 315t Mareh, 2001 ;
[ ] it mn Lacal [ ]
] Hotes |
] IHCOME ]
1 Rewenus from aperations 21 407, 15154 azepazss. |
] Cther Incame 22 413 74 A8648 ]
I TOTAL REVENUE () 4,07 58558 3.20,318.04 1
] EXPENSES L]
! Cost of matenals cansumed 11 1,78,908 08 pentaszz |
. Purchuses of Stack iv-Trade . . . TAET32 meares |
I Cibangers in Iventores of Werk in Progress, Siock in Trade and Finshed Goceds b (2682 62 sagija 0
I Emplayeas beneffis axpenza 25 14,200.24 1apei7e !
' Financa casts 2 15,384 17 ziama |
' Degreciation and amortzalion expansa Fil 13,845 13 1apasgr 1
! Gther Expansss N o 56,261 37 71,837 56 :
: s TOTAL EXPENSES () 3,13,541.58 XTI TR
Profit{lossl bedfore share of assodates & joint veriures, excepbiona! fems and tax B, 053 .88 28,7 49
g TEELORT ReNIE A Of oo s L | WemEardtae 000000000 B cehean B T o i
At Shave of profitiless) of associates ond Joint \iantures. net of tax: 003 66 __EE0sa
I Proffifiloss] I:!nium ewcepbonal fems and tax 57 068 GE 28 HE 18 1
: Excoptanal fams {iefar nate - 31 — 102643 :
' Profit los2] bedore fax B7,058.606 2725867 1
Tax sugpenses
: Cusrent tax 17,578 54 45205 :
" Defarrad Tas 14,038 73 A BAATT 1
N Total tax expenses EINTEET 0,536.02 1
i Profitf{las) for the year B5,451,28 WIIES
i nsdve Income i
i A_{l) Wems that whl not be reclassified (o profit or loss M g
1 Ramessurements gansiiosses) on defned banefi plans 488 [1E69.28) 1
1 Shasa of athar comprateansive ncoma In assecabes and Jont Venbures : [
1 1 B EntEiA ot fo e classied nta prafit of loss 19.05 0z g
1 e b edating to ibems hat will not be reekiswlied lo profil o loss (34.0%) 5735 [
L — - (31.08) {11320 1
i Fair vahiz of fmancml assats {16:83) (B8 14) 1
Shase of ather comprehenshve ncoms In assocates and Jont Venbures
1 i . ]
1 %o the gatent to be classified into profk or foss ) ) HERLTZ _[TETDE) 1
1 e bk relaling la ilems that sl e reclagafied b preft o loss 198 23 13552 1
1 _ : FARDST ] ]
I Total Comprahensive Incams for the perod Comprizing ProfEiLoss) and Other B0 7R 1651077 i
1 Comprehensive ncome for the period [
] Profitiloss) atnbutable 1o: [ ]
e L] Equity halders of the parents £3,838.75 1667751 L]
D: ] Mon-contraling interests 161264 104614 (]
] B5,4061.28 e ]
{ 1 Cther Comprehensive Incame atinbutable ta; [ ]
[ ] Edpity holders of the parents 348505 (107738 1
1 i Morrcontraling interests (15.57) {3565
] 34050 {1112 88y ]
< ] Total Comprebhensve Income albributable to! : [ ]
u ] Equity halders of the parsnts E?.:.'gﬂﬁ‘ 1ENU1H ]
[41] ' Ny contraling Intarests 1,554 57 inioga 0
w 1 BE,0H0.7E 16,6177 L]
N ] Emmings per ecuily share [nammal value of thare 2 L]
: @ 710 (34 5t March, 20207 11l :
Banic 1B1AT 4733
N 1 '
Dlikstad 16147 AT.33
.\ Surnarary o sighificant acedunting polices 2 ‘.

(3]
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For example, lets take a look at a detailed note to accounts -

Note 21

21. Revenue from operations

Consolidated Notes to financial statements i ue jme e 242t M, 2021

From MNote 27, we see a
complete breakdown of

{* i Lacs

Revefue Inom oparatiaons

the revenue which will

Sale of preducts

Blectrcity
Traded Gocds
l'.t!lgc!s
Other dparaling fevenns
Scrap & Other saies

Marulactwing Goods and By-Products

38830717 explain everything in
Satsl e detail.
LRI M The revenue has been

Faaal SdE A

Revenue fnam operatians

e e completely broken down

[
I
I
1
1
1
I
i
3,05,503.65 :
1
I
1
I
1
!

_______________________________ + into different segments.

The income statement of a company, also known as the profit and loss statement, shows the
different revenue streams, expenditures and profits/losses of the business over a specified period

of time. It is one of th

e most important statements for analysts and stakehclders. Let's look at

some major line items:

Revenues or Sales

Also known as ‘top ling, revenues of a company represent the total goods
and services sold by the business during the year If a company sells 500
units of goods worth ¥ 1000 each, its total sales for the year is 7 5,00,000
(31000%500).

Cost of Goods Sold

This line item refers to the direct cost of producing the goods. If a company
buys an article for ¥ 600 and sells it for ¥ 1000, it's cost is ¥ 600. Costs can
change aver time depending on nature and scale of the business.

Gross Profit

The direct profit made by the company after incurring costs of making/
buying the goods is called the gross profit. Essentially, Gross Profit =
Revenues - Cost of Goods Sold. In our example, gross profit is ¥ 2,00,000
(5,00,000 - 3,00,000).

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

These are everyday expenses incurred to run the business smoothly. It can
include office expenses, rent, etc.

Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortization

Also known as EBITDA, this line item represents what is left with the
company after all its operating expenses have been taken care of. Interest
on loans taken and depreciation charged on assets are not taken into
consideration. Assuming that selling, general and administrative expenses
are ¥ 90,000; EBITDA equals ¥1,10,000 (2,00,000 - 90,000).

=
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Interest

Interest expense is the interest that a company would pay on the loans it
has taken. Only the interest part (not the principal) is recorded here. If a the
company has taken a loan of ¥ 10,00,000 at a 3% interest rate, it would pay
an interest expense of ¥ 30,000 (3% * 10,00,000). Companies not having
debt on their bocks would not have this line item.

Depreciation

Depreciation is basically the reduction in the value of an asset over time,
mostly attributable to wear and tear. It is a way in which a company can
distribute the cost of an asset over its life. If a company owns assets of ¥
11,00,000 and depreciation charge works out to be 5%, then a depreciation
expense of ¥ 55000 will be recorded on its statements.

Profit before Taxes (PBT)

A very popular line item 1o judge a company's profitability, profits before
taxes represent the profits made by the company before counting for tax.
Essentially, PBT = EBITDA - Interest - Depreciation. In our example, PBT =
¥1,10,000-330,000-¥55,000 = F25,000.

Tax

Quite intuitively, this represents the corporate taxes paid by the company
to the government. Assuming a 30% effective tax rate, the tax expense for
our company = 325,000 * 30% =3/7,500

Profit after Tax

Also known as 'net profit’ or 'bottom ling|, this line itermn tells us how much
profits a company has made over a period of time, after incurring all
expenses. In our example, Net Profit = PBT - Taxes = ¥24,000 - 7,500 =
316,500.

The different line items on the profit and loss statement in combination tell us how the company
is conducting its business.



Sheet

A detailed list of the assets, liabilities and equity forms the balance sheet of a company. Itis the
representation of the financial position of a company at a particular date.

Components of Balance Sheet

Short Term/Current Assets
(Cash, Short Term Investments, etc.)

-

Assets e e e
Long Term Assets

(Fixed Investments, Machinery like Plant
and Equipment, Land, etc.)

R R R Em EE R R R N R S R S RN RS N O RS N E E S Em s Em

F

i

i

H

H

i

1]
IOt e R s

R e

Short Term Liabilities
{Credit Lines and Loans from Suppliers,
Credit Card debts ,Trade Payables)

L e i s

-

Long Term Liabilities
(Bank Loans)

+ Shareholders’ Debt and Information.

» Deposits in Banks and other sources.

+ Equity from various owners and
Capital contributors.

Khowledge bos

Remember that the balance sheet always balances, that
ia the assets and liabiities side a.l-.uaﬁe. equal each other.
Thia atatement reveads to us the sources of funds for the

Cequ'rﬁj and liabiites) and its aﬁ:ﬁcaﬁm (assets).
it tells us about the companﬁ's Gnancial E.{*rianﬁl'h. It i& often
known as the ' backborne' of a CoMEAN,
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Here is a snapshot of the Balance Sheet of a listed
company.

A

~HIRA-

GODAWARI POWER AND ISPAT LIMITED
Consolidated Balance sheet a st 31 03 2001

Cepatals Ory ey day

Particulars

Mote Mo

ASSETS

Shabubtry Faporth

g af 210320

Finaniaal Shataments

Non -current asseis

{a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 1.51.984.81 21646195
{0 Capital work-In-progress 3 18.417.42 1374567
{c) Cther intanglble assels 4 0,203,256 1046898
1d) Investments in associstes and jeint ventures -] 37 3a6.88 11.157 84
{e] Financial assets Sl
- Invesimenis =] 401.54 1.188.87
ify Cther non-current assets 7 1. 428,67 1.80577
244,572,859 25483012
Current-assets sl el
48] Invenlories g S0367.48] 53,740,168
{b) Financial assets : e e
(i} Trade Receivables g 2752330 1767811,
(i) Cash and cash equivaienis 10 B55 48 22508
(in)Bank Balan ces oiher than cash and cash 10 5.162.03 267083
equivalents mentioned abeve
(IviOthet inancial assels 11 1.7TE3.58 1.783.58
(&) Current tax #sseds (net) 11.85 3251
id) Caher current assels 7 17.075.03 15.188.73
1,02, 782.73 83 320.11
Total Assels AT 35542 3.48,150.23
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(@) Equity share capital 124 341112 341112
(=) Olbver equity 128 20014800 1,34372 .52
Equity sttributable to awners of the Company 2,03,559.21 1,37,783.65
Mon-coniroliing interest 724218 12.471.78
Total equity #10,801.41 1.,50,255.40
Liahilitias
Han-cusrent [|abilfies
{#) Financial Lishiliies
- Bogrowings 13 Tr105582 1, 45448 53
- Cher non-currenl financial fabilities 14 265.44 206,68
{b) Provisions 15 1427 63 1,358 62
ie) Deferred Tax Liabillties (ned) 16 16.782.00 4 482 10
8581060 1,52,498.93
Currenl liabillties
{a) Financial Lizsbililes
(i} Borrowings 17 B.138:58 16.038.78
(i) Trade Payables 18
- _iotal outsianding dues of micro enfesprises and smaill enterprises” 8310 27 82
= lotal cutstanding dues of creditoss cther than micro enterprises and 18.533.83 17797 53
small enterprises o S
(imyOther Finencial Liabilities 19 9196524 10:857 18
{b) Cther current isbliMles 20, 97256 489344
it) Provisions 15 o8z 8125
{d] Current tax Bebilitizs inat) 2.867.28 :
A0.943.42 45,387 88
Total Eguity and Liabilities 3 AT 35542 3.48,150.23
Summary of skgnificant accounting policies i

*For educational purposes only

We must spend sufficient time making ourselves familiar with all these terms and components.
Going through multiple financial statements of different years of four to five companies can help

in getting familiar with the financial statements.



Let's look at the major line items:

Current Assets

Cash and other assets that are expected to be converted to cash within
1 year or less are classified as cumrent assets. Bank balances, accounts
receivables, prepaid expenses, inventory, etc. are some examples of current
assets. Current Assets are required as working capital in the business.

Non-current Assets

Non-current assets are those that are held by the company for more than
one year. They can be tangible assets like buildings, factories, plant and
equipment or intangible assets like goodwill and patents. Non-current
assets form the Fixed Assets required for functioning of the company.

Current Liabilities

The debts and obligations of a company, essentially the amounts that
are due to be paid 1o creditors within one year are referred to as current
liabilities. They are also known as shortterm debts. Accounts payable is an
example of current liabilities. Current liabilities also include expenses that
are pending or had not been paid when they were due, like cutstanding rent
or outstanding salaries.

Non-current Liabilities

Non-current liabilities are financial obligations that are not to be paid within
one year. This can include long term loans from banks, bonds payable,
debentures, etc. Non-current liabilities shows the debt capital raised by the
company to fulfil its capital requirements.

Shareholder's Equity

Equity on a balance sheet shows the amount that the owners of the
company have invested in their business. Shareholder's equity can either
be capital invested by shareholders or else what the company has retained
through earnings. Equity is the net assets left after paying all liabilities i.e.
Equity = Assets - Liabilities.
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Cash Flow
Statements

A Cash Flow Statement is on similar lines to an Income Statement. The only difference is that
we only consider the cash transactions in CFS. The cash flow statement is one that deserves
a lot of importance. It is a list of transactions of the business over the year on a cash basis, ie,
when cash is actually received or paid. For example, if the goods are bought on credit, they are
mentioned and accounted for in the Income Statement as sales but the sales won't reflect in
the Cash Flow Statement until the payment is received in cash.

Cash Flow Statement is a list of all cash inflow and outflow from the business.

Cash Flow Statement ro e yesr snded 318t March, 2071

{7 In Lecs
Cash Flow from operating activitics.
I—:.'qcrw L= .I;rmrnsn:r: at associabas & _-nm.l: varfures and f:'\r !MDS& '_I.i- : ..'HI..'F_".' .da
hori-cash adjussmant io reconole pralit before G bo ne cawn Flows
Dlapnss@lionmnrmodt zaton 1.3.3“15.15 13.688.81
Lossi prefit] on sale ol propesty, plant & equpment (53.80) [1:232)
Lasafprehit] on eake af nan curment et B2}
Prowmion hnrompl‘::fﬂu- bmrafite .f'ﬂlla )} 1:-‘1 ;‘i‘l
Irreestment wikien of 1.00
Provsioniillowances far credd lass on deblars Tarazr [3a7. 50
Finance costs 15, 334.17 2195841
|eleesst lincime (2479 [32&08;
ExCapbongd tars (1.028 AW
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES 1,24 01503 B1,174,64
Irsmmisajdecrease) in tade payabies 655616 2471 BT
Increaze/decrease) in other linancial |labithes 1,706.72 11240
|”-'FIIF\';D"U|_|’|";LF'.|:‘€‘."E:| I ot curren habilines dt'-Sd;
Imereass/[decreans) in Caher aon-climent linansial liabibes BETE

Decreasadincrease) in athar financial assets

(13T

310,85

Clecreasad increass) in athar currert asseis [ERELR]

Decreasad increass) in ather non.current assefs 123 04 375}
Gash generated from/|used in |} oparaiions 1,11, 55655 62,151,586
Divrescs e pakd (et of refurds) 114,580 48] {7 LB,
Mat Cash fow Fremiused in] oparating activitios B5 BTEOT B5.0R2.63
Ciash liisas h’nm.masim;j actwities

F"'Jr:.'"IEISE l:-‘ F"F"E |r-v:-|u;|;n|l1la1;7ur sexmate and OFP (5154 39; (16 576 T}
Proceeds from saba of property, plant & equipment 143810 241 54
Peosads frorm sabs of non-aurrent stHer inwestmants 1521
Proceadsevestrmaanl) romin bank deposks Masing ongnal maduelty of (50879 = ey
more than Eree meoths)

Iiesest received 245,91 32408
Met cash How fromiusad In) investing activiias [&222.16} [15.042.25)
Cash Mews fram financing Retivities

Redermpton of debentue ) (3:218.00)



The Cash Flow Statement has 3 parts:

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Cash Flow from Operations, also known as CFO is a list of all cash
transactions of the company, relating to day to day operations of the
company - buying and selling of goods and services. CFQO includes
cash used or generated as profit or loss, working capital changes in
the business and the direct taxes paid. CFO shows how profitable

are the company's operations.

Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Changes in long term assets are recorded in this part of the cash
flow staternent. When a company buys or sells a long term item, or
profits from the same or incurs a loss, all these are recorded here.

& - Cash Flow from Financing Activities
€ \L e 2 Cash Flow from financing related to all financing decisions of the
$3) A1 company - when they rate equity, debt, or repay anything. It even
: ‘_ ’\ includes dividends, interests and share repurchases, These items

5 1A together form the Cash Flow from Financing Activities.

One thing that comes from the cash flow statement is that it presents the true picture of a
business and its operations. Most of the time, more cash means a business is more robust.
It shows a business ability to generate cash.

Locking at the financial statements of a company can give you an idea of their operations, but
you can discover much more about it by looking through its statements over the years. Looking
at its story over time, you can realize how its numbers are changing and it will also give you an
indication of the direction that they will follow over the next few years.

Locking at somuch data at a time may feel intimidating when starting. However, you will get more
comfortable with it if you regularly read financial statements. To be precise, you will know how to
skim through them and which line items to focus on with practice.

It is also advisable to read financial staterments of a variety of industries since each one of them
have different characteristics.
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1 |Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021 AVAVA I
] ]
] ]
] I
1 Hotes As Bl 1
] 31 March 20671 I
1 1
1 L]
+ W Eregerty glant and spaprmet ¥ o1 87558 REEEE
1 BRI se ases 6 2030172 BIrre
1 [ Capitel wirkin o ess [ 4m) 9423 81 BETOISE
i [wesimentprogeries | 255,446.08 sEabdas | g
i W Goodwil i T 44754 §
PO s rlﬂ_—ﬁgﬂ'_fm I
%, | Intengbe assete under dewdopment [ T0.15 )
e
| 1
] ]
Hll Quick Heal )
1 Securtey Sirophfied 1
] ]
I ¥
] [
' CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET '
i AS AT MARCH 31, 2022 i
I (Al amolnts are i T Croes, unless othenwise stated) ]
] [
| Particulars Notes As at -
- Meare 31,2037
ASSETS
Hon-curment assats
{al _Property plart and squipment | I 10594 14047
(bl  Capital work-in-progress - 11
Ifrtangible asaats ) 574 528
| Investment Praperty | e 2536 =
Frarcial assets 5
N Ireastents £ 2746 2210 »
Real estate companies wolld have more land and related assets on
their balance sheet whie Mhmtﬁﬂ companies would hard!l:j have any
tangiole fixed assets,
L e el L e Ll e L Ll Ll L El b el etk
i CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS DrReddy's ¥ -
] {Allameunts i Indlan Rupess milllons, except share and per share data) |
] ]
For th dad  Forthe ded Forth e
: Parlieulan 31 March 2022 | F1March 2021 | 31 Mareh 2020 :
i Revaniss Haza1 180,722 174600 I
L] Carst of revenues 100551 5,545 F0.581 ]
Gross profit N3840 03077 94,008
Selling, general ondsdministmive axmpenses G181 G4 50 B 12%
Resenarch and deveicpment arxpenses 17482 16.541 15410
Impairmant of non-cument assels 1562 8.5838 18767
Other Ineofme. net 271 8T {4.200]
Total eperaling expenses 44,364 Telat 8,06
Results from operating activities (A) 29476 24,280 15,993
: Enance Income JoTF z'm ?.m_.l.
I Firiar e Bxpsimse [358) (&7 (283 1
1 Finance incoma, net (B) ams 1652 1478 ]
L] Hhare of prolfl of equity eccoured imestess, net of tax (Cf FoI 4053 a6 I
| Profitbetors tax GAT-EFIEN 32.298 26,413 18,032 :
1 Ta expensadbenefi), net 3730 5175 {1.466] 1
e o e i e e e, i T R = a3 B - R
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] effichency:crige: h) Banefits darvad: 1
I W Wnprovenmal b ey vssge eilioemey in lighiing syshens d i
by changing over to efficent lighiing scluions such as I Cyele tima reduction and productity enhancement

1 Lignt Emitting Diodes { LEDs) Ii Worldhclass quality and diferentiated products ]
1 IX. Process improvemants ko enhance productivity and reduce Il Addressing market speciic end-wse applications ]
1 spacilic energy consumplon across Businesses: 1V Conservafion of resources and improved efficlencies I
] b} Steps taken for utilising altermate sources of endrgy: | c©} The expenditurs incurred on Research and '
i Some of the renewable energy niiali ves underiaken during the Development:
i year aia as lllows For the pear endad
I 1. Comrmissioning of 14.9MW offslie solar photovollais power 3ts! March, 2022
i Flant in Tamil Madu. ) Expeaditire on R&D: (% inLakhs)

Il Commessioning of addtions! rocticp sotar photovslisc 1) Capital 20658
1 power planls,
i M. Gontinued use of biomass-based luels in axsing ). Fiyarnin e
1 Eiomass boilers for thermal energy generaton o reduce Total 16,378.23
1 dependency on fessil fuels across Businesses. Total RD Expondiure |25 2% of Gross Revenis) 028%
: in addilion, the Company also commissioned a state-obthe-art | -Jl

and future-ready High Pressure Recovery Boder at the
1 Ehadrachalar mill, replacing conventional soda recovery boilars On benaif of the Board i
1 This intarvantion will reducs the carbon feolprint of e unit's 1
aperations thralch significanty |ower coal cansumptian, S PURI  Chabman & Managing Dvector

i R TANDON Dirsctor !
] These investments have heiped achieve renewable energy shane ]
1 of 429, 18t May, Koilkata, India 1
1 i
I Hos TRl e P L AL ek b | A R 1
1 ITC Limited reporr anpAccounts 2022 REE I
1 ]
‘ O R R W WS RS R S W S S SRS S SR R RS S R W WS RS RS W S R R R O R e - ;

Pharmaceutical companies ﬁjf:‘acalkj ncur heavtj research and develoanJr
expenditure while that may not be the case for an FHCG business,

Now that you know about the financial statements, let us see how to find that data and how to get
the same, ready for financial modelling.

Khowledge Box

You may notice a coumn to the left of the amount
colrmn of each of the finarcial statements. Rows
contain a 4-2 digit number. These numbers are
referring to something called the 'notes to the fnancial
statements, These notes Prov'lde further explanation for
the fine items. For exampele, if revenues for a company
are Re.500,000; then the notes would erovide the
breakdown of that amount, .2, how much of revenue
has been aenaraJred from which of the activities.
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Let’s deal with

data better.

Getting the Data Explaine

- R R R R S R R R R e R R e R e R R e e e AR e S e R e e e

Data from Annual Reportsx

Financial Statements

Annual Quarterly
\C Reports Reports 1
that reveals business that reveals business
information and information and financial
financial performance performance for the
for the previous year. previous quarter,

- R R R e R R R R S e R R S e R R B e e e e R R R B e e e R e e E e

It is always advisable to work with raw data, i.e., straight out of the annual report pdfs that the
company has released. You can find this on the official company website or on the documents
section of Screener. Here's how:

1 Search for the company on screener.com

screenern!

Stock analysis and screening ool for imeesions in ndia.

Q wrma =

V-blsw— mdm L11

Taili Achamncrs Malurial 114




2. Scroll to the ‘Documents’ section and open the latest annual report

L) d wreenein
sCregnen HOWE ZCREENS TOOLE Q. Ssanh ) ¥ " Lo
1 (=== "
D » 200 1L30 1511 1734 1757 18,48 2081 s T A 1o 21 7u58
Putib « 11564 TLAT w41 Bas 248 £.33 15 210 975 10,43 133 10
Documents
ANAgURCeNEn s Annual reports Credit ratings Concalls
Hnhng uodnle
inancia Year 2900 Ratng updale m! lisnsion? o
T
o Faar 2020 B 1

Data from Paid Subscriptions

There are many paid tools available that provide indepth information abouta companyand present
modified financial statements. An important benefit of these is that they can be downloaded as
excel. Some of the preferable ones are:

EFETEI'I i e e

T3 ANALYSER =

PRIVATE COMPANY

o ad B
= = T
Ace Analyser Capitaline Databases
(http/vww.aceanalysercomy) (https:/Aaww capitaline.comy/)

PUITERT -, - o ;- S—— —— e

Reuters
(https:fimww. reuters.com/)

Despite the credibility of these databases, it is better to manually
create the excels from raw data, particularly in the initial years.
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Doing so has certain advantages:

+ Seeingthefinancial numbers of the company more often builds familianty with the financial
statements of different industries.

» You will start to discover relationships between different line iterms and try to analyze them
even before starting the process.

» You will start noticing trends over time, like whether the revenue is improving or not and
whether the costs are growing in line with revenues or economies of scale are present.

+ Youwill be able to spot one-off items. These are line items that do not appear in the regular
course of business, but cccasionally. It is necessary to get good at this particular skill.

Khowledge box
WJITA-‘;‘:I‘\_JI Pﬁ-l““i".raq each and every ine item into Excel can
ke a tedious 'p'm, we wont lie. But the qaod part is that
Jour seeed wil dramatic ally improve after d&mq this 4-5
hm;‘:. It wil assist L ﬁﬂa in 2stablis 'hl.t‘\q Your foundation
as an analyst de creating models. You wil develop an
.3’-‘?'.[511'14 fowards the numbers.

Non-recurring items

Oftentimes we may notice that some line items appear just once inthe life of a company or just a
few times. Such items can be income or expenses and are not a regular part of the business, but
appear occasionally. They are referred to as non-recurring items.

. TATA
‘IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII AIG

INSURANCE

nsurance Claim

WITH YOU ALWAYS

Fire in a Chemical Insurance
Manufacturing Company Company

Do you think you can forecast such an item for the chemical
company as a in upcoming quarters?

its impossible! Events like & fire, compliance expenses due to a mew
reguiation coming into efbect, and other such ong-off items are not to
be modeled, because there are no chances You can predict them,

Hence, they should be omitted from your model since they would not be of any help while
forecasting. We will even adjust past accounting for such one time items to show the true
nurnbers of the company. This process is called normalising and we will see more about it going
forward.



Here are a few signs that a line item is non-recurring:

Recurring Items

Non-
recurring

________________________________

- e R R G R R R e e e

‘Extraordinary items’ or ‘Exceptional
items on the income statement can also

be a part this.

Sales revenues <1,00,000
COGS (¥60,000)
Gross Profit 340,000
Rental Expense (X10,000)
Depreciation (X4,000)
Operating Income 326,000
Gains on sales of assets 334,000
Interest Income <3,000
Interest Expense (X2,000)
Income Before Tax 361,000
Tax Provisions (15,000)

Income from Continuing Ops 346,000

The easiest way to spot such items is by
realizing that such items, whether revenue
or expenses, can be seen only in a single
year within the range of 5-10 years.

Income from Discontinued Ops 23,000
Loss from Lawsuit (X15,000)

Net Income 54,000

Notes: Changes in estimates. .

____________________

————————————————————

All items that are one-time
and non-cperating in nature
need to be normalised’. We
will learn this going forward.

Unusual or
nfrequent items

Discontinued Operations

Extraordinary tems

lﬁn:counﬁr:ﬂ Chanﬂes,
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Discontinued Operations

We may also notice that sometimes companies, especially those cperating in several businesses,

may discontinue a particular line of business.

.
i1
" i

—
e

Li, - : Discounted
'Laptop ! == Operations
Phone ! and Products

Home Theatre
Headphones
Camera

Car Studio

Revenues and
expenses of the
discontinued business
may dppear for a few
geara and abmf‘“}j

sappear the next.

These tems need to be taken care of whike Cf?.&ﬁﬂj a model

Just ke ﬂOﬂ-FECqu

items,

cannot model for these ine

items, simely E:Er:ause they have ceased to exist!

R S B S R R N R S R NS B N B R e R e S R N SR N SN R B e S R E R S S R e B e S R E R N S R e B e S R m R S R e E e S R R

E Spotting discontinued operations is pretty easy because
' according to accounting standards, information on
‘ discontinued operations has to be mandatorily disclosed.

T e B R S R S W R N B S B S e R S S S S B S S S e R S S S B S B S e R S S M S B S B S e e W e e B B e e e T

The following example illustrates that:

Restated (in million $)

Original {in million $)

Revenue
COGS
GM
SGA
Income before Tax
Tax (40%)

Income from Continued
Operations

Income from
Discontinued Operations

Tax (40%]

90
45
45
9
36
14

22

02

24

100
50
50
10
40
16

24

24




The rationale for 'normalising' non-recurring items and line items about discontinued operations
is simple. These are exceptional items that have occurred rarely in the past, and there is no way
you can forecast such items, simply because there is no basis for you to know if they will occur
or not. Also, the financials for part of business that has been discontinued is no more relevant
when projecting company's future. So, it should not be used while forming assumptions aboutthe
future and as a result should be remaoved from the model.

Rermember that non-recurring items and discontinued operations can be hidden within larger
itemns. For example, there may be a small part of the revenue that exists one year and ceases to
exist the next.

\% You can ea&itﬁ spot siuch iterms b3 comf;ar'urzﬁ

the notes to the financial statements,
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s TIMe Value of money

One of the most profound, yet simple concepts used in finance, the time value of
money is the mathematical foundation on which the financial industry operates.
It is the base for not only simple calculations in financial modelling but also for
complex formulas used across fields in the finance sector.

What is the Time Value of Money?

With time, the value of money changes. The change in value is understood by the time value
of money.

. % _060::
‘e ©eee
y M

<100 10 Units

For example, let's say apples are for 10 each and 100 gets us 10 apples in the market.
But in the future, the price of apple increases due to inflation. Let's say the costis ¥12.5.
Then we can only buy 8 apples. So, we see that the value of the same 100 reduces
overtime. Teday it could buy 10 apples but later it can buy only 8. So, ¥ 100 today is more
valuable compared to the same 100 in the future. This is the time value of money.

<100 8 Units
Therefore, if a person gives you an option of receiving Rs. 100 either today or a year later,

we must always choose Today' as the value of Rs 100 will decrease with time - mainly
due to inflation.

Another way to look at it, you could invest this Rs.100 in a bank and earn 5% interest
and you would have Rs.105 after a year. So, we can say that,

TODAY ONE YEAR
FROM NOW



LS

1 year from now
< 100

\9 Most peogle would

choose this o{ahon

"'3

nx,{; 'L,.m mi :
J

‘IIIIIIII

The reason is simple. If you chose option 1and invest that
money, it will earn an interest and you would have more by
the next year. Assuming an annual interest rate of 10%, the

<100 you have today will become 110 by next year. There

is no reason to accept anything less than that one year
from now. You should be indifferent if you are getting 100
and Y110 one year from today. The value of 100 today is
the same as 110, one year from today.

--------------------

wial Medelling | Concepts of Financial Modeling
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Essentially, the formula for compound interest is:

YU T—— -
Amount at the end
of time period

: F
“‘-l fl'

Principal [ 1+ Rate of return ]Ne-of periods

Assuming you have 100 at the start with a 10% rate of interest for 1 year. According to the
formula,

Amount at the end of 1 year = 100 (1+0.1)' = 110.

Using the same formula, you would have 121 at the end of the second year.

Amount at the end of 1 year = 110 (1+0.1)' = 121.

And soon..
The growth using compound interest over a period of time can look like this:

- R R e R R e e e R e e e e e

1
The formula to calculate Future value for every year is i
I

100[ 1+r ]t |

1

I

I

1

Here, r = rate of interest and t = no. of years.

- R R R R e e e e e e e e e e

e L L L

F 7100 100[11] 100[11]7 100[11]F 100[11}* 100[11]°

| I I -
" ' ;  Timeline
L] i L1 )
i ' LY !
LY i “ Fa

This is also called Discounting.

-



The activity of estimating the present value of a future cash flow or a series of future cash
flows is called discounting. The rate at which future cash flows are discounted is known as the
discount rate. Most valuation methods make use of this technique to determine the present value
of the company.

Now that you know what you will receive 1 and 2 years from now, can you calculate the value
of such a sum in today's terms?

Inverting the compound interest formula can give you the answer.
Say you are receiving ¥100 2 years from now, then its value today, at a rate of return of 10%
would be:

PV of Future
Cashflow

Future Value /[ 1+ Rate of return ]\e- of periods

In our example,
Amount at the end of 2 years = 100 /(1+0.1)2 = 82.64

Instead of multiplying as you did while calculating the future value, you have to divide while
calculating the present value.

The concept of compounding and discounting is fundamental to finance. All valuation technigues
you would be learning to incorporate this concept. Take time to understand it thoroughly.

[ . 11F= i = L)
Knowledge Bos
Remember that comFounduH and discounting are
opposites of each other. For every period, the vaue of
rrmet.j [N 301‘:.3 to be difterent. Cx::-n?dmdtrﬂ i used
to Gnd out the future cash flow of a sum +oda3 while

d‘n,e.cmmira & used to estmate the present vaue of
Luture Exf:-ec{r&d cash £lows.

Let's dive deeper into some terms related to time
value of money.
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Time Value of Money

Time value of money is an important concept. Let's lock at the important terms related of Time
Value of Money.

Present Value

The present value of cash flow is the current value of cash to be received in future, discounted at
an appropriate rate.

Consider that a friend has agreed to pay you 500 2 years from now. Assuming the rate of
return to be 5%,

i PV of Future N
; P —" Future Value /[ 1+ Rate of return JNe-ofpe

X s

PV of I500 = I500 /(1+0.05)2 = T 453.51

PV =FV/[1+r] 2500 Timeline
% 2500 /(1+0.05)2 K

T 453.51 .

- -
- -

Hence, the present value of 500 2 years from now is 453.51

Future Value
The future value of a sum of money today is its value after a penod of time, compounded at an
appropriate rate of interest.

Consider a friend who borrows #500 from you today and promises to pay you back 2 years later.
Assuming the rate of return to be 5%,

Ny

Future Value = Present Value[1+ Rate of return JNe-ofpericds |
K

FV of 500 = ¥500(1+0.05)2 = F 551.25



¥, %
! LY
I L1
I ! i
i 1 Timeline

I 500 FV =PV[1+r[
I500(1+0.05)?
3 551.25

Hence, the future value of #500 2 years from now is ¥551.25

Interest Rate

The interest rate (known as the rate of retum while compounding and discount rate while
discounting) is a very important part of the discounting and compounding equation. It is the rate
of return at which money grows in a particular period.

Usually, the risk-free rate is used as the rate of return. For example, it the interest rate quoted
on a government bond is 10%, then it can be considered a risk free rate of interest.

Time Period

The time period in a discounting equation means nothing but the number of pericds for which
cash inflows or outflows are predicted.

The longer the time period of cash flows, the higher
will be the impact of discounting and compounding.
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In the real world, however, and especially for businesses, single cash flows as used in the example
are hardly the case. Forecasts are done for multiple cash flows, spanning over several years.

Finarcia

The total value of a business today is estimated as the sum of the present values of its future

o cash flows. Let’s take an example.
'ﬁ Look at the following timeline. It is estimated that a company invests 50 crores this year and will
(:?5 generate 40 crares in the next 1 year, 100 crores in 2 years, ¥150 crores in 3 years, and 180
_" crores in 4 years.
g‘ What will be the total present value of this business?
E :. ...‘.=
> i -50 Cr 90 Cr 100 Cr 150 Cr 180 Cr E
E i i
] | I | i |
{ i 0 1 2 3 4 1
B 1I.-'
3 simple steps for estimating the present value of the business are:
_ Estimate the d!‘.SCOUi’"ﬁ"ﬂﬁg rate.

Let's assume this to be 5%

2 Calculate the present value of each of

e — the future cash flows. Remember that
the discounting rate is the same, but the
number of periods for each are different.

3 Add all the present values to get the total
1 value of all future cash flows.

Look at this completed timeline below. It's estimated PV is ¥356.5 crores.

0o 1 2 3 4

-50Cr. 40Cr 100Cr 150Cr 180 Cr
'!- <“ED.J’I[ 117 ED,P'[."l.'l i 100{&1.1 I’ 120.!'[! 11

!

F
L] 90.7 Cr [ T T -
-
L 129.6 Crr [ -
f‘/,
] 1481 Cr R

356.5 Cr

e i o

Fa
&

."'.-.-.-—--—w-

.
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Thisis a very basic example of how company valuations aredone. Understanding thisisimportant
as it will help us arrive at a value for the company.
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o



s.s Understanding Free Cash
Flows

( Cash Flow J

; i

Free Cash Flow

Surplus  cash generated
after meeting all investment
needs of the business.

FCF = CFO - CFI

L e
L
'

...................... | R p———

1 ]

] ]
fpaz=msacransnaza S eazzoncansnasconnrs S
1 FFCF : g FFCE .
i Free Cash Flow : « Free Cash Flow to Eq uity )
] to Firm. ; s Shareholders. !
[} ] ] 1
¢ FCF=CFO-CFl ! i FCF =CFO - CFl :
' + Interest : : + Net ]
| Expenses | i Borrowings ’

[}
s “

An irreplaceable topic in the world of
valuations, free cash flows are defined as the
surplus cash left with a company after they
have met all their investment needs.




Textile Software
Company Company
CFO
N «| Let us take an example of a textile and a | e-ceeeeceeeees

software company with a profit or sale i.e.
CFO (Cash flow from Operating Activities)
of Rs. 100 cr.

. Every year the textile company has to :
. make an investment to either upgrade :
: or buy new machinery for growth, which
accounts for 40% of their cash flow :
. from operations. :

The software company does not need
i such investments. So let us assume
i that they spend around 5% of their
i CFO on updating their hardware.

‘ CFlI
---------- This money is called Cash Flow for i
Investment Activities (CFI).
. Free Cash Flow (FCF) . Free Cash Flow (FCF)
. =%100 crores - ¥40 crores : i =¥100 crores - ¥5 crores
: =360 crores : =395 crores
i This is referred to as Free Cash Flow. ,______,..-"

FCF = CFO - CFI

Despite having the same CFO, each of the
companies have different free cash flows as
their investments needs are different.



This does not mean that the software company is a better company than the textile company.
Every industry functions differently and companies should be compared to their industry peers
for better evaluation.

Some points to keep in mind while calculating a company’s free cash flows:

This is & cash
flow item, Fgures
should be extracted
from the cash flow
statement, and not
the income statement.

\vestroents include only
erational ivestrents ke
rnachines, hardware, etc.

Financia invesirments sch

as those incurred to By
atocks, mutudl funds, of
bank certikicates should

not b counted.

A business can use this surplus cash the way it wants. A few commen uses of free cash flows
by companies are:

» Paying extra dividends to common shareholders
» Buying back their shares to increase their shareholders’ wealth
» Paying off its long-term debt

As can be guessed, the free cash flow of a business shows the surplus funds left with the company
after meeting its investment needs. This can be deployed in whatever way the company seems fit.

el __,_} Wealth for the

Stakeholders
We would extensively use free cash flows in our valuation techniques. We will discount different
types of free cash flow to arrive at a valuation.

Free Cash
Flow

.
F
i

increase free
cash flow

Company A

"

improving the cash inflow from
its business operations

lower investment requirements
to generate that cash.

Either of the two can be leveraged to increase free
cash flow for company.
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_ Free Cash
Flows

Based on the stakeholder they belong to, they are of 2 types:

+ Free cash flows to firm (FCFF)
* Free cash flows to equity (FCFE)

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Free Cash Flow to the Firm (FCFF)

Free cash flows to the firm are the free cash flows that belong to both debt and equity
holders of the company. Both can decide how this cash will be used since both have a
righttoit.

—————————————————————————————————————————

-----------------------------------------

Interest expenses should form part of FCFF because they represent a return to debt
holders, one of the stakeholders of a business. As debt holders also have rights over
FCFF, interest expenses need to be included in this.

Free Cash Flow to Equity (FCFE)

Free cash flows to equity are the free cash flows that belong solely to equity holders
of the company. Only equity shareholders have a claim on it and can decide how / where
these funds will be deployed.

= CFO - CFl + Net Borrowings

For example, a company pays off a certain amount of debt and also issues new debt in
a particular year. Therefore the net amount of borrowings is added to the FCF and we
arrive at FCFE.

Interest expenses are not included here since equity shareholders do not have a right
over interest payments.

These formulas can look scary at first, but you will get used to them once you use them
repeatedly. Focus onunderstanding the concept well instead of mugging up the formulas.
You can always look up the formula when you need it.




FCFF and FCFE values will be used along with the time value of money to arrive at the present
value of a business. The series of future values used for discounting are nothing but these free
cash flows. It'll get interesting when we learn when to use FCFF and FCFE based on different
companies and situations. You will really enjoy it when you see all this falling together later.

Now you know that you must use one of the types of free cash flows (FCFF or FCFE) to arrive at
the right valuation of a business. But at what rate will you discount these cash flows to get their
present value?

This is answered by WACC, another concept to be introduced in the next chapter.
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WACC

Weighted Average Cost of Capital (WACC)

The Weighted Average Cost of Capital refers to the rate that a company is expected to pay on an
average to all its security holders to finance its assets. The Weighted Average Cost of Capital
(WACC) represents a firm's average cost of capital from all sources, including different types
of equity and debt holders.

Jererates 3 nerates return
Loss return lower than over and above
p cost of capital, cost of cacite.  Profitable
Maklng ‘||||||||||E|1||||||i|l|[IHEII I;IIIE!IIIIIIIHI".ﬁﬁIIIfII)

. i

For example, a company takes a debt of ¥ 100 at an interest rate of 8% p.a. Therefore, this 8%
refers to the Cost of Debt for the Z 100 borrowings for the company.

< 100 @ 8% p.a

Debt Interest

Capital Cost of Debt

.....

The company can have other borrowings from various other sources. All of these have
different costs associated with them, based on the amount that is borrowed and the
interest rate charged upon them.

When all these are put together, or better yvet, these weighted
averages are put together, it gives us the total cost of all debt
required to calculate the WACC.

Cost of Debt refers to the weighted average of interest all the
borrowings that a company has.



For example A company has secured loans and debt from various sources - # 500 from
person A at 15%, ¥ 1500 from person B at 8%, and ¥ 2000 from person C at 6%.

Loan
Amount

Person A
X 500 @ 15%

Person B
1500 @ 8%

<«

Person C
X 2000 @ 6%

Cost of
Debt

TRTTTITIOT x5
500+1500+2000

=1.875%

-

II!I[IIHHII’

——

nunnnp %

Average
Cost of
Debt

1.875% +
3.0% + 3.0%

7.875%

The total average cost of debt would be the weighted average of the interest rates.
Hence, in this case the Cost of Debt would be 7.875% as calculated above.
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. Cost of equity is the rate of return expected by
Cost of EC]UIty (KE] LU equity investors for their investment based on

the risk they are taking.

Higher the risk, the higher the cost of equity. We will learn how to estimate the cost of equity inthe
next chapter. For now, let's understand how it is used to calculate WACC.

WACC Calculation

Being a weighted average, it is the sum of the cost of equity, cost of debt, and cost of preferred
stock; in their respective proportions. Have a look at its formula:

WACC = [Ke x % of Equity]+ [ RD x % of Debt x {1-T) ]+ [Kp « % of Preferred Stock]

Breaking down the 3 components,

! Cost of equity *x Proportion of equity in total capital

/‘3T‘he cost the company has to P2y ifs coramon shareholders,
't can be caleulated using CAPH, which stands for capital |
asset pricing rodel. we wil learn this in the next chapter.

WACC = I:KE X % oquuity:I +| K x%of Debt « (1-T) |+| K » % of Preferred Stock

a— .. o . The contribution of equity to the
o total capital ok the cormpany.

% of Equity = Equity/Total Capital

For example, a company has

Equity =3 90,000
Total Capital =¥ 2,00,000
% of Equity - ¥ 90,000/ ¥ 2,00,000 = £5%



-

e effective interest rate

2
Cost of debt x Proportion of debt in total capital x
tax relief

= Interest Expense/Total Long Term Debt

on the lDﬂ term debt

taken by + cornpany \ > Cost of debt needs to be
ost of De Tax Rate mmLFnEd 'c,»j {41} as tak

H ! e bt dao qves tax aduan%aﬁes

E E which reduce the cost of debt,

WACC =| K. » % of Equity | + [ K, x % of Debt x (1-T) ]+- K. » % of Preferred Stock |

i \ i
; 7 The conirinution of dett 1o the total

(1&3{:1*6! ok the com
% of Dbt = Dekt/ Total Capital

Weighted cost of
Debt

For example, a company has

Debt =% 80,000
Total Capital =¥ 2,00,000
% of Debt = ¥ 80,000/ ¥ 2,00,000 = 40%

Whenever a company pays interest to service debt, it can be used as a deduction while calculating
its tax. As a result, tax savings due to interest reduces the cost of debt.

For example, if a cormnpany borrows of ¥ 100 at 8%, then it owes ¥ 108in one year. Ifthe company's
profits are ¥ b0, will reduce to ¥ 42 as 7 8 is an interest expense and thus we do not pay tax for this.

; The tax payable is fnr instance 30% of the company pmﬁts i

W
2
o
o
=t
Al
n

2

SCENARIO 1 ? SCENARIO 2
Profit= ¥ 50 : Profit = T 42
Tax Payable = = I 15' g Tax Payable =/ 12.6 !
_______ . Bt
i

As a result, the company saved the tax amount paid.

We paid interest of ¥ 8 and saved tax of ¥2.4. As a result, the effective cost of
debtis ¥5.6 i.e. K, (1)

_,
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Cost of preferred stock x Proportion of preferred
stock in total capital

Cost of Fre’?erred stock is the rate of
return the company has to Pag\ its Frei?erred
shareholders, This coat is Ras than the cost of :

common equrhj but more than the cost of debt, i
C =K x%of Equity |+[ K _x % of Debtx (1-T) |4 [kp « % of Preferred Stuck]

el

The eroportion of ereferred stock é_/ Weighted cost of
to the total capital of the company,

% of Preferred Stock = Preferred Equity/Total Capital

For example, a company has

Preferred Equity =¥ 30,000
Total Capital =¥ 2,00,000
% of Preferred Stock = ¥ 30,000/ ¥ 2,00,000 =15%

Estimating the WACC for a company

WACC = [K‘* « % of Equity]+

Let's assume a company has | Equity = ¥ 90,000

Debt = 80,000

Preferred Equity =5 30,000

The cost of equity using the CAPM Method = 9%
Cost of Preferred Equity =7%

Cost of Debt=5%

Effective Tax Rate = 30%

K, % of Debt x (1 -T)] + [K13 x % of Preferred Stock]

| Total Capital =3 90,000 + I 30,000 + I 80,000

WACC = [9% 90,000/ ﬂ,uo,uuu] + [5% © 80,000/ ¥2,00,000 (1 -30%)] +

[?% © 230,000/ ?2,00,000]

= 4.05% + 2% + 1.05% = 7.1% P



CAPM

Explainer Video

Now that you know the concept of weighted average cost of capital (WACC), let's understand how
one can arrive at a good estimate for the cost of equity.

¢

‘ 1 1 Runds in the
form of equ'mj
Investors
A I
] Return expected L
bmj inve stors
Cost of Equity for
l Company A |
What rate of return is ideal?

0
---------------------------------

This question is addressed by capital asset pricing model (CAPM). It is the ‘required retum’ by
equity stakeholders of the company. Though there are numerous ways to calculate the cost of
equity for a company, the CAPM method is by far the most sensible and preferred amongst the
most common ones and that is the one that we will use.

The CAPM method may sound and look intimidating, but it is a simple model in reality. This
simple model is used to find the expected return of different assets, especially equity.

v
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Components of CAPM

Lets first understand the different items that help calculate the cost of capital using CAPM.

Risk-free rate (i)

Risk free rate of return is the retum generated by investing in risk-less assets i.e. government
bonds. This is the minimum returmn any asset should earn.

“Market Premium (R_-R)

Investing in the stock markets is riskier than government bonds, hence you expect a higher
reward. The additional return geenrated from taking additional risk and investing in markets is
called market premium. Itis calculated as 10 year SENSEX returns - 10 year bond yield.

Market Premium = Market return - Risk-free rate .

Company Beta ()

The beta of a company signifies its volatility. It is the sensitivity of the company's stock price to
changes in price of i.e. SENSEX. For example, if Company A's stock price goes up by 1.5% when
the market goes up by just 1%, then Company A's beta is 1.5. Higher the beta, more volatile is the
company's share against the overall market and higher is the return expectation by the investors.

What is B ?

B refers to the value that tells us the sensitivity of the stock's price against the market prices
(or) index prices.

=t The larger-cap stocks are
I _______ Large Cap Stocks less sensitive to the index
NIFTY s prices as compared to the

SENSEX | smaller-cap stocks.

o Small-cap companies
A 2% ~ Small Cap Stocks ~ are more sensitive to the

A5-8% - market as compared to
larger-cap companies.

The higher the Beta (B), the higher the return expectation
for investors.



Capital Asset Pricing Model (CAPM)

All of the mentioned components come together to form the Capital Asset Pricing Model. The
cost of equity of a company is the risk-free rate + a market premium adjusted for its volatility.
Such an equation appropriately calculates the overall returns expected by equity investors.

Take 935% 4o aears WAFTY

7[9 or SENSEX retumna,
T e e T T \|

1o ar Goin"‘l"mEﬂJr B Can I'D’E'_ Cal-tulé‘#i?_d or
Bond ‘:J"E'd searched on Googe faor
each Cmpaﬂ':j"
. i

. , ........... 'EI.S'ICP‘L'EMMM .........
: . between 3% and %

Madkat L. . f___

Return

Risk-free : ; ! :
Risk-free Rate is mrmairﬂ taken as
| the H'Eld on the Icmﬂ—’rerm governme nt
I bond n the counh‘a where the Pro&E ct/
_ _ ! company I.s based. “
Source Wallstrestprep.com Beta of the market 4
A =t J

X-axis is the beta and the Y-axis stands for expected return. The upward sloping line is the cost of equity.
Let’s calculate the cost of equity for Company A:

Risk-free rate = 4%
B = 1.5 [Assuming it is 15x volatile as Nifty)
Market Premium =12% - 7.5% = 4.5%

[Assuming the average annual return on Nifty s 12%)
Company A's Cost of Equity = 4% + 1.5 (4.5%)
0.04 + 1.5 (0.045)
10.75%

Now you know that Company A has a cost to equity of 10.75%.

*Beta (B) is a vast and complicafed fopic and there are verious methods and indices against which it can be
calculated, that is beyond the scope of what we are learning.
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o Discounted
Cash Flows mw

Sofar, we have leamed aboutdiscounting, free cash flows, the WACC, and CAPM. We'll now move
on to discounted cash flows, which is a combination of all the concepts we have learned so far.

Discounted

Compounding Cash Flows

Discounting

If you have a financial background, feel free to skip this chapter, but revision is always better. For
those coming from other diverse backgrounds, you might want to stick around.

Compounding in finance tells us that the future value of today's cash flow will increase, given
positive interest rates. Discounting, as you may recollect, is the inverse of compounding, and
that Is used to calculate the present value of future cash flows. Given positive interest rates, the
present value is always less than its future value.

If the different values of money were drawn on a single timeline, compounding is done by moving
ahead in the timeline, and discounting is done by moving backward. Look at this illustration:

3 B 5 6 7 8 9

38638 907 9524 00  T05 INO25 IMN576

Knowing about free cash flows and discounting, can you combine these concepts to determine

the value of a business today? The value of a company today is the present value of as all its
future cash flows.

Let us take the example of "Company A". The company may run for an unknown number of years.
The concept of “Going Concern” in accounting tells us to always assume that a company or a
business shall go on perpetually as time goes on. So all the companies are valued as “Going
Concerns” that is they are expected to operate forever.

-
Going Concerns

i Company A It will continue forever.




Let us say for "Company A", we have forecasted what company shall generate cash flow
the for the next seven years. We are not able to forecast cashflows beyond this point.

We shall expect the company to have a cash flow of ¥ 100 in the first year, followed by
150, 200, 250, 300, 350 and 400 respectively in the next six years. Each year's cash flow
shall be discounted to the current year.

The pictorial representation is given below:
The value of the company is - the current value of all the cash flows from 7 years + the
value of the time frame which we can't forecast.

Terminal
Value
| 1
1 2 i 4 5 6 e 4 oo

{ 100 | i 1200 2250' §350' 1400} cument
""""""""""""""" il T “T" \f:’:“MEéﬁET‘

A
o
D

m++m++m+ 197 Ed 205 B TEJ:;‘:’:”

Company
Discounted Cash Flow Formula
" cashFow  Te v 1
l = CF CF. cF |
. DCF = S - 2 o eeee o —D
: [14r] [1+r]2 [1+r] !
I E I
- Discounted Rate :
: [waAcc] :
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Explainer =

DCF [V, ] is called the Value of the company. To arrive at this value, we discount the cash flows
from different years of the company as we discussed in the earlier example.

The CF, (Cash Flow for year 1) would be 100 as discussed inthe previous example and CF, is 150
and CF.is 400. R refers to the rate at which we discount the cash flows. The time frame which
cannot be forecast is called Terminal Value. In the previous example, we cannot forecast our
cashflow after 7 years, therefore the period from the 8" year till perpetuity is called ‘Terminal
Value'. Mext we need to calculate terminal value for the company.

Terminal Value

In the previous example, we forecasted our cash flows for seven years and had to calculate from
the eighth year till perpetuity that is the Terminal Value.

\ Terminal _ CF, _ CF,.[1+4] :
| Value [r-g] [r-g] |
- Rate of Interest
g = Long Term Growth Rate

After seven years, the company is expected to grow, at a slower rate till perpetuity, which will be
an assumption that is made by us. This is called the Long Term Growth Rate. This is generally
long term GDP growth

As per the calculation with the help of the formula:
Here, WACC=r=0.10andg =0.05i.e. 5%
CF,=[400(1+0.05)] /[ 0.1-0.05] = 8400

Now, we need to discount this 8400 for 8 years, which comes to an approximate amount of let
us assume 3 5000

Hence,
the Total Value of the company would be 1121 (the discounted value for the first seven years,
which is an estimate and assumption by us) + ¥ 5000 (the terminal value from the eighth year

till perpetuity) =% 6121.
This is the basic method of how we calculate company value using discounted cashflows.

Once again, you should focus on the concept instead of
mugging up the formulas. You can always re-visit them
once we start building models on real companies.



ElELE
ai’}.r% 3,
So far, we have leamed about the types of cash flows, discounting, and how L’t >,.
to discount future cash flows to the present to find the value of a business. E]w ri"«tr
Let's now brush up on some of the terms that you should be aware of. Explainer Video
Terminal Enterprise Equity
Value Value Value
Value of a business Total value of the Total value of the part

after the projection
pericd ends. This is
because the business
will continue to make
money beyond the
forecasting period.

T T L L L T T R L T T T TR T L R LT

firm owned by the
shareholders as well as
debt holders.

e S ———

3.10 Important terms related to
Discounted Cash Flows

of firm that is owned
by the shareholders
only, ie after paying
off the debt-holders.
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| FCFE (Free Cash flow from Equity)

The value of equity i.e. market value |
of equity shares is denoted by Equity
Value. If one wants to buy a share or !
stock of a company, this is the value
to look at. For example, 25,000 Cr.

2 wnrth shares is called Equity Shares.

FCFF (Free Cash flow for Firm)
If the market value is ¥ 25,000 :
Cr and the debt value is ¥ 10,000 |

- Cr, then the total ENTERPRISE
VALUE is ¥ 35,000 Cr.

Next, we'll learn about a few more valuation techniques.
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Methods
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Explainer Video

Dividend Discount Model is another
valuation method. It is similar to DCF but only
discounts Dividends instead of FCF. DDM and
DCF are types of absolute valuation methods
that we will see going further.

Valuation by comparison of multiples Relative

like Price/Earnings, Price/Sales, Price/
User etc. Here, the analyst does not try
to estimate the exact value of the asset.

Absolute

Valuation

Valuation

Valuation when an analyst tries to estimate
the current value of an asset with the
current facts. An exact value or range is
achieved. DDM and DCF are types of absolute
Valuation.

Lets look at the these in detail.



DCF, although a good valuation technique, may not be suitable encugh to value all types of
companies. A few that are used pretty extensively along with DCF are

DDM [Dividend Discount Model]

A dividend is a distribution of profits by a company to its shareholders. \When a company earns
a profit or surplus, itcan pay a proportion of the profit as a dividend to shareholders. If a company
pays regular dividends, then it can be valued using a dividend discount model (DDM). A DDM
is a valuation method where estimated future dividends are discounted to the present to find
the value of a company.

most suitable | The company is a high
when dividend-paying company.

B EE R

An investor considers the cash
received from dividends as
their main source of return.

The formula looks like this:

|
—

T e

The methed to calculate value using dividends is very similar to DCFE Suppose a company pays
dividends of 10, 12, 15, 718, and 25 per share for the first, second, third, fourth, and fifth year.
Let's assurme that the dividend perpetually grows at 5% and its cost of equity is 10%. We calculate
its per share value to be:

0 1 2 3 4 5 6
10 12 15 18 25 D, (1+49)

2, ! 1 i 1 i i r+
* COMOST nosp 15/0SF  18/MOSF  25/008]¢ ; 9

7 e’ i : i = 25[1.05]
: [0.10-0.05]

= 525

S - - -

The Dividend Discount Model or DDM model price is the stock’s intrinsic value. If the stock pays
no dividends, then the expected future cash flow will be the sale price of the stock. DDM falls
under the category of Absolute Valuation.

-
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Relative Valuation

A relative valuation is a business valuation method that compares a company'’s value to that of
its competitors or industry peers to assess if the firm is overvalued or undervalued. Different
ratios are used for this analysis.

Here, one doesn't try to estimate the exact value of a business, butinstead compares a company's
different parameters to its peers or its own performance in the past.

Name TCS HCL Technologies
PE Ratio 3164 1916
Dividend Yield 1.28% 3.34%
EV/EBITDA 21.02 N.71

From the example above, it seems that TCS is relatively attractively valued compared to HCL
technologies.

Like absolute value models, investors may use relative valuation models when determining
whether a company's stock is a good buy. One of the most popular relative valuation multiples
is the price-to-eamings (P/E) ratio.

A closer look at Relative Valuation

To summarize, relative valuation is a technigue that compares the value of a business to those of
its peers. Some commeon ways to conduct relative valuation are:

Name Numerator Denominator Rationale

P _ e ' Shows what the market

PE Ratio Price pe Ear s kot is willing to pay today for
share share a stock for each rupee of

garning.

L Compares

PB Ratio Price per Book Value market valution
share per share relative to its

book value.

L Shows what the market
Enterprise EBITDA is valuing ech rupee of

EV/EBITDA
value EBITDA for companies.




Key Performance Indicators

Key performince indicators are operations metrics that help us understand the nature of a
business and compare its operations, assets, values and other industry specific ratios to its

peers. They usually differ by industry.

COoMMon
metrics

-L&&toﬁ‘t:ﬂlll}

Hotel Industry

Tariff per room

Occupancy rate (number of
occupied rooms / total number of
rooms)

Revenue per customer
(total revenue/number of
customers)

For this purpose, we may use price per room or price per customer in hotel industry. In this way
we can identify industry ratios to see which companies are cheap and which are expensive.

Comparables

Comparables i1s a term given to the peers against which the company under consideration is
compared. Companies with their main operations in a similar sector usually form part of a peer
group. Finding comparables means finding companies that are similar to each other.

/ VI 23ictel

Vodafone Idea and Airtel are good comparables for Jio
(an Indian telecom company).

Constructing a good peer group is essential for conducting effective relative valuation.
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Absolute Valuation

Absolute Valuation, refers to a business valuation method that uses discounted cash flow
(DCF) analysis to determine a company's financial worth. Here, one tries to estimate the exact
value of the business. Absolute valuation includes forecasting of future cash flows, discounting it
and coming up with current value of the company.

Investors can determine if a stock is currently under or overvalued by comparing the stock’s
absolute value to its current price.

Example for Absolute Value:

Consider Company X, which currently tfrades on the market for #370.50.

After running a DCF analysis on its estimated future cash flows, an analyst determines
that the absolute value of the firm is ¥450.30.

Based on the numbers, an investor is led to believe that it is a buying opportunity as the
stocks of Company X are under-valued in the current situation.

Challenges of using Absolute Value:

. Estimating a company's absolute value does not come
without its setbacks.

. Forecasting the cash flows with certainty and
projecting how long the cash flows will remain on a
growth trajectory is challenging.

. In addition, predicting an accurate growth rate,
evaluating an appropriate discount rate to calculate the
present value can be difficult.

. Since the absolute valuation approach determines a
stock's worth strictly based on the characteristics and
fundamentals of the company under analysis, there is
no scope for comparison to other companies.

. The best way to evaluate a stock’'s real value is to
incorporate a mix of absolute and relative valuation
methods.

Now that we have understood the terms better, lets get started with the Financial Models and
how to do the things we have witnessed.
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Explainer Video

Introduction

So after going through the basic concepts required to understand, Financial
Modelling for valuation purposes, lets move on and see financial modelling
templates

First, what is a template?

A template is a form, mold, or pattem, that can be used as a guide to making
something. Essentially, a financial modelling template is something which you can
use as a reference to build your models.

The entire financial modelling process is based on a template. It's like the skeleton
of a model on which you can build based on your cbjective and tweak it to
accommodate company-specific requirements

Remember, there are different templates for different objectives. Also, different
companies have different termplates for similar objectives too.

Mcceli_hg Templates

al Medelling | Getting Started with Financial
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Rermember that Microsoft Excel would be our best friend while moedelling because most templates
are built on that. The popularity of Excel comes from its intelligent capabilities and its ease of use.
Look how in the pictures below, the template has formulas in place already. You need to put the
night inputs and voila! Your final model is ready!

] L o E ¥ el H i i R
El Ratie Snapshot Fl..l
3 {In INF Crores. unless otheradte sbaed IERRA
4
5 COMPANY DETALS Expectations in 5 Years: 202
6 |indusiry F
7 |Sector
4 | Currant Market Price i
9 [Market Capitalzation
10 Year erd
1
12 COMPANY DESCRIPTION
13
7]
15
1E
7
i
18
5 " it i e
a1 Franax § Tramaa g FYamaa i
32 e ks EECA
4 Financial Year FY222E FYIORIE FYIDMME FY2025E FYDIZEE DEBT and Market Ca|
25
26 Fevenue 000 0.00 000 000 0.00
27 |COGS RO #OVIDI wOIVIH WD e ]
28 [Gross Prodit #D1va) sl S0V sDnsi H0I
20 |Giross Margin %) #DnAal T Eullt ] #ondal ]
30
31 MNet Protit F EEITOA FLIE FLIL HvH FLnwa #L
32 Mt Margin (%) #oival Ealitl DIV #onAal #oIADN
33 Tax Expanses 4D Cal bl ETalln ] 4D BDAVION
34 Profit Aftar Tax #Divial #D0Vi0| #0ivi #0nal ool
35
E1d
ar
30 ROA #DMal ] 0NV HONAI ]

Finding templates for financial modelling

Though we have provided you with our financial modelling template to get started on your
modelling journey, we suggest you go through the different types of models available on the
intemet. ‘Financial model’ is & wide subject and there are so many topics that use modelling.
You may find many different models, all having their agenda - ranging from financial statement
analysis to loan schedules, budgeting, and 2 whole lot more.

Let's find a template on Google:

1 search for
‘free financial
modelling
templates’ on
Google.




2 You would _
& MFCFL oo Mltmws = CrporamTrasng=  fmry S Legte | ey e
find really
good mndels me rssurces 1 Tamplabes emplaies
here - = sisia
= ' a.am"l
Profit and Loss ‘Waterfall Chart Budget Template
Template Template i
https /fcorporatefinanceinstitufe comyresources ftemplates/excel-modelling/
Hereis a
budgeting
emplate:

= { " = 'y 4 a L 2 e . LR ¥ ] I |
Source https://corparatefinanceinstitute com/resaurces/templates/ex-

cel-madeling/operating-budget/

ol L

All these templates are similar and
relatively easy to switch. Once you get
a grip on financial modelling, you wiill

need only 15-20 minutes to familiarize
yourself with any given template.

All these numbers may look a little scary, for now! But it's just a matter of getting used to looking
at such data frequently. We suggest you go through the different components of a model
Locking at different types of models and their composition will develop your understanding of
how financial models are constructed and put to use. This will also make you familiar and more
comfortable with different templates.

mplates

Mcceliﬁg Te

ancial Modelling | Getting Started with Financial
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Most likely when you start working in a job, your employee will have model that they use. But it
would be a good practice to try and make your model as well. Start from scratch. Add a component
that will meet your scope of analysis. It does not have to be final. You can keep refining it as and
when you want to make meaningful changes to it. The key is to have a tailor-made template that
can help you effectively analyze the company you want. But this won't happen on day cne. This
takes time and practice. Meanwhile, start with other financial models that you see around.
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Assignment for Practice

Please follow these steps mentioned and collect different
“%  financial templates and go through them for both education
and ease of understanding.

There are multiple agendas and types of templates
available like:

Waluation

Loan Amortization

Financial Statement Analysis

Budget preparation

]

5

Next, we look at how to analyze businesses so that we can enter numbers in
the model with a better business understanding.
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Introduction

You have learned the framework required for a financial model. Now let’s
understand the business analysis part.

Financial modelling is both an art and a science. Techniques will help you build
a model, but accurate forecasting demands on good business and industry
understanding.

An important aspect of this activity is to understand the context in which we are
building models. A lot of people make the mistake of forecasting just based on
historical trends. But one needstorealize thatthe pastis not always a representation
of the future. You need to know the environment in which those numbers were
reported. For situations where business, company or industry is evolving, Past
numbers are not good representations. Here, business understanding is necessary
This is what we will understand in this chapter

Modeling | Understanding a Business
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A good model-building process looks like this: .

1 Understand the past. Financial information from the
past helps understand trends from the past and the

performance of the company. This can be used to
__understand the future performancetoo. -

Next, we try to forecast what the business will
look like in the years ahead. This is the tricky part.
The current economic environment, management
commentary, news, and other information can be
used along with past data to estimate a future for
the business that'll be close to reality. However, an

understanding of industry and business helps us
forecast more accurately.

Finally, we value the business using a suitable
valuation technique, based on the forecasted
cashflows.

uﬂders.’rand'mj the busineas and 'mdush*tj context n each
ok these a+aﬂea s vital,

You have to look at {our crucial aspects while analyzing abusiness. Again,
we can have another book to understand how to analyse an industry or
a business. But for our purpose, we will focus on few basic parameters.

Stage
A company operates differently at every stage. '
- N R A :

p
ryzKA Google rmsa
COFFEE ® @ N

RECONNECT Walmart -

. |
moo n5h ne J _9._1;.%!.;5 _"I::IE

AL p P 7,
Startup Smal Companies Large Listed ‘Comf:an\j




Business Model and Competitive Position

You need to develop a basic understanding of how the business makes money and what drives
its revenues. How unigue are its products? Does the company have any cost advantage?

Industry and Capital Intensity

Every industry has different characteristics and growth opportunities. A capital-heavy business
operates differently than a capitalHight business. Also, industry characteristics influence how
the future of compannies in the industry size be like.

Peer Group

Comparison with its peer group helps determine the strengths and weaknesses of a company.
Also, it allows us to carry out relative valuation for the company.

Knowledge boy

A Sood model represents \"EHH‘:' as cb&ﬂj as possible.
And that requires Sood research, Better research wil help
make redistic assumetions and forecasted numbers.
However, it would not be possible to s.md-j every
company in as rauch detail, However, try to understand
the basics of the company and 'trdu&h’:l ateast.

“Good research is not about spending more

hours, it's about asking the right questions.”

Lets understand these in greater detail and once we have this background, we can
finally jump to creating financial models.

ng a Business

Financial Modeling | Understandi
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The different stages OP0

of a Company 333?%'

A company goes through different stages during its life. We will learn about the different
stages of a company and talk about how financial models are is different at each stage.

1uexs mMoonshine

’(‘./ E 2 Startup

A startup is a newly established business. This is the
first stage of any company. At this stage, the founder

& | and their team are just testing its products and the
5 market. Business processes are not established, and the
- business is considered risky and volatile. Many variables

are unknown even to the founding team. Such businesses
are very difficult to model from outside.

Small

Business oo @

A small business is relatively more mature than a startup.
Processes and varigbles are relatively better known is
small business and they generally have more historical
data to create a model.

Google
Large Listed mjﬁ

Companies Walmart

A large listed company gets listed on the stock exchange.
These big companies, have a proven business and have
data to create financial models. However, having said
that, the assumptions we make play a critical part.

Creating a financial model for any stage is very different from any other stage.



Preparing a financial model for a startup,

= . . . . Py

.
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You need to understand the industry it
operates in and understand the numbe rof
other players in the industry.

Only management information (although
never 100% accurate) will help you make
forecasts. Creating models as a complete
outside is extremely difficult when
evaluating startup.

Growth in a startup is
non-linear.

Being a high-risk / high-reward
business, discounting rates can
be as high as 40% sometimes.

H i
Rt . : e

The key is to understand the drivers of growth and costs of the company and to have knowledge
about the industry.

| Understanding a Business
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Preparing Financial modelfor a smallbusiness,

&
-

Here, the management has gone
through a trial and error process and
now knows what is working for the
business. Variables of the business are
better known.

Operations are better managed,
though aren't very efficient.

At such a stage, earnings are less
volatile than a startup and the past
still cannot be relied on completely to
forecast the future.

Management commentary is helpful
and reliable.




Preparing afinancial model for alarge listed comany,

e

Large businesses have been in the
market for a very long time, therefore,
their past data can be used to predict

their performance in the next 5 -10

years.

. Large businesses have relatively

We may observe that a lot of
our future predictions would be
on similar lines as the past data.
However, we need to be careful

if someday has changed.

Management guidance plays a
significant role in predicting the
future cash flows.

stable cash flows (differs by industry).

In our book, we focus on preparing models and valuing these types of companies. Once you get

used to these, you can adapt to almost any type of model.

| Understanding a Business
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Financial Models
for transaction

One of the most common uses of financial modelling is during events like - acquisition,
mergers, JV, etc. Hence, past data is not very effective in forecasting the future. This is creating
ginancial models for transactions.

For exmaple, consider that company A is buying company B, or company A is acquiring company
B. Now, you cannot model company A based just on its past. Given the new transaction, both
companies will behave differently. Due to the recent acquisition of B, there will be certain changes.
Usually, mergers and acquisitions cccur so that two companies can take advantage of newly
developed synergies. The different types of transactions with generalized examples could be:

o
H
F w
# »
] L9
’

. Company A is acquiring
Company B

+=._|

Company A and Company B
merge to form a new entity

called Company C I

: _ Company A sells a part of
X itself to Company B.

impact on its business activities
and its market position. The “Status
Quo” of the company might change
Company B raises funds from depending on the transaction.

other corporate entities. - N e

By . L _. Each transaction has a different

While forecasting the future of a company whose composition has changed, we have to try
and analyse on the newly created business. Revenues may grow exponentially, new assets
may be added and costs may come down. Past metrics and ratios will not work. We have
to create a model for the new business by keeping in mind the business implications of the
recent transaction.



Synergies due to Transactions

Consider that company A is a sponge iron manufacturer and company B is a iron ore mining
company.

Before Company
A merger

Revenues == [ U0 000

Costs =% 50,000

Profits =< 50,000
Company B Company A Steel
Iron Ore Mining + Sponge Iron Manufacturing

Company Manufacturer Cnmpanies
| |
After merger =

Revenues =¥ 1,000,000
Costs =3 20,0007
Profits =73 50,000

Company C Steel Manufacturing |

Company A + Company B Companies
SRR o™ '-q-?#‘-"'
."" :‘f g - :}J
-, . 4

Partial Acquisation Transfer of Ownership Rights

Past data can be used in situations such as partial acquisition and transfer of ownership rights.
The old data cannot be used in the case of a merger and a complete acquisition.

We must be careful while viewing and analyzing companies and stocks because mergers and
acquisitions are an integral part of any business. One needs to understand the synergies
between the companies to create a financial model post transaction.

Modeling | Understanding a Business
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Understanding the Business

We need to know things like:

Basic Industry
Understandlng

Cash Flow
of Company

[ R

Capital Intensity
of the Business

Product




To build a detailed and realistic model, we need to have the right context in which the business
operates. Researching a business and understanding its industry, revenue model, cost structure,
assets, etc. is very helpful, and doing so will help us in forecasting its future in a more realistic
manner.

Having projections on past numbers alone would not guarantee a good model. Such a model may
be far from reality. Qualitative understanding of a business is impaortant if you want to forecast
the future financials of a business. That being said, you don't need to days analysing it. Though
more research = better understanding = realistic model, your aim should be to develop a basic
understanding of the business to start with.

Here are a few aspects you should look at while understanding a business:

Industry Analysis

The !ﬁdu.?::‘]'l‘\j in which a company

operates creates the environrent
for the comi:»antj'?: activities,

We will learn more about how to have a basic understanding of the industry, shortly.

Cash Flow

You must recollect that the cash flow statement records transactions of a business on a cash
basis. A company may be '=aming’ revenues, but is it making encugh cash? Loocking at the cash
health of a business would help us determine the quality of its eamings. Not just health, you also
need to understand cashflow in the industry, investment required, cash generated and soon.

Competitive Position

—

Competitive Position is to understand
a COTﬂPaﬂ‘tj'S position against its
competitors. It evaluates the eroduct,
distribution, brand etc,

| Understanding a Business
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Capital Intensity

Knowing the capital requirements of a company will help you create better financial models.

Capital
Intensity

|

|

Capital
Intensive

Companies of:.eraﬁnﬂ in
infrastructure, aviation,
mirn'lr& etc. require huge
amounts of capital to
run and grow. These are
cafaﬁal nfensivg busingss,

Capital
Light

whie others ke
technoloay or service-
based busineszes are
asset-light as +he3 do
not require as much

ansets o Srou.:.

Let us take an example of Companies A & B, where A is a Windmill Company and B is

a Software Company.

Company A

Thisis avery capitakintensive
business. Initially, we will
have to invest a large amount
of money as capital and
towards installation charges
to just start the business.

SUZLON
Vesias

Company B

This is a software company

that does not require large

capital investments from us

to start the business when

compared to the windmill
industry.

a" Microsoft

o\ Meta



Peer Group

Valuations and performance are mostly relative concepts. Comparing a business to its peers
reveals its competitive strengths and weaknesses. To identify the right companies which are
in similiar business as the company we are referring to are peer groups and is an extremely
important step in creating financial models.

Product Life Cycle

From the introduction to maturity, each product goes through its life cycle. Identifying the stage in
which a company is currently operating would help build a more representative financial model.

The idea is to get a grip on the above factors to model the future of a company as accurately as
possible.

Having built the framework for business analysis, let's now dive deep into
each of the points.

| Understanding a Business
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Industry
Research

Here we want to understand the basics of industry research to analyse a business. We need
to understand basics of industry to help create realistic models. We don't need a very detailed
analysis here. Casually speaking, an industry is a group of similar types of businesses. Industry
research is the study of an industry and its dynamics to understand how companies within it
operate. Lets look at some points that will help us understand an industry better.

Industry Research

Do market winners remain market
winners for long or do they keep
changing?

How big is the market'’s
opportunity?

Market Size

Market size refers to the total amount of sales in a given industry over a year. The more sales and
customers, the larger an industry’s size. The current market size of an industry and its growth
rate determines the future of a business to a large extent. A growing industry means more
opportunities for a business. A declining industry means less opportunities for all companies.

; lxunnm: W Umm:,, |

ttd

, ' fc E M E N T}

Before investing or preparing a Financial Model, D Zuari Cement
we must understand the company along with '\
its competitors and the industry.

Therefc}re we need o IDDk at
competitors such as Ultra Tech
Simultaneously, we need to and Zuari too while analysing JK
have a general idea about the Lakshmi Cement.
Cement industry to know what -
we are getting ourselves into.

Some questions to ask:

* What is the MARKET SIZE?
* How long can the company keep

growing?
* What is the quantity of cement HGW@‘EF for purpose - of ﬂnancral

sold by competitors? modelling, we will not dig too deep
in industry competition. A basic
understanding is helpful.




Overall industry size and also its growth is something that is very important any company's overall
growth. In large industries, companies can grow faster than the industry. In small industries,
industry size starts becoming a problem for growth.

Let us take another example of the Paints Industry. (2 numbers are nypcthetical)

n”\ Assume that Berger, Asian, and Kansai Nerolac
together own 70% of the market and have sales of

2‘1-

Paint Industry Z 17,500 crore compared to the whole industry size
Total value: of about ¥ 25,000 crores.
< 25,000 Crores \/

. . | et
op assanz::ts | @J

FAIMT

NEROLAC

F 17,500 Crores

-

Paint
Industry

We need to understand the point that these companies grow as long as the paintindustry
itself grows. They cannot grow faster than the industry. o vwhen creating 2 model we
cannot assume revenue growth to be faster than industry unless the companies enter
new industries.

Market Stability

Market stability in the context of industnial research means the stability of the current competitive
environment. How long can leaders remain as leader or do they keep on changing?

* Are winners able to sustain piaee [ Yes!
market share for an extended @ The industry is a
period? .5 stable one.

* Can market leaders remain d
leaders for long? No!

» Can past numbers be used to : o:
forecast the future, i.e. is the L ﬁ nstabiity and
industry predictable? o chances of disruption

b\j new entrants,

ng a Business
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AkzoNohel

AlkroNohel

va asianpaints Bp asianpaints

B

NEROLAC

Paint Industry
2010

Paint Industry
2019

Considering the paint industry, Asian Paints has been the market leader for 9 years. There has
been very little change in market share of the comapnies over time. The leaders has remained
as a leader. So, we can say that paint as industry is stable.

SAMSUNG SAMSUNG

Others Others

Smartphone
Industry
2012

Smartphone
Industry
2021

NOKIA

OO0
SONY « Sl
ﬂ motorain S HuawE

Now let us consider the smartphone market. A decade back, NOKIA was the market leader.
However, if we take a look now, OnePlus, Samsung and Apple have grown and won the
market while NOKI4 is nowhere on the list. Even subsidiaries of BBK Technologies like Oppo,
Realme, and IQO0 have become market leaders for budget phones. So, we can say that the
smartphone industry is relatively less stable.

For stable industries, we can rely on the past data to forecast
the future whereas for unstable industries, we can't rely on
past data for financial forecasting.



A product that is highly regulated or has high switching costs for customers often creates a
stable industry. More often than not, companies of stable industries are easier to create financial
rmodels than companies of unstable cnes. Thisis because stableindustries have more predictable

behaviour as compared to unstable ones.

Health of Other
Players in the Industry

Average performers in a good industry
generally perform better than good
performers in average industry.

e

Indicates the health of the industry.

poorly as well.

e e ————

Industry outlook is the prospective future for the industry.
It reflects the industry's growth, potential, risks, trends, etc.

The growth potential must be calculated for the future. Such
understanding helps us understand the factors influencing
the industry's future, whether the cutlook is positive or not.
These will help us form realistic assumptions and thus a
better financial model.

e e -

Industry
Outlook

Major Risks
Growth Outlook

User Behaviour

. Next factor to understand an industry is - the health of other
. companies in it which tells us about the general health of the
industry. Some industries offer decent returns to all players (for
example healthcare), while others (like telecom) reward winners

If most companies in an industry are
financially strong, it generally means
that the industry as a whole is healthy.

| Understanding a Business
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competitive Positioning

Next, we need to understand competitive positioning of a company. The
purpose of such researchis to learn about a business and its competitors
within an industry. It helps us understand which companies are
competitively strong, and which ocnes are not. There are many aspects
of a business that you can research. But most of them mainly revolve
around these 4 pillars:

-------
w

Product Distribution
Innovation _ Distribution Advantages,
Uniqueness in Time to build such

Products and distribution.

Cost |Ji I '
Brand
Advantage )
T Strong Brand with
Significant Cost loyal customer
Advantages basa
- Location, )

Resources, eic.

Competitive Researchtells us about the company's position in the market against its competitors.
It tells how well its products are well positioned, how large is the distribution and so on.

»

l‘v
The success of a business depends on how innovative and unigue the product is; but most
importantly, how well it serves its customers. Try and figure out why a company sells what it sells
and how well it does that. The key question to ask is - can the product be copied by anyone or is

it unigue. Unique products enjoy able average profit margins for long periods of time. Duplicable
products do not enjoy such high margins.

.
H%‘ R -3 p ro d uct

Innovation

Can assume h'E]h
LLLLLLLLL ¥ retumns in the model
for long period

Easier to maintain
market Pos".ﬂon.
Unique Product



/\I + Below auemﬁe or

. @ Diticut to sustain o AESAge. profits

II ! B v

w0 W market share « Cannot assume high
Product that returns in the model

can be copied

for long Peﬂod

We need to check for the uniqueness of the

product or the service.

Does it have any specialty?

Does it have any unique style of

manufacturing, if it is a product?

y * How easy is it for the competitors to copy the
process?

. Does it have a patent or a secret recipe? (like
Coca-Cola)

A unique product ensures a strong position in the market for the company.

<@ .., Distribution
AR N
Distribution is the process of making a product or service available to consumers. The ease

with which a consumer can access a company's products speaks a lot about the company. Often
sales are a direct function of distribution.

Distribution in the modern world can be both, through stores and online. A good distribution
strategy can be a huge competitive advantage for any company.

™Cq 3’nan+a Pare, \TC and HuL eroducts reach
9 ’ =
% o I ' ; the nooks and cormers of india.

W4 1TC Limited
Hindustam Unillewer Limited

A unique distribution strategy can also work wonders.

7Y g0 Dietrisution by Boat alowed
OA them to reach the customers d’uf@.cﬁa.

This later translated into onffline push for the products too.
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How many stores to sell the product of the company?

Does the company have any distribution-related
advantages?

Do they have a pre-existing online market presence?

What are the distribution channels already available for
similar products in the market?

If not, how much time would it take to build a new network?

-

A strong distribution ensures reach for the product and is very difficult for competitors to copy
and get into.

Cost
Advantage

Costs directly determine the margins and profitability of a business. It also allows the company
to sell more if they have cost advantages.

. : Raw materials
Different types of “ ” :m |

costs a company
incurs

Lc::ﬂi‘sﬁca k
distribution costs

SEI'mﬂ & adueﬁ':s'mﬂ
Q.XFQH%E\

Sometimes a company can reduce its per unit cost by increasing volumes. Known as economies
of scale, this happens due to the decrease in fixed costs as a proportion. Being aware of the cost
structure of a company helps us forecast its costs and profitability for future years.

hhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhh

Do they have any significant cost advantages?
Do they have any cheaper labor or raw materials?
Do they have any manufacturing or service-
providing location available at a cheaper cost?

- Do they have any logistic advantage available at
. lower costs?

o o - -

All these factors give an advantage to the company. A good understanding of the company's cost,
how it moves with scale and different factors affecting it - helps us create better financial models.



Brand

A brand is an identity a customer associates with a company’s products or services. Brand is how
a consumer perceives the company and its products. A strong brand allows companies 1o sell
more as compared to a competitor and also at a higher price. Strong brand can be built through

. Fonmra a relationship with chents

« great maﬂ.eﬁqﬁ

+ Prompt after-sales service

« Excelent qualﬂ‘j of products and services

A business with a strong brand can drive sales, command high margins and maintain market
share for sustained periods. Successful companies possess a distinct advantage in at least one
of the above-mentioned areas. Companies that have advantage in the categeries, go on to do
really well.

Their search engne is 3
product so unique and
advanced that it's amost
mpossble for other

companies o copy it

have been abke to build
suct?w a sﬁon brand due to
the reliabii ;'g and credlbl
of their product and cuﬁm&

ed3€ ’rEChﬂok)j\j

Competitive research will help you develop an overall understanding of the company. You can
build on this by industry-specific or company-specific metrics. However, such understanding of
company and its position should be instrumental in building financial models.

- How strong is the brand value of the company?

. Can this strong presence be used in any way to improve
the sales and profit figures?

« How high is the brand loyalty shown by its customers?

b R R

Let's now move on to understand the concept of a product life cycle.

Modeling | Understanding a Business
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Product Life myrem

t-rrﬁlﬁ-fr
Cycle i

Just like we as humans have a life cycle of being born, growing up, living, and dying; products
have their life cycle too. No product is immortal and each product goes through various stages.

Theoretically, a product life cycle is a time from when a product is first introduced to customers
until it is obsolete in the market. The cycle is broadly divided into 4 parts. Every stage has its
characteristics. The 4 stages are:

$
v

L0

3=

N

i

Intreduction Growth Decline

Maturity

>
Time

Introduction (Birth): \When a company intreduces a new product in the market, it is said

L o
« » 10 bein the introduction stage. Here, the majority of the time is spent in research and
& development to develop a good product and test the market. Growth is slow and there

are negligible revenues.

Growth (Acceptance): In the growth stage, the product starts gaining acceptance and we
can see more pecple buying it Revenues improve at a fast pace and the growth phase
can last for weeks or even years.

bl

Maturity (Saturation): When a product reaches maturity, growth starts to plateau. Growth
slows down significantly. Competition starts fighting for market share.

ﬁiﬁ'}
L PPN

Decline (Decline): The |ast stage of a product life cycle, the decline stage comes after
maturity Here, customers have found better or cheaper altematives to the product. The
product starts to become cbsolete and better value propositions come to the model.

Let’s now look at each stage in detail.



Introduction

The introduction phase is the first stage in the product life cycle. A new product is introduced in
the market. Characteristics of an introduction phase are:

= Extensive promotions:
A business spends
huge sums of money
on advertising and
promoting the product
because the goal is not
to make profits right
away but to get feedback
and improve on it. The
cost of acquisition per
customer is high as well.

» Negative cash flow: Such high spending on promotions
and product development results in negative cash flows for

Profit & Loss Statement

Expenses Income

Promotonal ‘ Sakes '\

Expenzsa

businesses in the introduction phase.

Product Development

» High Spend: Initial phases require high experimentation as
a result companies here incur heavy research and product

development cost.

» Low sales:

The introduction stage

is characterized by low
sales and slow growth.
Here, the product is still
in the experimentation
stage and getting refined.

Promotions

Product Devebpre ot
ey

IRIINININIEE

if you are creating a model for a company in the introduction phase, assumptions like slow
growth, negative cash flow, etc. should be reflected.

| Understanding a Business
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G rOWth Rapid Increase in Sales
Product Improvements
Increase in Competition
Increase in Profits
Reduction in Price
Heavy Cash Outflow

inefficient Operations

The growth phase for a product is indicated by custormer acceptance. It is when more
and more people start to buy the preduct and the pace of sales growth picks up.

Characteristics of a growth phase are:
N,

Profit & Loss Statement

Expenses Income

* Growing sales and reduced costs: Customers
start accepting the product Promoticns help the
product reach customers across areas. Costs
come down due to economies of scale. However,
profits are still low since the current aim is growth
and not profits. The focus here is to gain as much
market as possible before competition picks up.
Many unprofitable startups, fall in this category.

Costa ¥ Sakes 'y

Zomato, & food dEInver\:j senvice
company is one ot them.

* Product enhancements: The company is now getting

a lot of feedback because of increased traction. It Snm su N G

works to polish the product further.




* Competition: Noticing the growth opportunities and

success of a product, new companies enter the @ 'l'

market. Competing brands enter the market and

competitive pressure is built. TATA
EV Sector

¢ Cash flow situation: The cash flow in growth phase is still
negative or close to breaking even. This is because exiensive
promotions and product development expenses are being  Tomies E—
incurred whereas sales is still not that high. aker pemppnsa  SREE

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

|
|
[ 1l i

* Operations: Since growth and expansion is fast, the
business may not be able to maintain operations
at the same pace Systems are still inefficient and

costs are not fully optimized. \/ .

| Understanding a Business
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Maturity | sowincresseinsales

Normal Product
Improvements

i I
i I
! i
i Surplus Cash I
i Produced I
: i
' I
: i

Low Investment
Requirements

Low Promotional
Expenses

The maturity phase is a time in the product life cycle when the sales reach a plateau. A company
tapped into most of its customer base and growth rate becomes slow. Characteristics of a
maturity phase are:

= * Slowing sales growth: Here sales begin to level off after
| the rapid growth period. It is because most of the target
l _ audience is already captured. ‘Growth’ as such is not seen.

Product: Since the preduct is already refined by now, few
new features are introduced. Only minor enhancements
take place, such that a differentiated product is maintained.
Product has been built and developed.

Profit & Loss Statement

Expenses

Income

Sales A

* Cash flow: The company has
reached a period of profitability CASH FLOW STATEMENT
now. Cash flow is positive and = =
no major investment spending :ﬁﬁheuww :E;
is required. Companies often _——— = =—

give good dividends during this ~ =——=—

pering. N ==

Companies love the growth phase and always try to delaymaturity as ~ ——=—
much as possible. Some companies keep introducing new features =——===

and products, thus starting a new product cycle. Maturity phase can
last for ages. You never know when an alternative product or industry
can replace an existing one.

-

TRRERRREREE e

reglaced ba

Kodak Camera



Decrease in Sales

Little to no
Promotional Expenses

Positive Cash Flow

Frees up Investment
tied up earlier

The stage in a product life cycle when a product starts to shrink due to decreased or negative

growth is identified as the decline stage. Characteristics of a decline phase are:

* Sales decrease: By this time in the product life cycle, {,4]
competing brands have entered with refined products. ; / I
Customers start migrating to better altermnatives. '
Hence, sales decrease in such a period.

Profit & Loss Statement

Expenszes Income

Saks v

* No new investment opportunities: There are no new
profitable investments visible to the management
around the product. The company is unable to delay
decline with additional features.

. Redly
4 = CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Promotions FIFT
Product Tevelopment  TIIT

* Positive but reducing cash flow: Cash flow is positive —_—
and intact, but it is not growing. The survival of the e —
product is under threat. Here, the company will free up T T
cash from the working capital which they should look to T e
deploy elsewhere L —— —
When creating financial model, we must understand — — i

the stage of company's product and build keeping the
characteristics in mind.

| Understanding a Business
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Capital
Light or Capital
Intensive?

Let's now talk about capital intensity. Capital intensity is the amount of fixed capital and working
capital required to run a business. Every industry hasdifferent capital requirements. Some reguire
more and others require less. We need to understand this while creating a financial model.

Capital-intensive Business

Capital Intensive A company having huge capital requirements to run is a
Business capitakintensive business.

Examples ﬁ adani 0 SUZLON

Forts and

TATA STEEL Lagistics VISEAaRA  indianoi

Features

For example, infrastructure,
energy, manufacturing etc.

: Generally has high debt and
- _ high fixed assets.

A W IRE oY it wil be next to
'nmpoSSHE to pu’r up Equ’nh\j
for entice Fnlm’rf'n':.m&ed.

Ratios Asset Turnover Debt-Equity

Low High

One way to identify a capital intensified business is that

Ratio - Revenue/Total Assets <3



Capital-light Business

- Acompany having relatively lesscapital requirements
Capital Light to run is a capitatlight business
Business = Their capital structure usually has a high amount of
equitylow debt and they do not very high assets
Examples $CDSL rece kgﬂ , (@ sharatre
Features
Found in industries like
technology, services,
marketplaces, etc.
They have relatively less
assets. These businesses
have high operating capital
requirements.
Ratios Asset Turnover Debt-Equity
High Low

Th@:j incur h‘tﬁh Em\:ﬂO\jEE expenses that needs to be tracked.
One way to identify a capital light business is that
Ratio = Revenue/Total Assets > 3

You can see how businesses with different capital structures operate and behave differently. A
financial model should reflect the inherent capital structure of a business. You should forecast its
future keeping in mind its capital intensity and related effects.You should keep in mind the capital
required to grow and adequately provision that in the business.

Let's now explore the seasonality of products and businesses.

| Understanding a Business
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seasonal? gﬁﬁﬁ

Seasonal Business

Affects Cash Requirements
of the company

]
]
]
:
High cash and capacity ;
requirements at the peak !
]
1
1
|

Low Cash and Capacity
requirements at the
other times

A seasonal business makes the bulk of its revenues during selected times of the year.

s ~
/\ Sun Umbrellas, an umbr@lta-makurz?
J l comFantj makes most of its mor'e\j ur’mﬂ

MONS00NS,.

M

Non-seasonal Business

Good and Stable
Cash Flow
throughout the year

Follow regular trends

Evens out sales for
each month of the year

A non-seasonal business is one whose products sell throughout the year. It requires steady cash
and capacity at all times.

Matra) Apsary, Classmate and Mavneet
are some such companies enﬂajed in
non-seasondl business,

Let's now learn about one more crucial aspect before building financial
models - working capital.



Working & Fixed
Capital

The last section of this chapter is about working capital and fixed capital requirements.

The capital of a business used in its day-to-day operations is known as working capital. As per
theory,

Working Capital = Current Assets - Current Liabilities

Short term Assets L Short term Liabiitie s

How working capital and fixed capital impacts
Financial Model?

.............
-

Debt and nterest Schedules

Cash Flow Statements

Aecet Schedules

Our aim should be to know how different factors affect working and fixed capital and how
companies manage their capital reguirements at different times.

You don't need to research too much about each component, just a broad understanding is
enough. Being aware of the factors affecting the working and fixed capital structures helps us
model a business better.

With this, we come to the end of this chapter. We now understand the
basics of industry and business. We can move on to building its financial
model based on that understanding.
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# ZEBRA| EARN

|
L
-]



Creating
Financial
Models

7/



Introduction

¥

) Tip

g

In the last chapter, we talked about the importance of understanding the basics
of the industry and business. Now that we know the background of a company’s
operations, let's get started with actually making a financial medel. From now
on, we will be dealing with Microsoft Excel. It's better to get familiar with Excel
functions and shortcuts before learning how to make a model

The idea of what we are about to learn is to grasp the concepts of modelling so
well that we can create a financial model for any company. Also, we will "Leam
by Doing". We already have downloaded the sample template. Lets now go about
building a model using it.

As we explain the steps and processes of
buudhﬂ a fnancial mode), try recreating the same
model on your laptop/computer. \t's better to 'do
and lkam rather than read and keam.

Financial Mode

| Creating

Jodelling
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Making a model for company valuation has 3 steps:

Sekecting an appropriate valation ree thod,
valuing the comq::aﬂﬁ's shares, and cmducﬁnﬂ a
CONSENSUS anahjaua.

k Hakmﬁ assumptions and

Forﬂcagﬁnﬂ for the future
A l

T—"ﬂimﬁ up historical data J?rcrm>
past x:jeara' financial statements

We have created a template that you can use, find it here:

=35
[=]

The first page of the template looks something like this:
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® o
FI“II'Ig UP the past numbers,
normalizing inputs, and KPIls

Let's start with filling up past data in the template.

Data Source

The first and foremost thing we need to get right is the source of data. Make sure that for
your initial models, you use the original annual report and quarterly results as uploaded by the
company.

Punching in the numbers manually would help you
understand the nitty-gritty of the company financials. We
can see how the numbers have moved aver the years.

Once you get the gist of it, you can move to paid services
like Capitaline and Ace Equity to pull out financials directly
into excel format and work with the same. However, to e
begin with, make sure to punch data manually. et e i s

CAPITALINE 153 ANALYSER

ODATABALSES

ﬂ BRITARMI&

Simple tools like Screener also have export features.

screenernl

Remember that regardless of how you enter data, you
will have to go to each line item and normalize them so
that it stays correct. We will see how to do this, shortly.

Categorize correctly

When we enter inputs we need to categorise line items under different categories. It is also
important to correctly categorize line items in your model. This is done to ensure comparability

over years.
."-ﬁlI
yy P

Profit & Loss Statement

e

P 4

Profit & Loss Statement

Expenses Income Expsnsas Incorme S :
; ; o Sday ingle line
2 ine items Empionge ,ge
wekam 33337 rer

w

You need to categorize each item, in the same way, each year. This means if you have categorized
power expense under the cost of goods sold, that should be the case each year.



screenerl

Stock analysls and screening tool for Investors in india.

2 britannia ®

BAana bt ke L5

Youll £ind it on Screerer.in
b\j Ju&ﬁr +\j:'m3 in Britannia’ in
the search box.

scCregnen! HOME SCREENE ToOLE Qs for-a compar toein
: Z ol w Haiebion)
Documents (
Arlln|1|1c?nfnfs B Tb.lrr:.ual r:epa,ts b ,.n,«f- | on +'h.e Eﬁ+anﬁﬂ iaaﬂe 0";‘
bt - : : Sereener, scrol down to the
i D s . "Documents section,

2019 irg jare

- P e 01 f_/\ Click on _._'lne_ ia-‘-e_g-‘-
Fifta e e 201 iaiing Iﬁnmaﬁ ’EQPDF‘F aﬂd a
Pd’? sl OPF‘.N Mee

We would be using numbers from here as raw inputs for our model. After that, we need to
normalize the data.

7 ZEBRA| EARN
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To normalize, first, we need to remove all one-off items since we need to create the model for the
company only based on recurring line items.

....,
!
T
B
B
]

TATA WEurAnc. e IIIT

ﬁ AIG

i
‘IIIEIIIIII-IIIIIIIIIIIIIIII’II s ARICE

I
I
I
i
neurance Clarn : y—
I
I
I
I

WITH YOU ALWAYS

Firein a Chemical Insurance e o
Manufacturing Company Company R po—

|

|

|
RN

we need to redize that such & caim amount %
13 & one time tem and would not be recened
every uear. Hence, it should be removed £rom
our model, Such profits and losses should be
removed from the income statement,

Profit/loss due to the sale of assets, insurance claims, and windfall gains are an example of
other one-off items. Mext, remove discontinued items.

=
e

W

SO NY @ rans,n

N/

Laptops l | @ Speakers
(X @-

Phones Carmeras

s,
'''''

It s about to 3e+ rid of unProF itable segments in the -.:om'urﬂ Years, \n this
situation, you zhould '!dﬁ&ﬂtj rermove the intormation about those 2 discontinued
aegﬂ€n+s since their impact s not indicative of the comiaawj'% fature,

We remove cne-time and discontinued line items to ensure that the company's past only includes
itemns that will also continue in the future. As a result, past data will more closely resemble future
numbers.



KPIs

Industry-specific data points that further help us understand and track a business are key
performance indicators (KPIs) KPls are quantifiable numbers that indicates how the business
is performing on different fronts. Different industries have different KPIs and they can together
indicate the overall health of different companies.

f j Revenue per room for
] a hotel busineas

Mo, of rooma the hotel haz

%., nNa
Tme seent per user for a
s a social media company

ho. of uzers

These indicators can then be included in the financial model and we can
create forecasts for these KPIs too.

2 things to remember while using KPls are:

Coe )

Selection
of KPIs

The selection of the r5h+
KPis is super important,
For example, an asset-
I'5'h+ +ec'r'ndc&.j company,
revenue per employee
makes more sense
than asset turnover.,
KPle should reflect the
business performance.

L

KPis are specific
ndicators, and its
difficut to £find them in
simple sothware, one
can &ind or derive them
from annual reports,
nvestor eresentations,
and conkerence cals.

N
"

o

Now that we know what data we need and where to get it from, let’s
start entering the line items from Britannia's reports into our model.

—:| Models

O Financiz

Modelling | Creating

atal]
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Filling Profit and
Loss Sheet

Let's continue to build a model for Britannia. We would be entering the financial statements for
the last 3 years. The more data you have, the clearer the trend is. It is common to use past 5
years of financial data. Remember to always use the consclidated statements of any company

since that represents the entire operations of the company.

Let's start with the income statement. We would start entering line items for the year 2027 and

move on to 2020 and 2019. Given below is the income statement as in the template:

Insedt  Page Layoul Fornulas  Data Revew View '-:-‘ Tall e whal pou want o do
e " Cut N - - P P T E— =
> | |Arial =10 = A A == #- |!.. Wrap Taut Accounting
Faste oY
e B I e e A | = = EE B . | H 8o | wmom
- * Format Painter |_| u - -1 = == = = i Marge & Conter N e
Clipkare = Foeit = allgrmest = Musnber m
H1 K. 5]
L3 B c o E F & H 4 3 L |

P e — . = The first item to be enteced
3.::%:; e -—“%—gﬁj_ — . In our sheet is revenue rom
L —— 5oF operations, which is 13136
= crores, You Jus-? need +o
e G COPH that numMser 'E‘Tﬂm the

e W‘__— annual report and paste it

S £ .42

i '_i_:_:Ll_lmgr_mg:?__,ss;% o into the relevant cell of ljour
T SETMERTIMMESEE e +€-mf:4a+e.
 —— T — S ——r— R w—
Mo it e e TR e I RAR | S R —.
Dashewrt | [CAMBANY OB _Hﬂ Imsome Ststomant | GaliGE SRS | GFE | Valulon 1 | \Comis | anes cungais |

You can refer to the comparison picture above. This is a time consuming process, but it would
be worth it. By the end of it, you would have read all the line items. And your speed too will pick
up after doing this exercise 2-3 times. We will manually enter the line items related to past data

in the template.

@ . Tip

Make it a habit to ama‘js mention the currenc
§ e . J
and unite in 3our headtras.



Lomporas S | Swsstay Bepone | Fusncsl s

CONSOLIBATED STATER LML OF PROFIT AL LivS

:I::I :::'p |
- [ |
o arec-u L | | 7 e ik 1
= -3 i
'.:. n [ ]
1
T 5 1
= 1
: In similar manner, as we entered the revenue,
1 we will also add the other line items in the
g Income Statement.
e You can see how we have filled
. in the cost of raw materials,
e i i purchases of stock in frade

i s

and chanﬁe in atock in our sheet
to calculate the gross erofit.
After entering the lire tems for
depreciation and amortization, our
income statement would lock like
the one below.

A22 - S EBIT

L
[}
L

4
&Y | Particulars FY2019 A FY2020 A FY2021 A
6 § Revenue from Operation - - 12,883.00
7 !
8
9

Cost of materials consumed - = 6,502.00
Furchase of stock in Trade - - 1,1G1.00
IExcme Duly i S R e

11§ Changes in stock
i (Cost of Goods Sold

15 Employment Benefit Expenses . . - 52700
16§ Other Expenses 1 : =

17§ Other Expenses 2 5

188 Other Expenses 3 i - -

§l¢] | Total Expenditure i = - 8,153.00 |
200EBITDA .= ¢a 2103600
21} Depreciation and Ammortization = = 198.00
22 |EBIT - - 21,234.00
23 Interest ; : - ... 11000

R [ o P |

Dashboard = Company Overview _ Income Statement | Balance She
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Lorporas Sroww | oty Bepons | Fusncsl S

MOTES TOCOMSOLUMATED FINANCEAL STATEMEMN TS (CONTINUIERS

W WE[ 1 you look at 'other expenses’ in the
S e anoual report; you wil see that it is
e celatively a large number compared to
other items, Retermring to note number

s 35 of the staterments reweals its
e components.
1t I N S R N S e AR TS "
ab derhabes s and s pres s ane| i £ %

1 Euchuding ap plicalic lanes

Companies often incude a large
rumber of expenses in ‘other
expensRs’ We can bredk it down and
mcludElafﬂe exXERNRS md’w'l.dudi':.j inthe
Financial Model, Exgenses ke camiage, |
G‘E'ﬂh’r, adveﬁ'nsirﬁ conversion charges |
. can have their own G‘.ﬂh‘\j and smalier .
expenses we can show as o item -
i ‘other EXPEnSEE'. :

|||||
e s imi e Crroup i scbase kdped om doftin inSadig comctec dury, incoee =,

L all rla sod orher demande of € e (6 March 2000 8y o)

T anipe did bomer o credks or @ 8962 (11 Warch 000 &40 02l

i
i
I
I
I
L
b be oy hygetboarn whieie ussids iy of ey ool [ o i
I
I
I
I
I

D20 - fr | =SUM(D15:D19)+D12

A B G
8 | Cost of materials consumed - - 6,502.00
9 fPurchase of stock in Trade e 16100
10) Excise Duty -
Changes in stock
i Cost of Goods Sold
12| Gross Profit
16§ Carriage, freight and distribution
17 Advertising and sales promotion
18] Conversion charges
19§ Other Expenses
ey} Total Expenditure :
21 EBITDA _ _ 23,509.00
22 _|Depreciation and Ammortization - - 198.00
23 BBIT e e n . 23,702.00
24 |Interest = = 110.00 4
25 |Other Income - - 253,00
kil Profit before Exceptional Items and Tax 24,U?L.Il..l.lﬂ
27 |Exceptional ltems : = =

e T, o L e e B e ¥

| Dashboard | Company Overview i_ Income Statement | Balance She




We also need to ensure that excel formulas in the termplate are not broken while entering the
numbers

The sheet on the previous page is how it looks after adjusting the ‘other expenses’ items:

An even detailed model can be created, but this level of detail is encugh for forecasting in most
cases.

D28 - L 0
A B 5 0

19 Other Expenses - - 797.00

8 Tt Bxpenatore 0 626,00 |
21 EBITDA Bt o o e RSB0000
22 Depreciation and Ammortization b o - %0’
23 EBIT | S - _...23707.00°
24 Interest 1 - - 110,00

24 |Share of loss/profits of associates

2 o 115
31 Provision for Deferred tax :

Other Tax ! - - -
EE | Profit/Loss after Tax - - 24.069.00

34 Other Comprehensive Income . .
Reassesment of defined benefit '

37 Foreign currency translationreserve L . qa00)
& Other comprehensive E - - {2400}

g | Total Comprehensive Income for theyear - - 1,787.50 |
gl | Profit Attributable to common shareholders =~ - - 1,774.50

Lets also enter exceptional items, ‘'share of associates; ‘current tax; and
deferred tax from the report, Remember that al the expenses and tax itfems
should be negative; since +h€3 are reduced from income while arriving at profits,

Also these items are found in the Income Statement durecﬂj. we dont need
to look anywhere else. After fillin ue other comprehensive income items fike
reassessment of dekired benefit, ncome tax related income’, ’Fort?_ﬂn currency
resene, and 'mmorﬁﬂ interest; we would arrive at the erofit atributable to
common shareholders,

We will find all the above items directly in Income Statement. If an item does not exist, than
we can ignore the same.
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Always cross-check your numbers and formulas. Your final profit should be the same as in the
report. It's common to make mistakes. If you see a mistake, try to reverse engineer and figure out
what went wrong.

H %~

D7

ot

43 _'Hu_i'npar q-:l'Sharﬁ__!ssuad‘.
44 Basic
45 Diluted

Come

Forelgn currency fransiation reserve

A

hensive

#DIVi

#DIVID!

mon sike Income Staterment

52

s> T

54 Revenue from Operation

55 Cost of materials consumed
56 Purchase of stock in Trade

Dashboard  [ICampany Sverdiew | [RESURMENGREY ncome

Let’s solve this discrepancy...

Other Incoma i
Profil before Exceptional ltems and Tax

Excepfional tems - - ==
Share of loss/profits of associates |

Mistakes in entering
nurmbers is very
commeon do not worry
if your numbers don't
match.

In the plcture, can
notice that the total profit
we have calculated is

1783 crores; whereas the

company has off iciallg
reported a profit cose 1o

1850 crores,

313,00
2,441 .00

{100
1.00

Profit/Los

Current Tax
Provision for Deferred tax

5 belore Taxation

er Comprehensive income
eassesment of defined benefit
neome tax related income

oreign currency translation reserve
Ciher comprehensive
Profil ta Minarily Interest
Total Comprehensive Income for the yvear

Profit Attributable to common shareholders

:ﬂumhar él‘ Shalu:lssuad: _

Basic
Dilufad

Dashboard [ Eompany Gverdiew _

Income Statement

2,441.00
_{657.00)

1.787 .50
1,774.50

Balance Sh

A very common error
in e:ﬁerinﬂ nurmbers is
the mrDrH Eijn E{Eirﬁ
entered, or amount
omitted, Check for
these,



This is what the actual consolidated proft and loss statement for the year 2021-22 of Britannia
looks like. We have taken inputs from the same in our financial model. We will also use it for

previous years to enter data in the template.

Corporate Overview | Stamtory Repores | Financial Statemenis

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

T in Croves
For ke vear ended Mote 31 March 20211 X1 March 2024
| Revemue frorm operatians
Sale of grods / Income from operstions b 12885 4 11, #4350
Crifiy o perating pevenses o 28310 14555
[ENETHT] 1150835
1] Chiliet Imcome In 3124 Py )
M Tomlinome (14173 1344900 V187E.05
™V Expesdes
ot off manterkals consumed 310ad 0502 33 508408
Punchases of suck-an-ade 31ilat Lisoas 1L19e9r
Chamges 1o mventorbes of finisked goods. work-n-progress  and scodk-n-made 32 371 52357
Exddse duwy
Employee benefis expense 33 HET S8 48649
Floance costs 34 110a0 TR
Deprociation and amortisation expense 4,.5.6 97 55 18451
Other eapenses 35 24733 naen
Ton] expenses 1091560 100608
v Profit before share of profits/ (lossk ol associabes IV 291341 1,860 8T
¥l “Fhere of profind (loss) ol associaies [T [
VIl Proft befose exceptiom] fems and tex (V%) 251422 1.861.11
VIl Ewceptiomal ftems: (Refer note 56) \_ﬂlﬂl .._1?'.-91
IX  Pofit before sax (VT-V 31161 1844 30
X Tax expense:
(%1 Carrend tax 1 [ ) 447 60
¥ Drefierred tax 1% 390 i
fbd 430,710
Xl Profit for the yeur (IX-X) 185090 1503 b
M Crilver m..llmthu,-niiw [ncome
B that weE oot be redacsfiod mbaeguently to st of profic or e
Remoasmrements of the net defined besefit (Habiling}  ssser 50 At
Income-tax relating 10 Bems not o be reclesd fied subsegquently o stacemest of profic or s {0 1.57
tems that will br woldssfied nibsequently b shitemend of profit or loss
Earelgn currency transliton reserye {408 1005
Ortlser comprehensive income (loss), met of tax {15 ¥.12
¥ Taral Comprehescive noms Tnrthe pear (XYY 1 840 % 1 508 7T
Profit stiribumble to: - =i
Lpaaan 1 4K 63
13 1%
183090 1,50 6k
{150 3.0
l Mon-commlling mreress - -
Cribser camnpeehensive ncome for the year 1150 F.11
Toual comprehamsive Ipoome anrribisable
B owners of the Company 156240 1A
Man-conulling mreress (13300 A9 03k
Toral comprehensive inrome for the year 1LE4a 08 1306 T
Enenings per chare {Face valme 077 1 2och)
Buasile: i %] TIAa B
Difured [in 7] TTAD 3834
I ‘Wesghied average number of cquity shares wsed In computlng eormilngs per share;
- Basie 2HLTRG AT 2HLAT A
- Diluged T 00, 190 JeH0,4708 98]
ﬂg&mtamlmg policies 3

hfwmpﬁuyhﬂmnﬂ to the consolidared fmincisl s wiements

il Model

C

reating Financt

-
Lo

i1

ial Medelling

el

we saw that there is a d".scre‘::ant:ﬁ between our model and the
Pro@'m’r rePoﬁed btj the compEany, The best way to sole this error
is to £find the amount of the error, e, the difterence between the
profit reported by the company and our profit as eer 4nancial
model Then look for line items that are of same value or hat the
value of the amount of difference.

Also, if you made adjustments due to normalising, the net profit will have that difference and
that is correct.
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Profit as per our model was 1787 crores and as per company is 1850 crores. So, the difference is
approximately 63 crores. So, we will look for line items around 63 crores in value or 30 crores and

see if we have made an error.

Ad3 - S

i1 .. Parficulars
7 |Revenue from Cperation
3 Tetal Income

Y2019 A TFY2020A FYe02E FY2023 C

15,513.00) [B,502.04)

R

{1,102 00j (073.74)

{1,161 00)

Emplayment Benefit Expenzes

(52.57)

Carriage, freight and distribution

17 |Advertising and szles promotion

18 |Conversion charges

45200
513.00 502,00 soo0  WR can find a line ite.
T R T 797.00 e

Other Expenses

20 | Other Expensea 2

37 crores in the 'chamge in

21 Other Expense 3 . - - stock' i item and notice
22 Total Expenditure +h

25 EBITDA at we had entered the
24 Depreciation & Ammonizatien Murmbe : ;

25 EBIT 1,557.72 ) v ‘"'E’—jafhlfﬁ instead
26 Interest (5.09) (75.50) {11080 O'F PGSVHVE.
PEACHEEIOING, e s

22  Profit before Prior Poriod Hems and Tax 1,860.22 :

29 |Exceplional ltems - (17.01) {06y - 3

30 | Share of losslprofits of associates 1.00 1.00

51 ProfitlLoss before Taxation 1,768.64 1,843.65 . 2,390.15 266544

32 CUIeMtTaX e (299.78) 4Tl (Bllq) 80T 6TT.21

33 Provision for Defered fax (12.69) (3.01) (5.00) = i

OCther Tax
35 ProfitLoss after Tax
a6 Other Comprehensive Income

34

(4.0%) {5.50)

38

1.43 157

39 Foreign Currency ranslation resene

6.50 10.05

ap ltemn#4

4 little difference is fine since we have not entered decimal
values in each of the line items and these will done due to

rounding off errors..

!

wil notice the £inal profit
Nurber chang&s to 184
crores; which is close +o
the rumber reported and
therefore, the company
eported and erofit as
PEr template match,

Ater correcting if



EPS (Earnings per Share)

EPS = Net Profit / No. of shares outstanding

72 Total Expenditure

22 EBITDA

24 Depreciation & Ammortizztion

25 EBIT

26 Interest

(151.29)

{0:00) (11050

27 Other Income

28 Profit before Prio
20 Exceplional lte

206.45
1,i70.48

31300

30 EShare of lossiprofils of associates

31 ProfitiLoss before Taxation

32 Currant Tax

(509.79)

Provsion for Delemed tax

33
34 Other Tax
55 ProfitiLoss after Tax

SS Other Comprehensive Income

(12 69)

1,157.04

37 Reassesment of defned benefit

38 Income tax related income

3o Foreign Currency franslation resene

40 Itemn #4

41 Total Comprehensive Income to common sharg

42 Minarity Interests

bitu)

266

43

44 Number of Shares lssued:

45 lElasic

46 Diluted
47

a8 fEarnings per snare :

49 Basic

so Rilied

51 Dividends
52

| Dashooard |

Lefs now get done with
the pﬁr‘dir:uj ine items on
the income statement,
ke €inding the number of
equ'n‘tj
Per share. we can easi
fiod it at the end of the

income atatement reported

b’j the com‘:érﬂ.

However, if you don't find it there for previous years, you can always find it in the notes to the
statements or use the 'Find’ function by pressing on 'Ctrl + F' while on the company annual report.

Knowledge Bos

numbers of

in the past. A company

shares after such

Basic shares are those shares issued by the compeany
also issues options to Ernplox:jees,,
investors, or other stakeholders. Diuted shares are total
options are alko added to
basic shares, Both basic and dinted EPS is to be calcuated,

shares and Eam'inja

Bt

o sl

Creating
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In the comparison picture below, you will find a slight difference between the EPS value in the
company's annual report and our financial model. This is because the company has used Total
Comprehensive Income’ to calculate its EPS while we have used 'Profit Attributable to Common
Shareholders’.

Clipbaard = Fanit =
Copperats Overview | Suomnory Bepons | T bl e e
" " ST I 2 pNEN] =
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT GF FROFIT AND LOSS
tmipse £ s [ e O E_
= TH e St ke bR 151 EI— oymant Eanam Expar T I Lo TR ST __@sz_
i ':t_'j: karaa 18 Earninl freght and :Ir-:lr:l:ulun L SEaod g0l fREO0 T
ot B . e i 17 ‘Advertsing and soles prometion o0 ATREG g STaW
O bt bl 5 Vi Tl m 12 Conversion charges R _5'_“_-51'___ e
o T s 10 | Dbhar Expansan FE J50.040 WIne ST
i i s i s e e
Parckperol s -u-»-m_M N I Hi "'1?°|" ||:J 2o OherEpenses = ____________T - ©$ =
T -+ B s b - il il i 1 418 E 3t oterBoenees 5
1 ﬁ;; ! 27 Tokd E
. T ETOR T
. —wfpm o imma s Deprenaions anmondnen hast, s, 4ot
m ) T3 Sl ' _1_-:_:':_6
o Bni i =
s L Y=l SN
" T i T Ham
v ~ns i
- LI THE
Tawm i =
30/{Enare o inasiras of assooarEs
i s L
R Py - e 15 31 [Profiloss befors Takation
i et mellummila
B [ a— 33 Fiosion for Dafamad s T
ey, ERoueim T T
prpern forr 33 FrofiLoss sfer Tos.
e e 35 Othex Comprahansivelncome R
¥ 7 Reasssement of Qefied nengf B N N T
& — 3 /incomy . ialodincama_ DO S e
i Lt 30 Fais0n Cumency anslaikn esene | 6o e pan
" : War i . ':“' T
T4k wh i
o' 5 Lol e oo UL
: TG TR T
et e e e
| =" '} = —
- e e e i e e e e e S—
it -
(2] " o o i Ll - Pt Bl o Dimikn
T
[Ty T —w—— T S Pl W Biadi e —
Fraram =
e et 4
Seaberrib e gy P it e £ Ttk migllp [
e e el $ idlemrricath
[ vl ke AR Tited
Pl el s .
Dt - 37 b 221 D X1 A 3001

: _ IHDGH;I Sratasneat

No normalization was required while entering statements for the year 2021 since there were no
one-off or discontinued items. But remember that if there are such items and we remaove them,
the numbers on our sheet would not match those onthe company's annual report. And that is fine
till the time you are normalising statements.

+ We suggest that you take a pause and enter the numbers for the previous 2 years by yourself
to accelerate your leaming curve.

* You can compare it with ours in the next chapter.

+ Companies usually report financial statements of the current as well as the past year in one
report. Hence, you can get data for 2 years in the same place.

We hope you have followed our advice and entered the
numbers for FY ‘20 and FY ‘19.



Adding the numbers this time would have been an easier process. After
entering all these; this is what your statement would look like:

N32 - 1Jx i
| I
. i ! B C D !
5 ! -
(Y | Particulars 2 : FYZ021 A i
T B Fewenue from Operation NA5400  1,53300 1313600 1
& § Taral Income | SEEREE BESSES i I
9 N Coct of materids soncumed C[ESRO0)  (EAnLIE] [EEO200 :
10 f Purchasze Hnangy pvaTe L6101 :
11 B Exnvize Duty : = 7 5 '“Hmh*‘l"”F““hiﬁﬁ“*"“'ﬁ"h“mﬁﬁ_”'_*h
12 B Changes In stoik : Lt 11| ardatd] SOl LY

13§ Cost of Goods Sold '
14 § Gross Profit -
15 REmployment Benelt Bxpenses ' seran BRtOn i * The revenue &rom operations,
16 EOOO0 | ¥
17 ing ard zales promation 50100 47R00 45200 ; {:051- IDJF mamrﬁig CD["IE:UTY"I'Ed;
18 B Corwersion charges Blan RS0 BEALN . -y
3§ Cither Erpenzes Enn T FEAnn 770 : T’U‘L‘C‘H&EQE D‘F stock-in ﬁadﬁ,
Oither Enpense 2 I - 1
| : Ch&r&&& in mveﬁor&
Total Expendivure e : . EKC\E‘E duw
EBITDA : 1 .F' 4
H8 Dleprecialion & Ammartization : HE1E8) [154.81] 1 - Em =4 bene \T € nse
e e | ETPOURE benedit expenses
i T ., = Depreciation and amortization,

8 Otherincome i 2NEAS 2ra4n
Profit before Prior Period ltems and Tazg g ird 0 F R el
Excepricnal bems 1 5 {70 &N
Ehare of losslpiofis of azsaoites ;
Profit!Lo=s=s belore Tasation 176951 184265
2l Curtent Tas £ [maaga)  (sTEd]
5 Frovizion For Deferred Lo (253 (.01 [5.30]
Oither Tax B - . -
o8 Profitiloss after Tat - 115704 123295
: pr
Fieassesment af defire
Incorme bax related income
Forign Curraney hanslaicnraserne
Item #4

Total Comprehensive Income to sommo

5 « Finance costs, other income,

i = Exceptional items,

E » Shares of profits in associates,

1« Current tax, deferred incorme,

E - other taxes, other comprehensive
]

(ROTAL]

enefi|

. e L G5l
143 167 il 4] InCome,
. Foreiﬂn currency transiation,
- H'mor'ﬁrtj nterest,

R 1005 [L0d)

116080 1,300.07 1,049.92 |}
ABE ana Al

Plinorty ntere==
18 Mumber of Shares Issued- = FPFC)‘C'I+ aw!bu+abﬁ +D none-
T = sinesior g controling owners and number of
Lo - shares issued, )
Basic | 4833 818 7686 N -
Diluted | 1829 L1 [
Dividends {35438 (432 53]
Ready % Accessibility: Investigate
T 'AA didn't have an exceptional tem, But FYlo and FY24
did 20, we woud normalize this ine item and remove
exceptiondl items for Y 20 and FY '24. After this ¢

our Prcrq ts would be E.I'Bhﬂj different fom those reiaorfed
in the annual report,
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Medelling | Creating Financial Models

Corpuie Cverview. | Sanniory Bepusns | Vel Sam s

MEVTES TO N SOLIRATED FINARC 1AL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED

i Crores

Wer tha year endedl 1 Mok 2021 31 Mancs B0
(T i
15219 17T
Bent [Befer rmte 37 (ail Jagd AT
Brpaims ol unisraanr
= Pt end eopedpeecsi (al Nr EES 1
- Btk (a} L] w
- e 1.4 STLT]
BT o 4
Rao sl e ) 814 8
g beghe snd s baicn (L8] [N
Amlord wimmmemtion (hi
- hudai dren 145 (B0
Other wervies g in
= Dnpestses e fraberaed o LR E]
Corpomiie social mapoiedbility [Befer oo +1 3540 s |
Adsyresing and sales prsmien <
Ceavemicn clanges
Alrwanre fordimalehal e b sl usig, e oy
Micellin s 41111
TATINT
ad inacimlen snymes and s cossmed CE]
Abd o luad g gl vl o
L e e e e

61 Coniingent Hahiliesa:
(al  Cloinm { demands against the Gaoup nat s koo = drbin ircludiing excime dhait; fecnme g,
sles ta il Tronke sl vfier desnanes o 390 49431 Manch 2000 T 0105}
o Famik guaramies and lemer ol oredin far T 8402 OO Maxh 2000 T 48905
.
il Cowmingeum L B i losed a bu g pracse 1) puessile ] igesa e s s Beiliny of visd ol
it the ohligasom s e
The shove doss nol inciads sos-quaniibsbl mfamnil fepu s sid aiber logal dapuis sending

we wil now enter the carmiag,
aduEr’r'E;lrS & sales promotion,

# ZEBRALLCARN
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COPNVETSIon ch&rﬂee,, and other
expenses ke we did for FY.a4.
Lets have a look at note number
35 to 3e+ a deeper 'msuﬂm into
these ine tema,

s w4 o] 510
b ol Fetwary 3019 Rl passed o g

isrepreialive setes whidip o e edpe L] =
s ot the b ek, the il ke @ ssivalrle prowishos lor grovklamn Nl
woninbmion distmg the sl e T Conpuany wifl crahmin m psiicn sd uplais
¥ s, Al gecuivel on Teceiv g nles Cariny on de 2ityer], THe Compony (0cs 04 e
arry il trapuch o ihe aaee
(i) Commiments:

Vah Fatermbvd aism it o vuisracts sesmaising, bn b earviried po egilal st ol s preed el b
LENEEFRREEVESS (TRE SRS AL ]

M30 = [ I

f A | B C |
L Employment Benefit Expenses i 24100 AE7.00 |
16 | Carriage, freight and distribution 55300 500,00
17 | Advertising and sales promotion 501.00 47500
18 | Conversion charges. 513.00 50800

19 Other Expenczes
20 | Other Expense 2 - -
21 Other Expense 3 = =
22 Total Exponditure

73 EBITDA 1,735.00

24 Deprecition & Ammorization [(1671.82) .

= EBIT 1,573.12 The total ﬁ°€1+ we
26 Interest (3.09) . (76.90) obtain stands at
27 Other Income 206,45 279.40

28 Profit before Prior Period items and 1ax 177048 18602 ----=0 RS43T.56 crores,

20 | Etceplional ltems £ (i S LthlCh = the Sami as
30 |Shara of loss!profits of associates (0.97) 048

31 ProfitiLoss before Taxation
32 Current Tax
23 | Provision for Deferred tax

the annual report,

(589.78)  [(447.59)
i12.69) 3oy 0
54 OtherTax z E

1,157.04 139295

35 ProfivLoss after Tax

Repeating the same process for

26 Other Comprehensive Income 1 .

57 Reassesment of defined benefit (4.09) [6.50) : the mc_r:}me Statemen_t Of FY 201 9'
38 | Income taxrejatzd income 1 157 you will be ready with historical
29 Foreign Currency franslation ressrie 6.50 1005 : income statement data for the

Britannia financial model.

fil
Idil | Total Comprehensive Income to common share




Always remember these points while
filling in past numbers from any
income statement:

Make sure that al ‘exf:ense'
tems and outflows have a

f"fe.jafwe 5'130.

Al ‘ncome’ items and inflows
have a positive 551*1.

Check your template's
profit with that of the
companys official profit
as eer the annual report,
unlees You have made
charzﬁe.s for normalization.

< IS

=

"h

The first year always takes the most time while entering raw data
from the annual report. But as and when you get familiarized with
the line items and nature of numbers, it gets easy.

Next, we will enter the numbers for Britannia’s balance sheet.
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Filling
- Balance Sheet

T

I
I
I

g b

(51

= Now, we will be filling up line items for the balance sheet. The process is quite similar to the profit
and loss sheet. In the consclidated financial statements, scroll down to the balance sheet for FY
_ 2021. All figures are in INR crores. Here is the consolidated Balance Sheet for the eyar 2020-21
2 from Britannia's annual renort

Eritannia Industries Limited Anrnal Report 2020-21

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

Ein Crores
Asat Hote 31 March 2021 3T March 2020
1 Assels
1 MAG-CEIFRRT S5 18
fah Property, pllnlaurl equipment 4 163430 171637
[{] Cnphlwurh—{u “prugress 4 116852 355
) Tnvestment groperty 5 B421 la.47
f Goodwill 6 13500 13807
(e} Other intnglble assets [ B854 837
iff Investment in assoclates T 1 1,48
(g} Financkl assets
CfF Investments 3 128515 1281 08
(i) Laans recefable ¥ 74,58 201.95
CED Ocher fimancial sssets 10 3013 3133
(h)  Deferred tax sssets, {neth L] D66 19,56
(1 Income-tax asses, (e I TLB4 6877
Oy Other non-curment assets 11 il _105.08 75
Tetal non-current assets 358010 4,167,346
{1} Current assets
(a)  Inventorles 12 L0149 THLIG
(b Financlal assets
(r  Iovestments 13 130325 Lo0a Ty
() Teade receivables 14 ISTRT 32038
(DY Casland cash equivalents 1% 14274 £121
(k) Bank balancss other than (Rl above 1% GRG0 4142
(v} Loans recetvable 16 Q4656 L1101
(vid  Other financial assets 17 mriG 22975
() Cther current assets 1] 13201 14117
Total current 1ssers 4419068 3074097
Total msseis — BOETE _T.B42.23
1 Equity snd Habilldes
{17 Equity
(&) Bquiry share capital 20 00 24.0%
(k) Cther equity n____ 3sast _4378.78
Equity attribotable to equity holders of the parent 1,947 60 4 0LES
Nen-conwolling 1semess 3034 3303
Total equity 3 368400 443648
{20 Lishilities
(A)  Don-current Habilites
(a)  Financlal labilites
r  Borrowings 22 T4.T3 TH6.06
(i Crher financial Rakdlies 23 3407 .
by Deferred tax labilites, {nen (1] 81650 11680
Total non-current lisbilities #1051 Br3.20
(B} Current liabilities
(a)  Fimanclal labilites
(1} Borowings 24 1,330 43 T4T 54
= () Trade payables 5
(o) towl owstanding dues of micrn enterprises and small anterprises 2844 443
L bl total ewswnding doss of cediters other than micrs enterprises and siall entarpiises 128631 145847
-:J: (il Other financial Hakbilites 26 5600 31131
[l (b} Other current Habilities 7 14054 150.08
1 (£} Provisins 28 38747 27300
i) Corvent wx labilides, {me L4 Ti08 4778
q Tortal current Habilities 301427 T 3TH.
ﬂ Total liabilites | 442478 340175
m Total equiny and labilites £O08TE _r.B41.23
w Significant acconnting policies 3
N See accompanying notes o the consolidated financhl statements
A wne sare wanarr af roran dasa asranhed
N
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Lets enter different parts of the Balance Sheet in cur model referring to the Balance Sheet on the
previous page. All amounts are in INR Crores.

Current Liabilities

* Hecounts payablke would b2 a sum of 1286 + 28 = 134y

* Here, 1286 is total outstanding dues of crediors other than micro enfergrises and
smal enferprises, 28 is total ou’re,’rarwdmﬂ dues of micro and smal enfererises,

+ Short term bormowings woud ke 4339

+ other current labiities would be 3 sum of 356 + f4o = Y5

* Short ferm provisions would be 383

* Since there are no other current liabiities, we wil replace that line items with
‘current tax labiities ot 36

* Total currént liabiities is the sum of all the abowve. LE obtain a sum of 3644, similar
to that reported in the Annual Report,

e e s mm o wm s o

—l

/.

ZEBRA

LEA R MW

FY2019 A FY2020 A FY2021 A FY2022E FY2023 E FY2024 E

=R Particular FY2025 E
31y Other items 3

3z Total Non-Current

2,115.46  4,167.46

3.57247 357703 j584.61 3586.59

TV R TR RN O 37002 1093158 1254045 1445365
a1

35! LIABILITIES & EQUITY

36

37 | Accounts Payabla 14051 1,115_2811,314_?5 142816 163049 159237 dsiiod
38 | Shori-Term Borrowings TR AT OO R R0 49N AN AT AN AT T 39040 1 35049

39 § Other Current Liabilities 36442 46199 § 49655 epi43’  £9384 0 B3T.B1 . BRIOT
40 | Short-Term Provisions 19651 19126 | o747 387.47 30747 367.47 38747

41 [ Cumrent tax Liabiltios 79496 4778 7608 7608 7508 76 08 76 08

4z § Governmnet Grart 071 - - - - - -

43 | Tolg ent Liabilites RELAN R e 575060 393623 0 413256  4337.08
44

45 Long-Tam Debt 6192 7RE.06 | 74776 FAT TR TAT 76 TAT 76 74776

46 | Defered Tax Liahilties (Met) 387 12.69 569 559 5.69 8.69 i.69

7 | Other Long-Term Liabifties R e 654§ 4078 407 S407 aor 407
4& §Long-Tam Provisions 1145 13.16 -

43 § Other items = = = -

50 R Cther ltems = 2 = =

51 | Total Non-Current Liabilities 810.51 §10.51 810.51 B10.51

sz | Total Liabilities A ERR A1 A TARBN i GAE AT EAITEG

Non-current Liabilities ¢----------- :

* Financial borrm'm\ﬁs of FuF,
+ other financial iabilities of 54,
» Deferred tax iabiities of 9 (rounded off),

* We obtain a fotal ok non current labiites as #o, same as that on the amual report.

Total liabilities (sum of current and non-current) is 4424.78

# ZEBRA| EARN
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®
i Share capital is 2y,
|+ Resenes and surplus of 353,
k2 H’nﬁor'ﬂs nterest of 36,
, * Total equity stards at 3584,
I
|
i
P47 N k&
il S T I E o om0 a
i
| [Britannia LTD | y/
-||I |
2: Balance Sheet EEE,[_‘,::
3‘Ii|]n TR Crares) | LEAR N
q |
B Particular FY2020 A FY2021 A FY2022E FY2023E FY2024E FY2025E
71| Other items 3 -
54| Total Non.Current Assats 201548 416796 258910 e XiE el T I
33| Total Assets _ 937902 1093156  12.649.45 14453 65
34 i
a5 | LIABITITIES & EQUITY
3 |
38| Accounts Payable 1414051 111628 131475 142815 153949 169237 184104
38| Short- lerm Horrowings N T T e T T T 7 T O G BT )Y 1 B 1
a4 | Other Current Liabilities [ "3pd 4D AR199  AGRGE T EJ448 ~ L3 B4 T BITE1 T BYIOT
40| Shor-Term Provisions [ "19851 19126 3mr 47 38747 3BT AT 35747 3BT AT

43j___GD\'9mmnBt Grart E 3 - :
-ii]’j Total Current Liabilities 376560 303629 41329 433708

ad | |

45| Long Tem Debt [""@1082 7he0s 74775 74775 JATTh 74776 74715

48 | Dafared Tax Liabilties (Met) | J:BT 12.69 B.6Y9 B.50 B.59 8.69 4.59

4‘.: Other Long-Term Liabilities | 2T 46.54 54.07 5407 54 07 54.07 5407

“a| Long-Temn Provisions A R R S O R AR TR
49 | Other items | . e =

5| Other tems . !

g10.51 g10.51 810.51 810.51
456611 474680 494347 514759

838,45 81031

240075 4,424.78

51| Total Non-Current Liabilities
55| Total Liabilities
54| [

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ PR IETET) IO O B
g5 | Reservas And Surplus | 423922 437878 E3.62357 | 4.753.75 612563 74683 0256 91
57| Total Shareholder'S Equity 4.403.83 477784 6514472 Far0.92 928100
55 | Iinority Interest 36.34 36,34 3634 3634
55| Total Equity 4681418 618606 F 0726 931734
e0 | Total Liabilitie 938030 1083286 1265073 14 46493

Y

Y

The sum of liabilities and equity is calculated as 8008.78, which
should be equal to the total assets.

T 800878

&1

We have entered the current and non-current liabilities of the balance sheet for FY '21. Let's now
complete the balance sheet by entering of current and non-current assets. In the consolidated
balance sheet, scroll down to the balance sheet for FY 2021.

All figures are in INR crores.



Current Assets

ate can be renamed to other firancial assets rE.corchrH 293,

[ ™y

In our sheet, the total

of current assets would
be 4419, vs. 4414 as in

the annual report. This
slight difference is due

to rounding error.

In our sheet, the total

of current assets would

be 3586, vs. 3589 as in
the annual report. This

slight difference is due
to rounding error.

9

\ = Cash and cash equivalents would b 442,

L+ Bank balance would be 6.

i+ Current investments would be 138,

1

L Accounts receivable would e 25%

] Short term loans and advances would be 6.

|+ other items on our temgl

I« other current assets would be 422,

' * vestments would ke 1409,

Particular FY2020 A FY2021 A

6 | Assets —
7
& GaShNﬂGasthumalents e
g | Bank Balance 41 62 GRG0
10| Curentvestmert e B 100877 § 138325
11 | Accounts Recejvables 320 36 2RE.27
12 | Inventories 740 96 1,091 49
13| Short-Term Loans And Advances & 111041 § 946.56
14| Other Curent Assets 142147 307 T6
15 | Other Financial Assets e I 12204
e, Otherflems 2 . . o JEEE : i
17 | Other Current Assats 3 - -
12 | Total Current Assets
13
20| PPE, Net 1,?153? 1.634.30
21| Other Intangible Assets 837 B.54
22| Capital Wark-in-Progress b b b 116.52 |
22 | Investment Property 14.47 14.21
24 | Goodwill on Consolidation 138.97 135.90
5| Long-Terminvestments . R..188288 4 1,385.15
26 | Deferred Tax Assets (Met) 19.56 B1.50
27 | Leng-Term Loans And Advances 20295 74 58
22| Investment In Associates 1.48 228
w | Other Financial Aecate 31.33 20132
30 | Other Non Current Assets 11123 10598
it | Other items 3
32| Total Non-Current Assets _A4167.26 3,580.10 |

| TotalAssets . ______ 7,342 23 B,008.78 |

E Dashboard R
®
Non-current Assets

"Properfﬁ plant and equipment would be 1634,

CaFHaI wotk in pro
\rwvestrnent FroFErhj
Goodwil would be 435,

L term ivestments would be 4385, You can
add imvestment in associates (2 crores) to the =

s would be #6.
would be 44,

line items, cumulatively represented as 1384

\nfarﬂibla assets would be g,

Income Stater

Loans and advances would be 3,
other fnancial assets would ke 3o

(renamed).

Deferred tax assets would be 1o,
Income tax assets would be 72,
other non curmrent assets would

be Job.

All these numbers are obtained from the company reported Balance Sheet.

Total assets (current + non current) are calculated as 8002,
which is equal to the total liabilities and equity.
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Mote how the total of assets is equal to the total of liabilities and equity. You are free to add more
line items if you wish to dissect numbers further. But remember that your 'total’ of the utilities and
equity side and the assets side must be same.

@ lip
i Assets = Liabiifies + Equity

Just like you filled the income statement, we would urge you to fill up the balance sheet items for
FY 19 and FY '20; and check your model if Equity + Liabilities = Assets. If they don't match, we
are making an errcr.

Here is a summary of balance sheet line items as entered by us for FY '20. We have used the data
from the right column of the annual report of 2021, that pertains to FY '20.

Current Assets

* Investments would be Yo,

= Current investments would ke 4oo8.

* Bccounts receivables would be 320,

« Short term lbans and advances would be 14o,
= other cumrent assets would be 442,

» other financial assets would be 230,

* Cash and cash equivaknts woud be &.

* Bank balance would be 4,

e e m e m e ————————

FY2020 A FY2021 A FY2022E FY2023E FY2024E FY2
B N s o s S S R S B B e
-".
& | Cash And Cash Equivalents _ 81.23 14274 148038 293118 445980 61
9| BankBalanre . . RS GRS 08060 6860 o BReD 1
10 | Current investment 1.008.77 TadaEt . 130325 1303 25 138326 13
11 | Accourts Receivables Je20.26 20127 37253 37248 388.41 4
R i 140,96 109148 102645 112271 127846 13
12 | Shori-Term Loans And Advances 111011 946 56 945 56 845 56 046 .58 g
12| Other Gurrent Assets 142 17 297.76 197 76 307 76 397.76 ]
15| Other Financial Assets . o..n22808y Aol 1220 2o a2
16| Other tems 2 - - - - -
17| Other Current Assets 3 - - - - -
12| Total Current Assets 3,674.97 1.419.68 580655 T 35455 o054.84 108
T |

Total current assets stand at 3673 vs a figure of 3674 in the annual report; a
slight error due to rounding difference.



Non-current Assets

*. Property elant and equipment would be 1316,

other in arﬂiue assets would be &,

. CaFHal work in progess would be 39,

* \rwestment Froperhj would be 44,

* Goodwil would be 139,

* Long term investents would be B84 Ot includes investrments in associates of 2
crores),

Loans receivable would be 203,

» other francial assets would be 32,

* Long term assets would be &8,

» other non current assets would be W,
* Deferred tax assets would be Jo.

* other non current assets are 4,

20 | PFE, Net 1.746:37 163430 160667 1508.07 1.581.63 15
21| Otherintangble Assels ga/) ... 8564  15b44 16860 18262 1
22 | Capital Work-in-Progregs 29.55 116.52 116.52 116.52 116.52 1
23 | Investment Property | 14478 14 21 14.21 14.21 14.21

24| Goodwill on Consaolidation L 128970 ... 19580 o =, —
25 | Long-Term Investmenis 188208] 138515 138515 138515 138515 13
26 | Deferred Tax Assets (MNet) 19 56 g1.50 81.50 g1.50 81.50 I
27| Long-Term LoansAndAdvarces . 200068  JABY  TALE 7468 TASB
32 | Investment In Associates B 1.48 229 229 229 230

23 | Other Financial Assets 3133§ 30.13 30.13 30.13 30.13 :
30| OtherNonCurrentAssets . L. 111238 10688 10598 10698 10888 1
31 | Other items 3 = =

{52 Total Non-Current Assets 4.167.26 3.509.10 BRI BIfE s 3,094 61 3.5
33| Total Assets o 7,842.23 RGN 937902 10931.58 1264845 144

Total non current assets would be 4167; which matches the annual
report figure.

Current Liabilities

T * Short term bormrﬂa would be 3,

i * Bccount Faﬂabiaa would be 446,

I Aad A

i * other current liablities would be Usd.

1 S

i = Short term provisions would be 44,

I - & =

i ¢ Current tax liabiities woud be 48,

'+ Totd current fiabiities stand at 2565.

Bsi i
[ | FY2019 A FY2020 A FY2021 A FY2022E FY2023F FY2024E  FY2025E P
b

®

57§ Accounts Bayabis T4 51 16 BN 13475 149815 1 E30 48 189937 184704

sef§ Short-Term Borowings N 7610 § r4r 390403342 133342 133342 133342 133342
23 | Other Current Liabilities 36443 | dg190) 40655 £oga8” a3 a4 63761 7 69307

an | Short_Tarm Drovisions R EECTT M  RTY ) ST W7 AT IRT AT

41 | Curent tax Liabiities 736 8 4iel 508 75.08 75.08 76.08 7608

42 Governmnet Grant 0.7 - - - - - -

s3] Tota cnt Liabilities 185141 256530 3,614.27 NI IETE Pl B REvL I el T
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= Non-current Liabilities

T . Lorﬂ termn debt would be 3654.

. * other long term fabiities would be us,

— [] b "

1 * Deferred tax liabiities would be 43

= I - -

= ' * Long term provisions would be 43,

5 ' = Tota non current liabiities stand at 838,

. i |
Il Paricula | FY2019 A FY2020 A FY2021 A FY2022E FY2023E FY2024E FY2025E

K 45 | Long-Temn Debt Igiez N Temoel AT TS 7aT s 74T TS Tar s TS

45| Deferred Tax Liabilties (Met) [T T 359 B9 559 8.69 869
47| Gther Long.Term Liabiitias ST T T E4 07 Ei 07 £ 07 5107
45| Long-Temm Provisions IR CH R 5 . = > .

43| Other items | - - - - - = -
to | Other tems | = = Bk i = = =
51 | Total Non-Current Liabilities 810.51 810.57 810.51
5z | Total Liabilities 4 74530 434347 514753

[

Equity and Liabilities

* Share capital is 24,

* Resenes and surpls are 4378,

Hinority interest is 36,

* The total equ‘nhj Cala-ﬁ with mhorﬂ:j interest) stands at ulazs,

.HT.____________.
L]

FY2023E FY2024dE FYXE5E

g4 | Shareholder' S Equity:
55| Share Capital
56 | Reserves And Surplus

2403 24.05 24.09 24.09 24.0% 24.09 24.09
4378 18) 3.523.57 475375 G125.63 704683 5256

=7 Total Shareholders Equity | 425335 " 4.402.83 A TR AT T BT BEA G
55 | Minonty IMerest i 260 ) dc.62
. 3 443848 3, 6 7.707 26

G580 3070 6 e e T

The total assets and the total liabilities each stand at 7842.

Other than a slight rounding error difference, we have been successful in entering the balance
sheet data for FY 20 in our financial data.

You can now fill in the FY "19 line items as well, the process is the same. This way, we will now
have the past data entered for the Income Statement as well as the Balance Sheet We have
entered past data into the model for 3 years, but the same can also be done for 5 years.
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Filling in the Cash Flow
Statement

Mow, we will enter the line items for the last part of financial statements, the cash flow statement.
The process would be pretty much similar. Let's do it for FY '21. Remember to enter your numbers
from the consclidated financial statements. Here is the consolidated Cash Flow Statement of
Operating Activities for the year 2021-22 from Britannia's Annual Report.

Corporate Overview | Statutory Reperts | Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

T in Crores
For the vear ended 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax and share of profits / (loss) of associates and after exceptional item 251280 1,843.86
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation expense 197.85 184.81
Share based payment expense 1694 21.58
Met gain on financial asset measured at fair value throngh Statement of Profic (6547 {RO.58)
and Loss
(Profit} / Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (0.33) (011}
Interest income from financial assets carried at amortised cost (234.66) (176.77)
Finance costs 110.90 T6.00
Changes in
Inventories (351.44) 4200
Trade recervables 61.40 78.85
Loans receivable, other financial assets, other bank balances and other asscts (170.82) {22.66)
Accounits payables, other financial liabilities, other liabilitdes and provisions +04.71 29.21
Cash generated from operating activities 2 483.88 1,987.78
Income-tax paid, net of refund (632.81) (303.25)
Met cash generated from operating activities 1.B51.07 1.484.53
Cash flow from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets (242.07) (244,17}
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 2LF 0.73
Salef {Purchase) of investments, net 178.82 {1,326.63)
Inter-corporate deposits placed (1,202.507 (1,203.41)
Inter-corporate deposits redeemed 149141 1,204.24
Interest received L 23343 127.62
Net cash generated from / {used in) investing activities _ 461.26 {1,531.62)
Cash Dow from Onancing activities
Proceeds from share allotment 103.13 2397
Principal payment of lease liabilities** {253) (203
[nterest paid on lease liabilities (1.04) -
Interest paid (10O0.30) {35.00)
lssue of bomus debentures = 73095
Proceeds from borrowings, net* 56780 a40. 7}
Contribution from non-controlling interest 14.00 12.00
Dividends paid {including dividend distribution tax) (2823.75) (4325%

Payment of bonus debentures (including dividend diswribution tax) - (369,153

# ZEBRA| EARN
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- Cash Flow from Operating Activities (4l numbers in INR crores)

; ° .
: 1 * Profit for the Year 2542
1
g i C.harBE5 for non-cash items
1
'+ Depreciation and amortization 493
!+ Share based payent expenses 11
: P v et 420 on financial assets measured at faic vale fhrmﬁh income staterment -65
1 = &
' Proftit / loss on sak {:H:" property, plant, éﬂ.d equiprnent ~4
1 * interest income from Gnancidl assets carried at amortized cost -235
]
Ii ’Fmarwcnr\j costs 444
I
I
]
:
1: [Britannia LTD.]
ﬂl Cash Flow Statement
i. [in IMR Crores, unless otherwisa statad)
Efl Particular FY2020A FY2021A
5 jr.:ash Flows From Operating Activities:
7 |Profit For The Year 1.843 8b 2 01280
& |Adjustments To Reconcile Net Income To Cash Provided By Operating Activitie} =~~~ |
g EDepreciation & Amortization 184 81 197 85
10 ;Pmﬂt On Sale Of Assets (Inciuding Assets Scrapped / Written Off) {0.11) {0.33)
11 1EF‘n::rflt On Sale Of Investments (Met) = =
12 |Provision For Doubtiul Trade Recelvables And Advances - -
13 | Share Of [Profit}/ Loss Of Associate Companies (Net) b i
14 |5hare Of Minority Interest - -
15 |Interest / Dividend (Net) (7677 | (234.66)
16 |[Esop expense - -
17 |Net gain on Nnancial assel measured (89 B8) (65.47)
18 INMerestineome. e b - el
19 | Finance cost 7590 110.90
20 |Share Based Pavment 21 58 18.84
# |Other Adjustments 5 . =
22  Adjustment for working capital
2 [Increase In Inventories i299 | (351 44)
24 |(Increase) Decrease In Accounts Receivable 7885 61.40
25 |(Increase) Decrease In Finance Receivable . -
26 | Other Current And Non-Current Assets (2366)| (170.82)
27 | Trade Payables : =
20 Gther Current And Non-Current Liabilities 2631 | A0A T
29 |Provisions - :
= 30 |Cash Provided By Operating Activities 1,987.78 2.483.88
r 31 }Income Taxes Paid (Net) b
ﬁ 31 Met Cash Flow From Operating Activities 1,484 53 1 RA1 07
- o
< pd: ‘E‘ . i
o Jus‘}men‘i' or uuortg capital
E * nCrease in I.ﬂueﬂ*forj =
N + Decrease in Hecounts receivabies 64
N + other current and non current assets: —4H
* Trade pavables: oy
Tk -

Taxes paid -633
* et cash fom GPErafmﬁ activities stands at 454,



Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Here is the consolidated Cash Flow Statement of Investing Activities for the year 2021-22 from
Britannia's Annual Report.

Accounts payables, other financial liabilities, other liabilities and provisions 404,71 2021
Cash generated from opemating activities 2483.88 1,987.78
Income-tax paid, net of refund (632.81) (303.25)
Net cash generated from operating activities 1.851.07 1,484.53
Cash flow from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment and other intangible assers (24207 (244.17)
Proceeds frorm sale of property, plant and equipment 217 073
Sale/ (Purchase) of investments, net 178,82 {1,326.63)
Inter-corporate deposits placed (1,202.50) (1,293.41)
Inter-corporate deposits redeemed 149141 1,204.24
[nterest received 23343 127.62
Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities 461.26 (1,531.62)
Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from share allotment 103.15 397
Frincipal payment of lease liabilities®* {255) (203
Interest paid on lease liabilities {1.04) -

* Aequisition ok property gant, and equipment / payrent for Gxed assets -242

* Proceeds from the sake of fxed assets 2

= Sai of nvestments: 432
* Inter-corporate d?_FOSﬁB- -4262

* \nter-corporate depoaﬁe, redeemed 4494

* \nterest recened 233

anruadl e F-c}ﬁ.

Ly Farticular

et cash 4 ow from investing activities stands at Usg; vs. U6 regorted in the

| FY2020 A FY2021A

34 |Cash Flows From Investing Activities:

35 |Payments For Fixed Assets (244 17) {242.07)
36 |Proceeds From Sale Of Fled Assels 073 217
SiPurchasersaieofimestment, .o bnisnnsnnissienas (1.326.63}]  178.82
38 |Inter corporate deposit (1,293 4131 (1.202.50)
3¢ |Redeem of inter corporate deposit 1,204.24 1,401 41
an | Interest received

127632

23343

a1 [Other Investing Activity S

41 [Gther lnvesting Actvity &

43 [Other Investing ACtvity 7

44 Cither Investing Activity 8
e OOTHET TIVERTIE ACRRy G

dap [CHNer Investing AcTiviny 101

47 Nét Cash Flow Frofi Investing Activities

48 |
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Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Here is the consolidated Cash Flow Statement of Financing Activities for the year 2021-22
from Britannia's Annual Report.

(e L A | N S
| Creating Financial Model

Ty

mModelling

Corparate Overview | Statatory Reports | Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

i ¥ in Crores
For the year ended 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Cash flows from operating activities
Frofit before tax and share of profits / (loss) of associates and after exceptional item 251280 1,843.86
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation expense 197.85 184 .81
Share based payment expense 18,94 21.58
MNet gain on financial asset measured at fair value through Statement of Profit (65470 (80.88)
and Loss
i Profit} / Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment {0.33) (0.113
[nterest income from financial assets carried ar amortised cost (234.60) (176.77)
Finance costs 11090 7600
Changes in
Inventories (351.44) 43040
Trade receivables 6140 7885
Loans receivable, other financial assets, other bank balances and other assets (170823 {23.66)
Aceounts payables, other financial liabilities, other liabilities and provisions 404.71 2921
Cash generated from operating activities 248368 1.887.78
Income-tax paid, net of refund (632.81) (503.25)
Net cash generated from operating activities 1.851.07 1.484.53
Cash llow from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets (24207 (244.17)
Froceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 21T 0.73
Sale/ {Purchase) of investments, net 178,82 {1,326.63)
Inter-corporate deposits placed (1,202.50) {1,29341)
Inter-corporate deposits redeemed 14091 41 1,204 24
Interest received 33343 127 .62
Net cash generated from / {used in) investing activities 461,26 (1,531.62)
Cash low from financing activities
Proceeds from share allotment 103.15 2307
z Principal payment of lease liabilities®* {2.55) [2.03)
fad Interest paid on lease liabilities {1.04) -
=L Interest paid (101.30) (15.99)
H Issue of bonus debentures - 72005
1! Proceeds from borrowings, net® 567,80 640 .72
E Contribution from non-controlling interest 14.00 12.00
w Dividends paid {including dividend distribution tax) (282375) (432.55%)
N Payment of bonus debentures (including dividend distribution tax) - (869.15)
= Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities (2,243.69) 57.94
=S



* Proceeds from share alotment 4o3.

* Principal redeemed of lease habiities: -3,

* interest Pa'nd on lease liabiities -1,

* Interest paid o,

. ?Ep&'jmﬁﬂ’r ok lo'r‘ﬂ terr borrmunﬁs- 561,

* Contributions from non confroling interest
* Dividends paid 'I.N:Md'nf‘ﬂ taxes -28J3,

A4,

+ et cash £flow from JE'maﬁc'l.rH activites stands at 224y, which Ex&c’rhj rmatches the

P annual re port,

FYZ020A FY2021A

50 |Proceeds From Share Allctment 2307 103.15
51 |Repayment Of Long Term Borrowings 510,72 BE7 .20
52 |Proceeds From Short Term Borrowings - -
53 |Repayment Of Short Term Borrowings - -
54 |Interest Paid (35.54) {101 30)
55_!Dividend Paid (Including Dividend Distribution Tax) (432 53) 1 (2 B23 T5)
56 |Dividend Paid To Minority Shareholders 12.00 1400
57 |Payment of bonus debenture 2 =
sé payment of debenture andinterest  h e (869.15) -
58 |Principle payment of lzase liabilities {2.03) (2.55)
&0 |Interest Paid on lease liabiities (0.45) {1.04)
61 |Issue Of bonus debenture 72095 =
62 |DINer Financing Activity & - -
63 Other Financing Actvity 7 o) [ = ol
64 | Other Financing Activity 8 - -
illlnt Cash Used In Financing Activities 57.94 | (2,243.689)
56 |
67 (Increase (Decrease) In Cash And Cash Equivalents |
68 \Cash And Cash Equivalents At Beainning Of Period ! 10.85 68.64
g8 |Cash And Cash Equivalent On Acquistion Of Subsidiany 5872 75 26
70 |[Effect Of Exchange Rate Change On Cash 569 (2.44)
71 |[Gash And Cash Equivalent At The end of period | 75.26 141.46
72 |

* Cash at the be inning of the year is 15,

» Cash at the erd of the wear is 4.

* our answer for the net change in cash e cakculated as

65 crores, va, A 68 crores in the annual report. The aiﬂh’r
difference is atiributable to round‘nnj error.
LI
"\@f v [
(' L
i Change in cash and cash equivaknts = bet cash

from oPeraﬁrH

activities + net cash £from ?mandrﬂ

activities + net cash from hveaﬁra activities.
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(4 i
E You might see that the template has forecasted numbers for future years. Dont worry about
N  that now, since we would be leaming about how to set assumptions for each of the line items
N  and forecast them in the chapters going forward. Go ahead and repeat the activity for FY 19 and
FY '20. Once you are done entering the line items for FY 19 and FY '20, you have complete the
0 financial statements for past 3 years completed in your model. We will use this to analyse past

performance of the company as well as to forecast the future,



Analyzing the Financial
Statements

We have leamed how to fill in historical financial numbers for the major financial statements. Let's
now try to analyze and understand them quickly. We will use two methods:

Common Size Analysis

T79 - f 2
B = o E F =

— Common size Income Statement
ELd
55 [k 4 .
558 Rovenus from Operation 100% 100% 100% 1010% 100% 1003
57 |Total Income 100% 100%% 100% 100% 100% 003
58 |Cost of matenals consumed -50% -51% -49% -54% -59% -59%
53 |Purchase -10% -8% -8% 0545 0% 034
&0 [Exrise Duty 0% 0% 0% 1% 0% 0%
61 |Changes in stock 1 0 (17 0 0%
62 |Cost of Goods Sold F e -60% 58% 595 -59% 59%
63 iGrDSS Profit 41% 4% 42% 41% 1% 41%

| Dashboard

_| Incoame Statement Ealance Sheet CF

Ready (*i Accessibility; Investigate

5% PARTICULARS EY2020 A 22 E FY2023 E
g2 | PPE, Mat | 24 B% 2 T.19% 14.6%
83__i Othar Intangible Assats 0.1% 1.7% 1.65%
a4 | Capital Work-In-P'rogress 1.6% 1.2% 1.1%
a5 | Investment Froperty [ 2% 0.2%0 0.1%
g6 | Goodwill on Consolidation i Z.1% 0.0% 0.0%
87 | Long-Term Investments [ 17.h% 14.8% 12.7%
3a | Deferred Tax Assets (MNet) 9% 0.7%
rm Loans And Advances 8% Ol

| Dther Financial Assets

| | 0.5% 0.3% 0.3

52 | Othar Mon Current Assets | 2 29 ERL'4 1.0,

53 Dther items 3 [ 0.0% 0 0% i o

a4 | — | A9 Lo a0 10r 99 7oy

35 § Total Assets | 100 0% 100.0% 100 0% 100 0% 100 0% |
T

ESERBEEE| 1corme staement | Balance Sheet | CF

Dashboard

A common size income statement and balance sheet has already been created in the respective
sheets in the template. In a common size statement, each line item is shown as a percentage of
the main line item -

» Revenues in the case of income statement and

* Total assets in the case of a balance sheet.

Such

commeon size analysis helps us understand the business and its past performance as well.

You can also see a list of important ratios listed and calculated in the Company Overview tab.

# ZEBRA| EARN



Ratio Analysis

Alf ” f Working Capital

A i C u} E F a
_ [Britannia LTD,]
Z
3 |[{in INR Crores, unless otfensise stated)
4
E HIGHLIGHT S FROM INCOME STATEMENT FY2018 A FY2020A FY2021A FYZOIIE FYZORIE FY2024 E
7T Revewe 1105400 1159900 1313600 14318.24 1560688 17,1150
B |ERITDA 1,735.00 184253 251000 2415974 269943 3,022.40
9 |EBIT ) ) ) ) ) 157342 165772 231215 219427 246312 2,767.88
19 PET 1,765,510 184365 251445 230015 266544 206831
11 PAT 1,157.04 139255 1851423 173288 195988323 2,204.54

HIGHLIGHTS FROM BALANCE SHEET FY20194 FY20208 FY2021A FY2D22E

FY2023E

FY2024 |

14 |Fived Assats 153558 171637 163430 160667 1598.07 1,50163
15 Cash & Cash Equivalents : : ? 6032  B123 14274 148038 293118 4,469.80
16 [Working Capital | 167433 110967 80541 205094 S4lmz6 495188
17 |Long Tarm Debts and Borrowing : L 5192 76606 7ATIS  JALTS  FATIS 74T IS
18 |Equity : 2403 2405 2400 2400 2400 2400
13 | Share halders fund 421932 437878 352357 475375 612563 7,646.83

GROWTH FYaoi9a FYX0EQA

Revanue Growth y-o-y

FY20z4 E

23 |EBIT Growth y-o-y ) 5.38% - 1225% 1237k
24 PATgrowthy-o-y _ _ _ _ _ 20.39% -A70%  1152%  10.88%
RARGING FY2019 A FY20R3E FY2024 E
37 |Grass Profit Margin (%) 40.6% a03%  419%  410%  411%m  413%
28 |EBITDA Margin (%] . _ _ _ 157%  159%  101%  169%  173%  178%
29 |EBIT Margin (%) 142%  143%  176%  153% 1% 163%
30 Pre-Tax Margin %] 1600  159%  19.4%  167%  17.1%  17.4%
31 PAT Margin (%) : : i i _105%  120%  141%  125%  137%  13.0%

EXPENDITURE RATIOS Y2018 A

FY2023E

FY2024 E

W Costof GoodsSolasoffevenve  594%  537%  SBI% 5908  5B.S%  S&.7%
35 Empsq-,'_ee E:-.p-en:}ses. as % af ﬁev[enue Cﬁ% _é.ﬂ_ﬁ: ] S.i:h': . 4.5% ; -C._i'k': . & 4%
346 | Advertisement Expenses as % of Revenus : 45% 41% 3A%  AD%  3.0% 3.8%
7

HETURMS Y20 Y2 ! FY2021 A
FReturn on Avg Cap Employed {3)
41 Return on Assets

RE‘T_I,lIrrl Oy Eq_uitl( |‘3q5.:|

DuPDMT AMALYSIS ) FYZ021 A
PAT Margin (%)

676 804 881

FY2023 E

977

FY2024 E

10569

FY2024 E

46 | Asset Turnover [x) 676 B.O4 891 977 1069
47 Finandial Leverage 0.189 0226 0168 0131 0105
43 [Return On Equity %) 31.5% S16%  37.0%  321%  B.6%

EOl LoDy FY2021 A FY2023F FY2024 F
51 Receivable Days 13 10 7 El a 8
SeflmentoyDave 43 2 W B M & W
53 |Payable Days 5 38 _ 35 7 3 36 : 36
&4 Cash Operating Cycle (Days) . . . - 14 _ 23 17 1. 13

SOLVENCY BATIOS FYanlaa FY20X0A FYZIOZ1A FY202ZE FYIDIIE FYMI4E
57 Interest Coverage Ratedn 190.9x 24.0x 22.6H 20.5% 4.2 26.6%
s NerDebifEquty ook 02 0x 0 01 Dix

TURNOWVER RATIOS FY2019A FY20Z0A FYZ2021A FY202XE FY2023E FY20X4E
&1 Working Capital Turnover Ratio 7 10 16 T 5 3
62

# ZEBRALLCARN
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Dashboard Company Overview m Income Statement | Balance Sheet | CFS

Foay [k docessiniling broestigate

These are different ratios that tell us how the company has performed in the past We can dig
deeper into them too. For this book, we are more concemed with forecasting and valuation
purposes. However, similar models are used to evaluate past performance. We will learn more
about them in Financial Statement Analysis related books.



Now, let's fill up other important details in the Dashboard tab of the sheet. This dashboard will
represent the company to readers of your financial model. It's like a snapshot of the company's
important details. Fill up the industry, sector, current market price, and market capitalization.
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Don't forget to fill in the "Year End' tab. Here we enter the month in which the company prepares
its annual statements. For most Indian companies, it's March. A few companies prepare their
year-end statements as of September or December as well. It's easy to make mistakes here,
make sure you don't!.

Also, you can borrow the company description from the page on Screener. in

SIZ:I'EE”E'ITH HOME BONEEME TROLE g ARSI i S BRI LOGIN GUT SHEE ACOOUNT
Brfanmas inle " Jant & = * aah T v in - i
Britannia Industries Ltd %" .
& briteania,co,in ¥ HSE: B{002E (" MEE : BRITANNIA
i 1
BAWTEEE CHf LTS ClETaAl Prda r a5 High | ek P11 1 3050 (] ]
i 1
Steeck FF 587 ok Wadiih s Firekctiand Yiadal .58 I !
I ]
ans [0 a7 Frezse Vil 100 | 1
I LR LT [Tt 1
1 1
A ratic b table : :
so Promotor noiding # EDIT RATHOE ' :
I ]
1 1

KEY POINTS
Part of Wadln O

READ MORE

You'll easily find these details on different financial information sites like

YAHOO! cocge Uy

FINANCE Y Finance EA/
With this, we conclude our discussion on

entering raw data into our financial model. In

the next chapter, we will begin with Forecasting.

ety

al

0 Financi

Modelling | Creating
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Forecasting
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Introduction

We have completed entering the financial statements of previous years and
normalizing them. It's now time to get to the future years. This is where we begin
with assumptions and forecasting

In this chapter, we will discuss what exactly forecasting is and how we would be
approaching it

Forecasting the future numbers of a company is not a single-step process. We
need to forecast different line iterns of the financial statements -

Revenues,

Cost,

Liabllities,

Assels,

Working capital,

Capital requirements, and so on

And we need to begin with the mindset that the idea is not to get numbers exactly
right. But, to get a rough estimate based on current facts available. No one can
predict the future. Forecasting is an educated guess we make based on different
assurmptions.

3| Modelling

Finarcia
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Financial Model

T
]

The fist thing to forecast future performance is to kist down different assumptions that we make.
These assumptions are on the Assumptions Sheet in the model.

o | Ferecasting

Assumptions Sheet

= We have created the assumptions sheet just for this - forecasting different line items. All
2 assumptions would be made here and these numbers would be linked to their specific line items
Z  ontheirrespective sheets.

Assumption Sheet __--= e Profit and Loss
E = M Statement

= [ T e—

Cash Flow
) -l_l_"{ Statement

—='i1 Balance Sheet
' === &others

The assumptions sheet is like a dynamic dashboard. Here, we want to see all forecasting
assumptions in one place. And more importantly, we do not want to spread our assumptions
over different sheets. Having all of them in one place would be most beneficial when we would
modify and check different assumptions. The changes would be reflected in whichever sheets
that the assumption has been linked to.

Here's what a
standacd assumptions
sheet looks ke

We will leam to complete filling up the
assumptions sheet in this section. We
will also be making changes to it, 1o
understand which assumptions are
more sensitive than others.
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Forecasting Explainer VIdeo

.-"fp“ --M‘x\
" Forecasting is not about \\ _.
/ predicting the future, "

—

prrErEmrsrsrsrssmreme s
-
(]

nstead, it's about being as
cloze to reanhj as f:.oas.ible..

[t's Impossible to forecast all line items accurately. Hence, we start forecasting those line items

that we are the most confident about. For example, if the management of a company makes a
statement about the capital expenditure they will be undertaking, we can start our forecasting
exercise with the capex schedule. You can start with the line item you are confident forecasting - it
can be revenues, assets, or industry-specific KPls.

Nofte

e beHer to not start with &nﬂc&sﬁﬁ costs on the income
statement. 'Tho_3 are difkicult to Predu and are beter
‘ forecasted as a pereentage of revenue.

The most popular way to model a financial statement is to start with forecasting revenues.

oG acts as base to Costs

forecast

— vesssssssnnsensennsd | Assets
llllﬂ KPIs

Revenue Model
(meeds volurme and vale data)

al Medelling | Forecasting

Finardcl
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Forecasting e
Revenues ﬁggf

,_

We discusses about the basics of forecasting. Let's begin with forecasting revenues. Though you
may have limited data, you must try to forecast this line itemn as accurately as possible. Changes
here have a high impact on other line itemns like costs, profits, interest expenses, etc.

| Forecasting

Nedelling

That being said, know that there are no rules to forecast any line item. There are practices that we
can follow that would help us forecast different items systematically. However, whatever gets us
closest to realisty or we are most confident about should be used.

modeled usi
-------------- ----» Volume - Value Method

PPP9PP9 X =t @um

No. of sold units

Total Sales Figure

Thetask is to assume the change in prices in future and forecast volumes sold in future.

Let's create a revenue assumptions sheet and learn the 3 methods of forecasting.

g . Exirapoaaﬂnﬂ the past
. Forecayrm& usmﬂ KPis

. Re'ﬂ”‘ﬂ on
mam\cjemenf ju'ndance.

Past Extrapolation Method

This is the simplest and most popular way of forecasting. Here, we simply calculate the past
rate of growth and extrapolate the growth rate to the future years.

This method is suitable for stable and mature companies where business is less likely to change
a lot in the future. We will use this methed to create Britannia's financial model.

# ZEBRALLCARN
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& KPIs Method

Using KPls for forecasting is another good way to forecast revenue for a company. However,
the challenge lies in choosing the right KPls. For Britannia, the KPlIs that would help us forecast
revenues can be the number of distributors, SKUs (stock keeping unit), number of brands, etc.

Let's forecast revenues for a retail company. We can use 2 data points for this - the number of

retail stores and revenue per store.

No. of
retail stores

Besaa

Assuming 10%
annual growth

A

Retail
Company

Price per
retail store

Assuming
it is consistent

X 0.37 crores

Total Revenue

od : i 28000
| A 8 <
3
2 KPis
3 017 2018

4 |Num ber of Retail Stores 2000 250

5 Mumber of 5KUs
& Wumber of Brands
7 Hevenus
a
9

Revenus per Retail store

2019 2000 2021 20222013  20ME  2025E
ze000] 32000 3s000_40000] 44000 48400 53240
11054 11500 13135 1408101 1615365 1784463 1060656

0.39 0.36 nasl__o37]l 037 0 03

You can find data related to KPIs in the company’s investor presentations, annual
reports, and conference calls. You can see how we used KPIs and assumptions to
forecast revenue in above example.

e |

Forecastin
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Realize that every industry is different. Let's lock at a hotel company now. Here, we can use KPls
like the number of rooms, average revenue per customer, or capital expansion.

Hotel Company

No. of
rooms

Average revenue
per hotel room

Lets assume the The average
hotel rooms grow y revenue per hotel
by 15% each year. E X : room is estimated

[ [N N
]
TR
i
]

| LR NS

to be ¥0.58 crores

Total Revenue

1

12 Hotel Company 017 2048 2019 2020 2021 022 2023F  DOZE  2025E
13 fNumber of rooms 200 210 225 250 280 213 16! 435 513
14 FW 0.3 0.35 0.28 0.45 .51 0,59 0. 0.65 o7
15 Capex 21 an 50 &0l 70 100 140 196 2744
16 Capex growth 0% 6% 0% 17% 43%

17

18: Revenue & 735 855 1125 1428 17335 217 287 A7RL

Using this method, we estimate revenue of 211.7 for the first
forecasted year.

Assuming we have to forecast revenue of a social media
company, KPIs like time spent per user, number of ads per
minute, and revenue per ad would be suitable.

The idea is to pick the right KPls for forecasting. Management often gives guidance
on the number of users, stores, capacity expansion, or plans for raising capital in their
conference calls post guarterly results. We can begin with these and using the KPls, get
an estimate of the revenue the company may do.



Forecasting KPIs

To get forecasted revenues for a company, we need to forecast the KPIs and link it to revenues.
There are 3 ways to do that:

Extrapolating the past

This method tries to derive a growth rate based on
historical trends. It's suitable for a stable company with a
decent operating history and whose business model has

not / is not likely to undergo a major change in the near
future. Britannia is one such company.

Sometimes, we can make subjective assumptions for
KPls. We can get explicit growth rates and other such
metrics from management commentary, industry experts,
or by our understanding of the environment. However, it's
important to stay balanced and aveid too much optimism
or pessimism when making such assumptions.

Hanaﬁeme nt Guidance

The management of a company often gives guidance on
its profit margins, capital investment plans, employees,
and new projects. We can directly use this kind of
information in our model. However, make sure you check
the reliability of and history of the management. This style
of forecasting is only suitable if the management has
given reliable guidance in their past.




Forecasting

| Medelling |

Finarcia
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Here too, allowing for scenario and sensitivity analysis while making different assumptions is
beneficial.

Tip
we e.uﬁes& that You pause your r?_édlnﬂ here and do
a simple exercise, Hake a list of r top 5 favourite

companies, and Q\'{:-o danh 2-3 KPi= for each, These
KPls must dredla Iinked to revenues,

Next, we will talk about the other 2 methods of forecasting for revenues.

Management
Guidance

The management of a company can often give numbers for future line items. They will often guide
things like:

» Capital expenditure they will undertake,
» MNew stores that they would start,
» Entry into new product lines, etc.

You can find such commentary in:

Annual Report Investor Presentations Conference Calls

However, the reliability of a company’s management is a
g matter of judgment.

Have they achieved all that they have said in the Pas,#
Are +’he.~j focused more on the share erice and less on the business!

These are some of the questions you should ask
before relying on their commentary.



Business and
Geographic
Segmentation

Another good way of modelling revenues is by breaking down the total business into meaningful
parts. You can segment revenue from different verticals and gecgraphies and forecast each one

of them differently.
O

Reliance

Industries Limited

DIGITAL @
(‘, @ LIFE Rellangg
Reliance
Reliance Petroleum Reliance Jio Infocomm Reliance Retail
X v v
itis a stable business e rfevenues can Le can use KPs like
can be forecasted be forecasted revenue per store
u&'nr}ﬁ the past u&'nr:ﬂ number of and number of
exploration method, users and Average stores,

Tevenue per user.

Management guidance would also make sense for these verticals.

Summing segment revenues will give us the total revenue.

..-""N
This concept can be used geographicaly also. UPL
) OpenAg™ Lid, is a company 'hav'urﬂ operations al over the
_.::"j Hence, forecasting for each couni'r\j/ state differen
would uield results closer to re.al'd‘ﬁ rather than
?orecaaﬁnj for the buisiress as a whole.

word., Business in each area is opera’red d’ﬁ?ereﬂﬂtj.
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These methods menticned above are not to be treated as hard and fast rules. You can work
with your own method of forecasting. These methods are some tried and tested to reduce your
chances of going wildly wrong as they put method to it. With our Britannia model, we can use
the past extrapolation method since the company and its business model is unlikely to undergo
major change in forseeable future.

C3g - S =3UN(C32.C036)-C37

. A L h (N n b B ) F e

. ; F
[Britannia LTD.] //

! 4
z
H
Ef) Particlar 0194 FY1070 A FYIDMIA  F¥IONIE  FYINIIE  FYIOMAE
& |Income Statement ;

7| Rewenue Growth

LTy T YT S94% ! S9I%. . SBI% .50
3 |Employment Bens Tt Expenses

o !Enrnn ge, freight and distribution

Tl .;Awnriiaing and =&lae promotien = .

£ | Conversion chamges "?‘Ou .

i} EDther Ewpenses Cal Sek *ha-*‘ +he“'_

4 | Statutory Tae Rte revenues have rown 48%
£ :

® Dalancesheet K Hear, A CAGR of

7 |Effective Interest Rate nearky 9%. we can use this
¥ | Accounts Receivabls Turnover g

B !h\'antnry Turnovar CQEE h} {br'ECaS+ {u+ure
EDjAccuuntaF'syahleTumnl.rnr FEVQ_["IUEE. Lie f.’_SJr!maﬂi

revenues to grow at ¥
per Year he nce forth,

B
[-@l Particulars | FY2019A FY2020A Y2021 A

11,054.00 11,599.00
11,054.00 11,599.00

g8 |Total Income

9 |Costof materials consumed ii [

10 |Purchase 1 / :
11 |Excise Duty

12 [Changesinstock o Revenue for the

13 Cost of Goods Sold
14 Gross Profit

first forecasted
year would ke = the

revenue in JoJd *
(107 = 14348 crores,

Make sure that the excel linkings are correct whenever you are dealing with forecasts in particular.
Use the assumption sheet instead of manually entering data or information in income statement.

You could also forecast using all 3 methods to forecast and then compare them to one another.
With this we end our discussion about forecasting revenue.

Next, let’s talk about forecasting costs.



Forecasting Costs

Broadly, there are 3 major types of costs:

GPP_rafrﬂ costs ke the cost

of jocda sold, pouer, fuel,
adue#usmj ete. that are required
to run & business amc:oJrhhj.

‘Degeclaﬂon and amortization

Each cost has different determinants and is calculated differently. Each cost behaves in a

different manner in different industries. That is where our understanding of business and cost
drivers is really important.

Operating Costs

Operating costs are all those costs that come above the EBITDA level. Here is a snapshot:

A43 - 5

FY2022E FYZ023E FYZ024E FY2025E
14313 24 Aabaanay 17 (1150 Seesaes
14,318.24 #HESEEE 1701150 Sy
4541 T oqbes 99823 409194

FY2021 A
13136 00
13,136.0¢
{5,502 00!

FY2012 A FYZ0DZ0A
1105400 1153500
11,054.00 11,589.00
: [3.313.00)  15.901.16)

& [roial Income
g bustufmaterials consumed

10 Lo o ot s e 8 iy 5 5 i 8 8 e 0 e 8 84 A8 e 8 84 R 8 8 '8 e e ' o v R TR SV SR DR e PR L) D) R 0 P I PR PSR (gl T AU 4 0o x4 e 4 1
11 fF

i2 3

13 61,00} (6,027.47)

o it el

15 Employment BenefitExpenges  f adipg  aggep . : J

1 rriage, freight and distribution 583 p6  GDOED T23.64 79143 856.80 g3r.15

17 Pdvertisingand salespromotion 50108 47560 57509 601.33 641.71 710.04

i8 nversion charzes B37 .26 BR4T3 74670 B17.60

10 [ther Expenges  ELea ™ eenmn 92571 99740 107123 118185

a0 $other Expance 2 = AT 3 : % 5 4

21 @ther Expensze 3 = = : 2 = = L

23 Im‘ﬂl Exﬁndﬂure Z,758.00 3.000,0C 4,000.7T 441159
3 [EBITDA 1,735.00 2.510.00 302240 3.211.54

24 |Depreciation & Ammortzation -254 .52 -278.35

15 [EBIT 276788 2933.19

26 |Interest -1M13.57 11446

27 (Cther Income 31300 313.00

28 |Profit before Prior Period ltems and Tax 296r1 313173

29 [ExceplonalMems i

50 [Share of los soclates

51 |Pro tion

e

33 |Provision for Defered tax

32 |Other Tax = 2 F = =

35 |Profiti_oss after Tax LD TR T T R R A P

Dashboard | L m

s 2

L
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Balance Sheat CF5

Valuati
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=  There are 3 ways to forecast such type of costs:

1 past common size ratio.

- DaMart
If COGS has been

around 50% of
| _ revenues,

, revenue CogS I

\n the future, & the
revenue increases then,

We can assume
COGS to around
50% of revenues.

revenue CogsS

This is suitable when the company's cost of goods sold
does not change with revenue.

2 management guidance

The management of a com-
pany understands how the in-
dusﬁ& works and can forecast

cost trends better than we do.

For startups, this is the only way of estimating costs.
There is no operating history or very low history, and
management guidance or industry practices are the only
2 ways to estimate costs are.
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3 strategic changes.

o v i
Company A = . . Ir’ "v.l - Cmf:an\j A C-OmP;aﬂ‘j B
+ E '.\ IJ : ? 1

-
i I

Compey ' Parent e ' l ’ ’ S
: Co Com : nCore
Company B : i ped : Sharehdders of
- 332
: : Ml comFaﬂ\j
Mergers Acquisitions Spin-offs

These events can completely change the cost structure of a
company and past data cannot be used to forecast.

INOX ™

LIVE THE MOVIE Tor EK&mPie PVE and Inox mEr d
+ into one En’rﬁr‘j. Now as +he‘j P.n
synerges, their £ixed costs u.u::w
reduce., The revenue and ProﬁJrs shall
also Increase.,

All of this should be reflected in a financial model.
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For Britannia, let's use an average of the past 3 years of common size statements to forecast
COGS. COGS has consistently been 59% of revenues historically. We can enter the ‘average
assumptions’ in the assumptions sheet and link those to our forecasted income statement.

FY2021 A FY2022 E FY2023E FY2D

FY2020 A

FY2019 A

Particulars
Revenue from Opersion |

57 Totalincome T oo r' T o0 ..._._._._._._...

58 | Cost of materials l:cunsumed S 51% Bt il
55_'pummgg R T L T e o .
60 Exclse Duty . i e L a0 0% _____
61 s

Cost o Coote it oo s o s oI o

64 | Employment Benefil Expansas
65 Camiage, freight and disfribution

T irirtimirion el caaln. reermian T BT
| Dashboard || ﬂrmgwi}mm _ Income Statemerlt Eatance Sheet CF5 | Walusti

Ready (% Accessibility: Investigate

The formula for the COGS in 2022 would be: COGS in 2022 = (Average of COGS% to
revenues in past 3 years) * Forecasted revenue for 2022 = 8454.10 crores

Using this method, we can get an estimate of cost of goods sold in each year by the
company. Such calculation should only be used when the cost of goods scld will not
change dramatically in near future.

A43 - 4

5 Pmucu'm 2019A Y2020 A

14318 24 siaieay 17,011 50 siedinsy
(3.313:00)  (5.901.15) [(a.502.00 -B4547  -B,188.8  -B5H23 10,0184
(110500} [373.79) {1,151 00 - . - -

[Total Income
3 |Costof matenals consumed
10 |Purchase
U T
12 'Changﬂs in stock
13, |Cost of Goods 5o
14 s Profit

a

Ready {*i Accessibility: Investigate mext Wwe calculate ‘|"hE
goss profit btj subtract

CoGS from revenues
to et 5,86443 cores for
2022, Drag the formula
to al of the forecasted
Jears, Dont w i€ the
NUMBErs lock & litHe off,

We can always tweak the assumptions sheet,
when we have more information.



We will use the same forecasting method (common size analysis) for line items - employee
benefits expense, carriage, advertising & sales promotion, conversion charges, and other
expenses. Deducting these operating expenses from gross profit would give you EBITDA. Hereis
a picture of the forecasted income statement upto EBITDA:

FY2019 A FY2020 A

_F 1iosa00  115mam
{ 1105400 11,509.00

Cost of matenials consumed [5.513.00)  15961.15) (650200}

10 fPurchase (1, 163.00) (373.74) (1,151 00

= Exusa Duty ...........................................................................................................................................................

1z Changes in stock

13 fCost of Good s Sold -10,919.4
1sferossProfit ] s G0 e e bl e el S L g Cil |
15 fEmMployment Benefit Expanses 44100 28700 52700 581,28 B3E.TO 6O0.15 755.08
16 frarriags, freight and distribution 55300 £00.00 | E55.00 72364 70143 45689 93715
17 fudvertising and sales prometion. f SOL00 4500 it S le RS s T e e
18 fCorversion charges 51300 S08.00 563,00 63726  6BATI  T4GFR  817.60
19 Bother Expenses " Ts00D .. 75800, . 79700 925.71 90240 1,023 1181.85

zofoterEwense2 Rt ER . I s
21 §othar Expance 3

22 fTotal Ex End'ﬂ e

4,006.77 4411.58
J02zA0 321154

Spend time to find out if those numbers are actually making sense. Also, feel free to make
changes to the above metheod, if the cost structure of the company is changing.

BRITANNIA
, /\ Common size Fore,cassﬂr}j 3ood for a

stable comf:antd ke Britannia.

s a ditferent baﬂﬂame to forecast a cyclical
businesz, (OGS In & -:H:itai busingss wolld
look ke 60%, So%, 35%, S0%, 0%, and 393in 60%
+hrou3h0u+ one cycle instead of a stable So0%.

Hence, forecasting should be done keeping in mind the type and nature of a company. Also, what
changes the company, costs are undergoing.

"\\'z’ v‘
@ I ”[@ Look for data ﬂﬁ*cmﬁm&w&mrﬂpﬁmﬁ.ﬂ

would not make sense to forecast a CoGgS as W% of
‘ revenues for a compa when ite same-size peers

e |

5 | Forecastin

have a CoaS of 30%. Such a diference maut be looked
info and there musat be a fundamental difterence
between cost structure for these companies,
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For depreciation and finance costs, we need to create an asset schedule and ligbility schedule
respectively. Other income too, will come after we have forecasted the balance sheet.

iQ Particulars FY2022 E FY2023E FY2024C FY2025E
22 |Total Expenditure 344489 3 T0BS58 400677 441159
73 [EBITDA 241924 2069943 302240 321154
14 |Depreciation & Ammortzation -224.87 -236.32 -254.52 -2T78.35
25 |EBIT 219427 246312 276788 293349
6 [Interest (o.08) Feg0) (110,500 -118.42 11168 11357 11446
27 {Cther Income Hib45 27a.40 313.00 213.00 313.00 313.00 313.00
2 it i fi 266444 Z2967.31 313173
25 Exceplional ltems = BLEOL) i fo.ell = T
30§ Share of loss/profits of associates {097 0.44 D.E1 1.00 1.00
2968231 313273

Line iterms ke ExCEP+ior‘al

37 |[Reassesment of defined beneft (£.09) i i S
38 [Income tax related incomea 143 BRI 1+€ 5'.'"|d +Ih‘e ShafE D’F .....
39 EGFGE: Currancy ranskaion reserve B.50) 685 aAssociates wil e ni, Such .
40 (Item - :

11 |Total Comprehensive Income to common sharé tems cannot be ?OFE’_caSJred.

a2 [inority Interests 366 9.03 Investrents income from

Associates would ke =
dverage of last 3 Jears.

Ready (% Access| _.
As the amount involved QJ

here is small we do not
reed to qo inte as much
detail £ this was a Brﬁe
dmount, we may have
created a new schedule
for this,

Dash - e niipie b

If there is a new investment a company is making in asscociates, we can expect that income to
rise. Forecasting taxes is pretty easy. We need to get an effective tax rate calculated as:

Effective tax rate = (Current tax + Deferred Tax) / Profit before Tax



o e B,
Explainer Videc
For Britannia, this has been the tax rate trend:
C38 - A | =SUM(C32:C36)-C37
[ A | B |: ] E F G H
. r
| Iaitannia ) /7
q

=) Particular Y2013 A FYRO20 A

IOz L FY2023E Pra024 E FY2025E

é_ Income Statement

7 |Rewanus Growih 4.0, 13.3% 005, 00 B 05 D0

&2 |CoGS 53.4% ED 7% 58 1% B0 0% £3.8% S8 7% B2 0%

3 |Employment Benefit Expanzes 4.0% 4. 2% 403 4, 1% 4. 1% 4.1% d:1%

1 |Carriage, freight and diztribution 5 00 5E2% 5 0% 5 1% 51% 5015 548

1l | Adverising and sales premotion 450, 4154 3430 4 1% 3.0% 3 8% A 0%

12 |Cenversion charges 45% 4 45, 433, 4 50y, 4 4% 4 4 4%

1 L Qiher Exparces 5 2% & 5o B 13 £ 5% £ di £ 0% B 4%

14_' Statutary Taw Hate -34 R% -74 4%, -6 4% 25 4% B 25 T0% e |

=

-E By

T L

B nventary Ti :

20 | Accounts Payvable Turnoyer L\-..E LU'“ mak'e 2 ¥ S HE

#1 | Depreciaton as % of Gross Block asaumpﬁong Uy an 1% B0% 8:1%

22 | Ammorti=ation o= a % of Gross Block 2.0% 2:1% 230
Dashboard | @ Mraje of the last alance Sheet | CFS | Valuati

Ready (5 Accessibility: Investigate

| ljra a5 we know

corporate tax rate in
India Ch&n&ed in FYa0

Tax Expense

Profit after Tax

Current Tax
33 |Provision for Defored tax

:12'_59].

Profit before tax x (Tax Rate Assumption)

Profit before tax - Tax Expense

34 Cther Tax
35 ProfitiLoss after Tax
36 Other Comprehensive Income

1167 04

You may rotice that -

the tax 'E’-XPQI"EE oW -
shows irrelevant numbers ;“ ......

.. curcently, This is because
~ we have not yet calculated o7

37 |Reassesment of defined banefii {0} {6.504

32 |Incoma tax related incoma 143 157

3g [Forelgn Currency Tansiation resens f-50 10.05

40 |ltem #4 i

41 Tolal Comprenensive Income to common ShardII R IE L
42 |Minority Interests 3.56 2.03

45 o

a2

45 Basic

Ready (5 Accessibility: Investigate

ne depreciated interest ete, uat
Once we forecast those,
the numbers wil §+ in,
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Other Costs

Other comprehensive income will be nil since management discretion and decisions on these
line items cannot be forecasted. We will assume all line items here to be nil.

23 [EBITDA TR L [T 741974 209343 302240 3.211.54
24 |Depreciation & Ammaortzation (18481} (197 85y -22497 23632 @ -25452 2735
25 |EBIT 1657T.72 PR PREY 219427 246312 2 TBT.BE 293319
26 |Interest (76500 (1inen  -11842 11168 11357 11446
2} Cther Income 270,40 313.00 313.00 313.00 31300 313.00
28 Profit before Prior Period ltems and Tax 1,660.22 238915 266444 256731 313173
29 |BExceplional ltems o (1701} (0.61) z 7 7 5
30 |Sharg of loss/profiis of associates (057} .44 081 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
31 |ProfitiLoss before Taxation fTHaS 1,843.65 514,458 313273
32 [Current Tax [599.74) [947 B9 {B57.12) -607.27T  -677.21 -763.608  -795.29

33 |Provision for Deferedtax 1z.59) (501 (2.30) Y e G

34 (O -

35 1,157.04
36 .......
37 R (4.05)

1.43
35 |Foreign Currency franzlation regensa B.50
40 |tam &4 m

Total Comprehansive Income to common shardk SR

Minorily Interests E'WB-T
43

Dashboard | £ J

| Ieymm mn = Ekm E

; ati
Minority inferest can be keet conatant,
same as last year (13.34 crores), No. of
outstanding shares that the company
has e also to be lekt constant.

Ready (% Accessibility: Investigate

We are now left with depreciation, interest, and other income. We will forecast there once we
know to forecast balance sheet items better.



Forecasting Ba Iance
Sheet

Next, we move on to forecasting the balance sheet-related items.

Forecasting Fixed Assets

There is no fixed rule to forecast fixed assets for a company. But we can use the following steps
to put the method to the same.

,- IUSTUSSITIINA, _

: 01 5

i :

i Calculatethe

i company's gross | i

1 blockturnover |

i historically, il

; 1 Calculate the

‘- waasaAsMMRRasasy -° | average historical
| assettumover.
]

We can even do the above math with an average gross block instead of closing the gross block.

#

Look at the asset schedule for Britannia in 2021.

Ellw

ExplainerVideo

-.J!_

Eﬁ%

Fixed Asset Turnover

Gross Block -

Revenue / Gross Block

Revenue / Fixed Asset Turnover

enEy,
GEIES CAPEY NG 4 MoTiN e e
g Asat Exclange  Addirlens Dispesals Adjusiment  Asal i j

T April  differemce 31 March

2020 011 a0
Orwem asses Eyl _Ta_!lﬂlt!ll!g'!ﬂ::lti ............................. i Linds
Frecheld bied 120,43 fa 12151 32 | Gross Aseats [Opaning) 1,518.92 2.021.87 43175
Duidings () Ter WA 161 e Trsel 35| Acquisitions L A93E IO dE 1SS
Tawt and eoislproent 1304057 EL R ] T8 142 219 lMEM 34 | Trangitions
Farniiare amd fxtures 40 1.4 a7 233 .68 35 Exchange [hff=rence
Mot vehicks 198 ha3 - 21 ;,:',:5 Adjustments
e uqulp-:-nnl 1881 16 616 16 4597 a7 | Disposal
RRight of st ot ~ . 38| Gross Assets (Ending)
Leasehiok] kbmd 15731 (.35} 913 LG 2451 o A Black
Mot vehicks 1 . I 115 _ 3 Tage Laross Diock
Tousl 143173 4728 11133 18SI EH 23TLAY

For a forecasted period, we have a forecasted revenue as well as a fixed asset turnover. We can
use them to calculate the gross block required each year.
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The increase in Gross Block each year can indicate the total capital expenditure required by the
company each year

Forecasting Depreciation

A similar process is applicable for depreciation.

AN, . L EDooooooooooo-
# N » %
i i [ [
I ] I (]
: 01 : | 03 ;
i I i ]
i i i i
' Calculatetherate | : :
2 _ '__.----ﬂ--n-----—-——-‘--‘------._"I : |r
 of depreciation by | ! - i
1 s & ] [ (]
+ depreciationfor 1 | 02 b s ]
3 1 i 3
i the year/ Opening | ! = H
1 ] I (]
' gross block. x|} Calculate the B '
L] i § »
- USNRRRRRRN - ' average histoncal 1 - assssssssssser :
! depreciation rate. !
i ;
1 i
i i
R T ————— e
Carrykng
Lross oacrying amount Accunmalated depraclution L
. [iEi]
TIEEitRar Asal  Fxchange Additioss Dispesals Adjstnent  Asal Asal  Fxclamge Deprecimion  Thsposals Adjesiment  As al Asat
P Apdl  difference Mpareh | 1Apsil  differesce  for che year 31 March | 30 barck
20k 2021 0 021 2011
| o assets
[FrechoM land 12145 ooe - 2 -1 : - - - 12131
::hlﬂlllai {a} TAZ.Aar 10EA 1629 129 - T97.836 105,50 1171 oo LI - FEEAD G546
{Plant and equipment 13057 06 TEI Lna 1w aigs|  sels s 15334 1322 - M3 @net
| Fumnitare and fistures e L6487 233 s aee|  sar 156 306 224 y 1765 1403
{Motar vebicls 1w 23 am 188 20 038 : : 146 055
|Office mquipment 08l 016 Ale  0l& o s 012 B4 013 : 1068 153
[Right of vse asaets
[Lessehold land 1731 s e 148 204 51 640 000 130 s . w193
[boio vehicles LAl - : 2.0 0.55 : .76 415 2 LA 187
[Towl 143175 38 1L 1663 1 I TIis a6 19479 b1 1640 — 93984 Leats0
£l ASSET SCHEDULE
31| Tangible Assets
sz GrossAssets (Opening) 151882 202187 243175 0 257384 2TER4S
3 Acquisiions . 49348 32083 @ 11136 0000 18258 0 23378
Bl Tmnations: 0000 WSS ot O T
5 Exchange Differance 2342 5647 ¢ ook SR S,
26 Adusiments
g DI9pOsAL . oo s
| Gross Assets(Endingg @ ====0 2,021.87 243175 2,573.84
| Average Gross Block 1,770.40 2 22681 2. 50280
&

il Cepreciation
ez Accumulated Depraciation (Opening) =
Accumulated Depreciation On Acquisitions

o 83064 15878

43 During The Yearexchange difference 19.33 51.53 A838 - o
#+| Depracistion For The Year = = 155.28 18233 18478 - - 22021 o 23236
25 Disposal - -

+ | Accumulated Depreciation (Ending) 486.20

=7 Net Block 1,5335.98 1,634.30




We have entered numbers for the asset schedule. We also found pastnumbers Explainer Vide
about intangible assets in note number 6 of the statements and have created a

similar schedule following the same process. Here is a snapshot:

Forecasting Asset Schedules

We will analyze the following ratios going ahead:

G |

43

80 | Gross Assets (Opening) 148 86 167.73 170.01
51 | Acquisitions 3.17 3.68 2.97
52 | Exchange Difference 5.70 8.60 (3.07)
53 | Disposal

54 | Gross Assets (Ending) 170.01 169.91
55 | Averaqe Gross Assets 153.30 163.87 169.96

16 Balance Sheet

17 |Effective Interest Rate 5.6% 51% 5.3% 5.7% 5.4%
18 |Accounts Receivable Turnower 28.04 36.21 51.08 33.43 41.80
13| Inventory Turnowver G40 935 6598 324 818
20 | Accounts Pavable Turnowver 375 6.21 580 5.92 5.85
21§ Depreciation as % of Gross Block 2.5% .2% T 8% 5.2% 2:1%
228 Ammortization as a % of Gross Block 4.5% 1.5% 1.6% 2.0 % 2.0%
230l Revenue / Gross Block (Tangibk) 7278 5737 L.402 B.14 5.76
240 Revenue ! Gross Block ;Inta ngible} 74258 73.537 77 Z'E'El o2 7927
bl =

For all these ratios, we can take an average of 3 years to forecast the

next few coming years.
Let's now forecast the asset schedule.

il ASSET SCHEDULE

31 | Tangible Assets

32 Gross Assets (Opening) 151892 202187 243175
33 Acquisitions 493 18 320.93 111.35
34  Transitions 37 87

35 | Exchange Difference 2342 66.47 47.28
36 | Adjustments - 2

37 Disposal . 13.65 b
33[ Gross Assets (Ending) 2,021.87  12,573.84
39 Average Gross Block 1,770.40 2,502.80

New additions would be the revenue increase in the year
divided by the asset turnover ratio we calculated in the
assumptions sheet. For 2022,

Ope nin& gross block will be
the cio&*;inﬂ gross block of
the previous Year. Hence,
the OPQH'IHS gross block for
2023 is 1573.84 obtained

from 2024, FDraj the formula

for the forecasted years.

(Forecasted revenue for 2022
New revenue for 2021)

Addition

Asset Turnover Ratio
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5 EET AETET

H21 - *~ n
& B | & | o | E

) ‘ Britannia Limited

B o siareuens (14318.24
5 | IS @ %
- 1
v . 13316.00) / 6.14
5 i
S Particulars EYZ019 A 192“59 crores.
7 |Revenue trom Operatan 1
& |Total Income :
:
= ]
cill ASSET SCHEDULE I
71 Tangible Assets s
32 Gross Assets (Opening) 151892 202187 . 243175 .
@ Acguistions 43318 320.93 111350 192591
24 Transitions T b7
6 Exchange Diference 23 42 5647 4728
% Adjustments - 22329
7 Disposal . 5.39

’:E![G ross Assets (Ending)
33 Average Gross Block

2,226.01 2,502.8

FYZ013 A FYZ020 A FYIOZ1A FYEOZLE FYZOZ3E FridiaE FT20E5E FY2025 E

# ZEBRALCARN

W Tmnsions gy
35i Cxchange Differance 2 £

36 | Adjustments - 229 . - - - -
37 | Disposal 13.65 5.3% 1863 L i : 2 a =

Transitions, exchan
ditferences, adjustments, and
disposal wil rermain ni; since we
do not have detailed information
on how management is aoing to
deal with that, Most chanjes il
be reflected in new addifions of
assets, Also we can treat theee
as nil because long term, +hi?_xj
Aré 2ero-sum Qﬂqr&& 'l::\j nature,

Let's understand depreciation now.



(Forecasted depreciation Average

Depreciation as a percentage of the Gross

for 2022

e

average gross block) Block

.-

rorecasting

Yl Depreciation

42 Accumulated Depreciation {Opening) 324 48 48629 71534
]
Accumulated Depreciation On Acquisitions E
43 During The Year/exchange difference 19.33 51563 + 46.36
44| Depreciation For The Year 15528 18233 . 19479] _22021)
45 Disposal 12.80 477 16.99 .
46 Accumulated Depreciation (Ending) 486.29 939.54

47 Net Block .1 53558 1.716.37  1.634.30

A

We 2aw in the previous,
er in ﬁssumpﬂon
sheet - how
depreciation as a % of
goss block = 8.2%

We will calculate depreciation as a percentage of the average gross block:
Depreciation for 2022 8.2% X 2670.13
220.21 crores.

Simply do this for all the forecasted years

» Exchange differences and disposals will be nil since those line iterms cannot be forecasted.

» Accumulated depreciation will be the sum of all the above numbers minus disposals. It's
1159.75 crores for 2022,

» Net blockis closing gross block minus accumulated depreciation. It is 1606.67 crores for 2022.

» Youcancalculatethe grossblock, additions, depreciation and net block forthe entire forecasted
period.

# ZEBRA| EARN

o
L0
-



# ZEBRALLCARN

|:'_Y'_|

Let's forecast intangible assets now.

Intangible asset schedule also works exactly same as tangible assets. Lets see how
that works.

Note 6 - Intangible assets

Reconciliation of carrying am ount

Description Ell'i'l.’ﬁ CATTYITE ATt Accumulated amotisation Carrying
ArTMLS
[net)
As at Additions  Disposals As al As al Amortisation Disposals As ol Asat
1 April 3 March | 1 April  for the vear 31 Muarch § 31 March
2021 1022 221 2022 1022
hwin assels
Trademarks 003 - - (03 - - - - 0.0
Crestgns (rirL - ol - - B - L‘.Ug
Computer software Sk A 11.24 : 41.64 21.50 4.18 + 26.08 15:3
Total 3044 11.24 - 41.68 2100 +.18 - 2608 134
Drescription Oross CArTYimg amount Accumulated amortisation Camying
amounts
(met)
As at Additions  Disposals As at Asai  Amortisation Disposals As ai As At
1 April 31 March § 1 April for the year 31 March § 31 March
2020 2021 2020 2021 2021
Lhwn assels
Trademarks 0.03 - - .03 - - - - 0.033
Designs 01 r - 01 - 5 + - .01
Computer software 27.43 297 - 3040 1910 2.80 - 2100 2503
Total TTAT .97 - 3044 19.10 LEO - 21.90 B.54H
New (Forecasted revenue for 2022
Addition for revenue for 2021)
2022

Asset Turnover Ratio

43 IMH_
50 § Gross Assets (Opening) 148,86 157.73 170.01 169.91

51 | Acquisitions | 317 368 297 15.76
52 |Exchange Difference | 570 8.60 {3.07) -
s3gDisposad &£ | Bt _
54 | Gross Assets (Ending)

55 |Average Gross Assets

c:f:eniasroas block wil ke
the cbsirzﬁ gross block of the
prévious year, Hence for 2049,
it i 46934, which was the closin
§ross block for 2024, You can
New additions would be the revenue calculate +he of:€nir5 ross

increase in the year divided by the
; ! blocks
asset turnover ratio we calculated in the and av?_raﬂ?_ assets for

assumptions sheet. For 2022, the forecast Ejears.



New Additions for 2022

(14318.24 - 13316.00) / 75.02
15.76 crores.

.-

a5ting

Forecs

=l Darticuiar Y2013 A FY2020 A FYI021 A FY¥1022E Frl023 E FI024E FY2005 E

3¢ | Tranaitions

35 | Exchange Differance 23402 56.47 47 25 - - -
36 | Adjustrnents i 229 : S =
37 | Disposal 1365 5.39 18:33 B

Transitions, excha
ditferences, adjustments,
and disposal wil remain ni;

since we do not have detailed
information on how management
= 301:'5 to deal with that.

Let’s forecast amortization now.

MNote 6 - Intangible assets

Reconciliation of carrying amount

Description Gross carrying amount Accumulated amortisation Carrying
Amounts
(net}
Asal Additions  Disposals As at As @ Amortisaton Disposals  Asm As al
1 April 3l March | 1 April  for the year 31 March § 31 March
2021 2022 2021 2022 2022
O assets
Trademarks 03 0.03 # = = = a3
Designs .01 - 0.01 - - - - 2.01
Computer software 30,40 11.24 4164 21.90 4.18 - 1508 15:58
Toul 304+ 1124 e8| 2190 +18 -~ 2608 1560
Description Gross carrying amount Accumulated amortisation Carrying
amounnts
{met}
Asal Additions Disposals Asal Axoal Amortisation Disposals Asal Asal
1 April 31 March | 1 April  for the year 31 March § 31 March
2020 2021 2020 2021 2021
Own assels
Trademarks 03 0.03 = - - 0.03
Designs oL . 0.01 - - - . 001
Computersoftwere| 2743 297 -] w10 280 S )
Taotal L AT 297 30.44 19.10 2630' - 21.90 B.54
We will calculate amortization as a percentage of average gross intangibles:
PRIy (Forecasted amortization Average
Iorncasion as a percentage of Gross Block |
for 2022 for Intangible |

average gross intangibles)
Assets
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23 | AVETaYE JIUSS ASSELS

1233_JU o307 103_30 1Py i3

56

57 [JAcc 12.69 19.74 22 67 25 47
i Accumulated Amortization On Acquisitions

58 During The Year .

59 |Amortization For The Year 7.0 293 2,80 4.76

80 |Disposal .

- - -61 el Accumulated Depreciation (Ending)

Amortization for 2022
2.7% x 177.80

4.76 crores.

lt's 30.23 crores for 2022

137.99

19.74 22.67 25.47

147.34 144.44

We saw in the
assumptions sheet
earlier. Armmortisation
ag PQFCE’.n‘l'éﬂe of
gross block was 2.3%

Forecast in some manner for entire forecast period.

» Acquisitions and disposals will be nil since those line items cannot be forecasted.
» Accumulated amortization will be the sum of all the above numbers minus disposals.

» Net block is closing gross block minus accumulated amortization. 1t1s 155.44 crores
-e for2022. Calculate this for all the forecast years.

We will now link that depreciation and amoertization figures to the income statement.

25 [EBITDA

24| Depreciation & Ammortization

25 |EBIT

26 | Interest

1,735.00 1.84253 2.510.00

1,573.12 1,657.72
(9.09) (76.90)

(110.50)

27 |Other Income

We will also link the net block of property,
plant, equipment, and intangibles to the
respective line items on the balance sheet.
Here are the forecasted values:

Remember that it is
represented as ore fine
tem Csum of d@-prEciaﬁm
and amortization). Also, it is
a mﬂaﬁve ﬁﬂure since it is
reduced fom income. The
£ Igure is 2245 crores for Jo22.
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ST Caphal Wk g N L7 Y B 1 N N Y O 11 N Y N 173

23 1447 1191 1191 1499 14 21 121 13191 14 21 1497 1471

s @Goodwill on Consolidsion 1358.9T 13380 -

5| Lo SO % O 3 O 0 N P L P T 21 | < 8 T 128 O i1 L

» D a1 50 a1.480 f150 8150 g1.50 A1.50 81.50 g1.50

ax) Lo rably LB PR INEL  TUSEY | ST GTEER R

28 I et P R =~ RN - 230 2.5 220 2am

2 Of 003 304p M =

%) Of 7 10598 10558 210508

31| O0 1 ‘ . y

2% While forecasting for intangiole & —ssia—swar as s e s 3R

3. Ts z ATO02 V0O3LGE 1264045 1448305 1RASS23  IMERIAT 2086582 2351784
assets, we alr@.ada included

the line item of il on
consolidation as part of
intangble assets, Hence, we
would not be forecasting that
£ gure in the balance S‘)eeir
and it would remain nil,

Let's forecast capital work in
progress.

Capital work in progress represents costs incurred to date on fixed asset, which is still under
construction. Since we do not know much about where and how management is undertaking
investments unless they explicitly mention it. We will assume the capital work in progress to be
constant as what it is. We assume that company will always have as much work in progress. We
have reflected the additions directly in net block.

Let's forecast investment property.

CWP wil ke taken as a
constant, same as last 3&&{‘.

we wil assume nvestment "ProPe to b2 consiatent
toco. This is because Al ch&rﬁa n Investments wil
r%g ect as cash baldnce with + comPanEj at the end.

a2 11852 1mes2  ESE 11882 1MEsE 11852

1447 1421 1421 1427 A3 {421 3T 4R 143 1421

“iiimar

F g a7

You can create asset schedules similar to the
ones we created for the long term assets you
wish to break down and forecast individually.

Deferred tax assets,
Investment in associates,
and other financial and non
current assets wil be constant;

*We will see with time cash and cash equivalents
swelling up in model This is because we donot know
in real how the company will make its investment
decisions. As a result we let cash increase and
investments constant In reality investrments will
also increase as company grows and cash will be
maintained.

since they cannot be explici
forecasted. More so, the eftect
of these items wil be reflected
in cash and cash equivalents.»

1ancial Modelling | Forecasting
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Lorg term investments and
long term loans and advances
demand attention since the |  BALANCE SHEET |

contribute azﬂni-?'lcanﬂa to
Britannias balance sheet

ong f2rm l
irvestrrRnis

iy ferm oans |
AdvANCRS

BRITANNIA

Long term
reallocated to investments
Loans
Surplus cash generated

over time.

\ Based on manaaemeni

We would assume long term investments, and long term loans & advances as constant over the
entire forecast period. You can see this on the next page.

Note

Q n case we have manajemem comm?.n’rarﬂ available

on how +he3 intend to use surpls cash, we can
use it to create exgplicit forecasts, otherwise, we
wil assume them to be constant over time,



;; ASSET SCHEDULE

11| Tangible Assets

aaé_Grp_s_iﬁss-%tsli@eeﬂna!_._________________I._SJ_E_-?_E______t”'i1 BT 243175 257384 @ 278643 @ 2859018
m| Acquistions 4831B_ 32083 11138 18258 22376 24358
3‘ Tm“!mum‘ -— R ETBT s rmr e o o - Ny, LA N~ TN s F
s Exchange Difference 2342 EBAT 47.28 - - -
sl Adustments: . . EHSEEEEEIERE —— o s e
57| Disposal 13,65 5,389 L
2a| Gross Assets (Ending) 2,021.87

39 | Average Gross Block

42|

8 inangibleAssets ]
0| GrossAssets(Cpening) 14888 15773 17001 16991 18567 202 7%
all Mt_lu'ﬁ*ﬂms E e e RS s ____‘_5.-?@_._ e f Y e [ T
7| Exchangelefsrance R - 1 (O - .51 [ {_30?1 e w
: Dﬁpm - o Ik
ué,i;,rpg&_gaag_ta_{ﬁn_u_lng] 57.73 170,01 168.91

==| Average Gross Assets 153,30 183.87 168,96 177.789 194.23 212.08
£
57| Accumulated Amortization [Opening) 1268 19.74 22.687 2547 30.23 3418

Look at the forecasted non current assets below:

2 PPE Mt T TiRa7 . 163440 160667 169807 159163 15TRRA 157234 | G60GBI _ 18G1A5 _ 1FBT1
31| Otherblangble fszels | @aFr BAE4 {3544 1GEB0  182E3 10765 21433 23238 2E302  Z7A 4D
11| CeptalWark-n-Frogress [0 gpas . jtese. 11652 _ 11642 1G@of  1eoe 11652 11645 116s2  11B5E

22/ Invesimant Property _ B T O "2‘. 3 '4?1. B T T T M T 11
2| Goodwll on Consuldamn = __1_53!:33_T_ Mo 1'35.'90 B . ) - _ -
.'IL_i.OﬂB-Term Irvastments 138515 133515 133515 13541: i 3H:~ 15 B 1 385 15 1.;55- 15 1 33515 38‘\15

15| Defarrad T ax Assats (et} S T N - S - O I 3|,an S\ T T TR

b __T458 T4 _T458 450 - __ 7438

=l Oher Francisidssets [T BIS8 0 EBYE 808 3048 BOME  8A43 648 Ge43  #iAR .31'1?.;.
safj Cther Non Current Assals 11133 10598 10588 10598 105 & L] 105.98 104,58 105.98 106 88
23 Othu' hern:ﬂl - -

EL L g ; 1, 2 B L O 1 . RO =18
33| Tﬂﬂ uﬂ“ﬂ‘i e a4 LAGLRER GATH02 1083158 1264845 1446305 1645623 TAEIE 1T AN ORERZ 23 BT B4

Oy other items ofher than those we
forecasted together would rernain
constant, L. the same as last 3&&1‘,
Cor the entire forecast eeriod.

We learned how to forecast assets, depreciation, and other
items on the balance sheet. We have truly come far. In the next
chapter, we will learn to forecast working capital items, and
return to the balance sheet to see if the Equity + Liabilities and
Assets side match or have we made an error.
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Introduction

Now that we have learnt to forecast line itemns of the profit and loss statement and
long term assets in the balance sheet, let's get on to working capital line iterms and
cash flow statements.

Modelling |
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Forecast Working

Capital Assets

ExplainerVideo

In this module, we will learn how to forecast account receivables, inventory and cash.

Account Receivables

We can calculatethe account receivables tumover for past 3 years using the Accounts Receivables

reported by the company and the revenue reported using the formula:

Accounts Sales or Revenue
Receivable
Turnover Closing accounts receivables

In our model template, we already have this ratio pre-calculated for Britannia:

bt

16 Balance Sheet

22 [Ammortisation as 8 % of Gross Block

23 |Revenue |/ Gross Block (Tangible)

24 |Revenue | Gross Block (Intangible)

We calculate the average Accounts
Receivables Turnover of past to forecast
what the turnover will be going ahead.

Accounts

aiiscive lnierest Balg s el ——— -

i T 28 04 365 21 £1.08 33 473

19 | Inventory Turnover 8.40 8.35 6.99 8.24
20 | Accounts Payable Turnover fr 5.75 ek — RS gz

21 | Depreciation as % of Gross Block \‘. 0%

For FY 4 this figure is R4 14
fimes, Si drag formula  He
for TY 20 and FY 24 For
Corecasting we wil use the
average of the past 3 years.
we obtain 3843 tmes as
accounts receivables turmover
ratio for FY 22

: Revenue
Receivable
for FY'22 Accounts Receivable Turnover Forecasted
14318.24
38.43
— 372.53 crores

# ZEBRALLCARN
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Similarly, we can calculate the account receivable for remaining forecast period.



Inventory

Calculating inventory follows a similar approach. However, this ratiois calculated as a percentage

of cost of goods sold.

COGS
Inventory
Turnover Ratio Closing inventory
[ =]
1€ Balance Sheet
17 |Effective Interest Rate 6 6% 51% 5 3% ET%
coounts Receiy Turnoyer 28.04 36.21 51 D6 a5 43
I 19 | inventory Turnover 8 40 9.35 5.99 g24 |
=
20 | Accounts Payable Turnover g 25 §.21 580 L 322
21 |Depreciation a3 % of Gross Block i o
22 | Ammoriisation as a % of Gross Block ~) il
23 |Revenue /| Gross Block (Tangible) [ b= i : ;
= Of" i
24 |Revenus / Gross Block (Intangible) 74 2 ﬁ' this & e 1s Al

We calculate the average inventory turnover
of past to forecast what the tumaover will be

going ahead.

Inventory
Forecasted
for FY'22

Calculate in same manner for the other years too.

~ 840 times, For ?ore':asﬁrﬁ
we wil use the avera
of the Past 3 years,
we obtained 2.24 as
forecasted invent
turnover ratio for Y T4,

8454 10 Forecasted Cogs for Y22

8.24 (Forecasted hve_nerj turnover)

1025.45 crores

Before we move on, we can link the cash and cash equivalents tab in the balance sheet in our
rmodel to the ending cash and cash equivalents of the year inthe cash flow statement. Though the
cash flow statement is incomplete yet, we have done the linking part; and whenever we fill in the
rest of the components, the balancing cash figure will appear on the balance sheet.

remember to link Your formula to the correct
cells and draa it for al the forecasted years.

al Medelling | Forecasting Warking Capital &

Finardcl
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We can now explore the rest of the current assets on the balance sheet. ExnlHinar Videt

Management takes urrent Investments
decision about surplus cash Loans, etc

The amount of cash def:ioxjed n current investments, loans, ete depends
on mar‘.ajemeﬁ'ss decision ma'k.'nf':.] and investrment Ph'ulossof:h\j.

P4T - =

4 € o | E F g

[Britannia LTD] 7/
= A

ZEBRA

LE&A BN

FY2020 A FYZ2021 A FY2022E FYX21E FYZ024E
CRSSBIS

Bank Balance
11§ Accounts Recevabes
128 Inventories

i 1.025.45 22 278,
138 Short-Term Loans And Advances | 1, 11011 045 58 948 56 0458 55 045 558
148 Othar Current Accals ] 14217 207 78 397 .78 L7 T8 ET |
i OtherFinancialAs=ets 8 | Z2afs N 1220 122 122@ 1220
Wi Otherems2 o N [ -
178 Cther Current Assels 3 - - -

18 Total Current 3

u | OtherintangbleAssets | B3 BS54 155447
12 Capial Work-In-Progress |
12 | Imvesiment Property

| 14.24
s Goodwilon Consolidation " Hence bank balance, current

25 | Long-Term Investments | 138515
uDefErredTamwaet}ﬂ 50 8150 investments, short term loans
17 Long-Term Loans énd Advances

11 Invastmant In Associates
29 | Other Financial Asssts

" B,0DB.TH

B advances, ofher current
3013 35315-1-5: and other financel

11 Other items 3
12 Tetal Nen-Curreni Assets j 157247 ) I
......................................................... 938 constant; assuring they wil
. [er— | Bala maintain their size.

assets wil b8 modeled as
33 _Total Assets
Income Stai:ement Balai

| Dashboard

Ready % Accessibility: Investigate

We already saw this while forecasting long term investments. The above-mentioned line items
are investments made by surplus cash itself. The cash figure we arrive at includes the investment
assets as well. We allow the cash to increase. In reality, most of this cash will be moved to
one or the another investment option. But due to management discretion involved, we let the
investrents be flat and let cash increase.



Here is a picture of the asset side of the balance sheet created by us as per the financial model
so far:

L2 - Britannia_1 (1) - Excal

File Home Insert Page Layout Formulas Data  Review  Wiew  Help ':E Tell me what you want Lo do —

B32 u e =SUM{BIDE31)

4 1] E F G H | 1 i B I= |
7 :
‘ m
a ZEBRA C
1 LEAR M L
q
1
ﬂ e S — —————— — e e e e e e e - e e e e e O S e i St e e e e - e e e e et e e e e e
R R B o A &~ CMOEHC e 144 A o o
B | Cash And Cash Equiienta G032 E1E3 14274 1ARGI8  2a3ii0 A dGHa0  GAd96d | TOTEAT a,m,ﬂ& tmgzm 1480543
g | Bark Balange =~ o EEnaneg e teRs0] 0 6360 BEE0 GRG0 586D 60 GH.BD
o o i E ¥
" | Accounis Rerewables [ FkJa 3005  JeTd  orasd | wadh3eRd1 M8 A8 SRz ST0R2 6186
| tvormiories_ JE1 38 74096 109148 102645 11371 1,278 A5 135108 1.481.30 162483 176018 182244
1| Shoit-Term Loans And Advances 2033 110t MGESE  WMGSE 0 MESE MBS MAs6 0 OMESE  MMBS6  Ba68E  MESE
M L 142197 7 T4 ] B 75 FEL AT 76
= | Cthar Fi _c._lal #_aaas i
| Cthar llams 7
| Other Current Agsets 3
his I'!tfl Cumert Azzete L
b= |
20 | PPE. Met R3GAR 17IGa7 1630 1G0R67 159907 153183 | GrA A0 167234 156891 __1.56165 1.568.71
21| Cibher Intangible As=ets T a2 a3r B354 155 44 163,60 182 62 19765 214.33 232.38 252.02 27345
22 Ca@dal'u\l'undn-Prog'ess U T e S R 1652 11662 R T e . S | |71~ He | R | 1 R b
23 | Invesiment Property AT 14.21 _l2 14.21 _14.2 43T
24 Goodwill on Consoldation i X s e e e T T ey e e
95 | Lorg-Term Imvasimants i7R 36 188798 138515 138515 13815 1,385 15 1,385 15 1 30 15 1,386 15 138615 1,385 18
6 DereneuTuAagetgr_r-.let;_____________ JJ3T6 M9ER | EYA0  B160  B1S0 8180 E1An  B1A0 8150 B150 &1
27| Lo T 5 And o5 TAe d 74.50 El T ] 58
16| Invest BN (-5 SR e T -
25 Dtl'mrFmancliIAasets 2067, A ania i3 .13 313 A3
0] Other MonGurrent Assets - - e iafce OEed o MORHR] 10598 10538 10598 10596 "“5 Ll T .
T :
TAT  AETT03
T30Z10.931.58

Now that we have understood how to forecast each component of asset side of the balance
sheet, let us move on the liabilities and equity side. Also, on the asset-side, we will come back to
cash at the end
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Forecasting LONg-Term

Liabilities

We have completed the asset side of the balance sheet except for cash. Now
let's look at the liabilities side. Most of the line items here are financial in
nature and difficult to model, as high management direction is involved. Lets
understand this is depth.

Deferred Tax Ijabilities] /\

| Other Long-term | Long-term
Liabilities provisions

create a debt achedule,

There are two methods when it comes to forecasting debt.

Debt Schedule and
Management Guidance method

In this method,

P o
\ Calculate l 3 l

% ZEBRALLARN

e
O

You can then

| averagelong- j I

| term liabilities | calculate 1 Then forecast

| @asanaverage forecasted debt  that ratio to

I of opening i using debt I estimate total
liabilities of the turnover debt- debt that

I current year 1 equity or debt- I the company

| and closing I assets methods. | may have in

! Jjiabilitiesofthe ! Eachhastheir !  forecasted
previous year. problems but years.

they can be

2 )=t 4

This method is suitable for companies are not changing their debt-equity structure.

n ma term liabiities, we wil assume

al items other than debt at their last

year levels 2. we wil assume them
to be constant, For debt we can



debt incurred

6_______

. %
“\J) D =

Management

\ You can also reh:j on manaje,we,nJr

corrmeﬁar\j for ju\dance on capital
expansion plans and the way +hetj
intend to fund it

If the management says that it is incurring 1,247 crores in
capital expansion projects, and would be raising debt for
the same, your forecasts can reflect the same. We can use
management commentary to forecast debt.

It is a good practice to maodel debt based on a constant debt to equity ratio. New borrowings
would then be forecasted at the same ratio

B

T RevemueGrowth .
3 LoGs

3 |Employment Benzft Expenses

1 Camtape, Treieht and ditribylion

T agvemsnpandaakapromoten b
T Corversion charges

= :

E

g T
i Efleciive Inleresi Rate

F ccoumtaRecovapleTurnover b
T Inveriory Turnoweer :

21 |sccounts Pevebls Tumowar ...
" Deprecatonas ¥ oiGmssBlect i
22 | ammerlizalion g8 8 % o1 Gross Block

(5]

Lt A g ey SRRSO 1 SO,
24 Rzvenue { Gross Block intangik) 7585 7518 7550 7ogn
s
ZENOSYEQUItY el RN IT.3ENOZOBEM I3ISM IT.A0%  1TOSW  BST8% 1B ESW  1G44M  1631% 16484
21 Pther Liabilities turnover T 14,98 15.36 1612 15.49 15,66 15.76 15,63 15.58 15.69 15,67

W we had dong this for Britannia,
the debf!equ'nhj ratio and other |
hakiities ratic would have lboked

Ewchange Difisrence T TTARES T ey
Adstments
3" Disposal
31| Gross Assets [Ending)
31 Average Gross Block
| Dashboard
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Keeping it Constant

R e e e e e
25 LIABILITIES & EQUITY
28

37| Accouns Payable LHREET ANEIE 1314750 142816 153940 168237 134104 2 00367 218766 238310 2 59798
i - TE10 AT 133042 13342 133942 133942 133842 133142 133943 133042 133042

C[EsRSET e 3T JgT AT

Y ITAT a7 47 ABT AT 3ATAY
e T - i - 0.

e.oTeMeTENE TEOR  TEDE _ TeME

43 Total Cument Linbilitles

TAAFOE AG6T28 4BIGT1 500063 53g200
44

] LongTarm Do e _r_? AR A 7 500 M 0 1 WO 7 N 8. AT TE JAF7E T TATIE iz}
a6 Deferied Tax Lianiiizs (4el) 387 263 3.59 ERE | & ELEN BB .- -} 5.69 I B 6Y ]
i Caner Loy berm Liahilies AN ' b - ST

-Temm I i 07 5407

RYA- 45

3 A0 TS

104,42

055 A0

In the case of Rritannia, R
Since no mMajor business
change is expected,
we would mode| o
term debt as constant
Simply extrapolating the
past. our liabiities side
would look like this,

We can assumethe debt side to be constant because debtis a financial item rather than operating
one. This means a lot of it depends on management discretion too. If we increase debt, as the
business grows, with it the cash and cash equivalents on the asset side will increase.

So, even if we increase debt - Net Debt (Debt Cash and cash equivalents) will remain as it is. As
a result increasing debt or not is a zero impact item from a financial modelling point of view. For
simplicity, we can leave all financial items as it is and reflect the net of all changes in cash and
cash equivalents.



Forecasting Current
Liabilities

Mow that we have forecasted long term ligbilities, lets more to cureent ligbilities. In the current
liabilities section,

[ Other Current Liabilities |

Short-term
provisions

Short-Term
- Borrowings

[ Current Tax Liabilities |

They would be kept constant
[Guvernment Grants ] Since *hﬁ%are 3s0 fnancial in
nature, The ret mf;ad ok al
this will be red ected in cash
and cash equivaknts,

Accounts Payables

We need to forecast this item since it is operating in nature. First, we calculate the accounts pay-
able turnover ratio for the past 3 years.

Accounts COGSs
Payable

Turnover Average accounts payable
16 Balance Sheet
17 |Effective Interest Rate 6.6% 5.1% 5.3% 5.7%
18 |Accounts Receivable Turnover 28.04 36.21 51.06 38.43

rﬁ.w o e oz ﬁﬂ—l

20 | Accounts Pavable Turnover 575 621 80 5.az
21 | Depreciation as % of Gross Block 235 : - : e
22 | Ammortisation as a8 % of Gross Block ;?Eu..u
23 |Revenue / Gross Block (Tangible) R, ¢ 1
24 | Revenue / Gross Block (Intangible) For FY 49, it woud be 535,

Calculate for FY ‘2o and
TY '24, For forecasting this
ratio, we wil Use an averade
of the Pae,f 3 \jeal‘ﬁ For
the Grat forecasted year,

|2, 2023 the payabie
turnover s 592 times,

I~
e
e

I,

il Medeling |

Finarcia
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casting Working C

For FY '22, forecasted accounts payableis:

ash Flow Staterment

@ Accounts Payable B454.1 (Forecasted CoaS for Frad)
- for FY’22 = 592 (Forecasted Payabies tumover)
Em
E — 1428.15 crores
2
g You can calculate the same for the rest of the forecasted years.
i If you find any current liability item that has an operating nature, we will forecast itin a similar

fashion. Take cther liabilities for example. To estimate its forecasted values, the method is similar
to finding accounts payable:

Calculate other liabilities turnover ratio as

Forecast the ratio for future years by taking a

'_'{ You can then forecast other ﬂaﬁill}iﬁs ~ COGS

The following table shows the current liabilities section:

TR L T A T U T S T e S e e S Dzl S T e T O S e T T
55 LIABILITIES & EQUITY

]

= | Accoums Payasie :1;1%¥i133%£.hg. . 142816 153949 169237 - 1E4104 - 200367 21ETE6 238310 29718
= | ShonTemn Bomowngs | TBIG  FAJ00 133043 1 3m@4d 179043 JA04) AW4E1ah47 A 33940 1 3Ei4F 13a047
28 | Ciher Cunent Liabilites [ deean T aeTha ASERST SHUAST BOSA Gdial. Geay . fe0.64 . BDOEOR . DODEG . BgETd
40 { Shori-Temm Frovsions CCAGEE i:%f@__ha_rj?-. WIAT JETA7 auidi 3eiAr W7AT T AETAT BeTAT I/FAT
1§ Cument fax Liabilities e CH - T - S . - T {2 WO -1 S - - B -
ﬁ 3. 755 BQ 3.!3@ $.132_.$$ 4 337 08 4&6?2‘3 4616 T1 5 DG 63 5 362 86
45| Long Tarm Dabt TEibE yebde . FATdA.  TATIE 74775 T47 75 T4LIE 47 75 74T 75 JALTA 747 75
46 | Deferred Tax Liabiliies [Met) 387 1268 268 RE] R 569 569 .53 569 B.69 369
“ar Oher Long-Temn Liabiities [ i ;;g;g;;_ﬁ;ﬁ?: T SEhT T BOT Y T BT
an ! LongTomm Prowisions[TMAET fads . LT

ua Clheritems SR | = - A R R TR -
g0 | = H B = s G 2 =
&1 Total Non Curresn ah = LRI A10.51 Ai0sd 81051 @10.51 B10.51 BI051 ___ Ai0s1 Bk 51
=T 155 EMEIERE 4 60011 4 T4BR0 484347 BAMTRY  BATRTI  S62TR3 RRATM B1833T
B3

You may see an iterm caled Rdvance from
customers' in the anmnual reports for some
companies, Such an item is alko oPe.raﬁrﬂ in nature
- and can be forecasted &‘ollomnrﬂ a similar procese.
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Forecasting

Shareholders Equit

The only balance sheet section left to be forecasted is shareholders eguity.

[ Share Capital Minority | "[he.a wil be kept constant since
Interest thoze items are dis,creﬁonartj
bﬂ the manaﬂemenh we

assume that company will not

\,/” raise equ‘&j capital unless +he5

hawve E’.KP“CH'E) mentioned.

Completing Income Statement

To calculate reserves and surplus, an important component of the balance sheet, we need to
complete modelling theincome staterment (specifically other income and interest), and determine
profits and dividends paid and therefore calculate retained earnings.

Interest expense

%

Interest paid on debt

ki _,._1 Crmrn
m Forecasted short-term

and |or8—+ar;m debt

Here is how we go about it:

We will calculate an effective interest rate by dividing the interest expense
of past years by the total debt taken by the company. For Britannia in FY ‘19,

Effective o Interest Expense
Interest Rate - (Short term debt + long term debt)
9.09
(76.10 + 61.92)
6.6%

al Medelling | Forecasting Warking Capital &

Finardcl
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2 After getting the effective interest rate for FY ‘19, FY ‘20, and FY ‘21, we can
estimate the effective interest rate for FY ‘22 as an average of the past 3
years' rates.

£ % |Balance Sheet

3 17 |Effective Interest Rate §.6% 5 1%

.-J 18 |Accounts Receivable Turnover 2804 3621

_ 13 |Inventory Turnover

Sh) Avecmis Payabie Tornionins It turns out to be 5.3% for

E 21 |Depreciation as % of Groas B
22 | Ammorlisation as a8 % of Gro
23 |Revenus | Gross Block (Tangi
24 |Revenue / Gross Block (intan

FY22, We can cakulate inferest T
for further Jears too.

3 In the income statement, interest expense is calculated as:

Interest Expense _ Effective (Short term debt +
for FY'22 Interest Rate long term debt)

5.7%X (1339.42 + 747.75)

118.2 crores

Remember to have this line item negative (since it's an expense) and calculate it for all
the forecasted years.

Other income

The next line item is other income. This line item reflects income from financial assets.
We can keep the other income constant over time as we have kept the financial assets
constant too which eam interest income. We know that in reality the cash balance we
are accumulating will also eam interest. However, there us no reliable way to calculate
that and rough estimations is our best shot. For simplicity, we will have the other income
staterment.

Income statement

Effective Other Income
= —
o Interest Rate Other Financial Assets
[
—
&
m If you have more information on such a line item, you can calculate an effective interest
H rate by dividing other income by other financial assets, and model the same/average rate
N of interest for forecasted years.
2 For Britannia however, we will keep it constant. Here's a snapshot of Britannia's forecasted

K

income statement:
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Ready % bccessibality: Investigate

Note

L R

Reserves and Surplus

We can now finally come to reserves and surplus.

Funds
(Revenue and Surplus)

This i the surplus Fro@iw‘s atter
dividends, that the company
retaine to re-imvest in s 3rm+'h.

al Mod

ozl
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&

IE:I ..:-:_-
.-F-::IL.,;;
;? Previous Year’s Reserves & Surplus  YOO(X
2 + Profits retained by the Business XXXX
i - Dividends paid during the year (XXXX)
g
E Current year’s Revenue & Surplus XXXX
E a.-.---.--.-----.-.-.----.a..-----.-.----.-.-.----------.-..-------.a..----.-..-.----.-..-.----.a..-----.-.-----.-------.-.-----.-.-----.a..----.-..-.----.-..-...........-'-'
E’ To calculate dividends,
£ Divident Dividends Paid
Payout Ratio — Profit for the Year
:.23“---“-“---.-“--“-“------- e e I - e
2B Debt/Equity 1.44% 17.26% I.EE% 13 19% 17.10% 17.05% 15.78% 16.65% 15.45% 1g31% 15.48%
27 | Other Liabil ities turnover 1R.00 1499 15.36 1612 15.4% 15.56 15.76 15.63 15.58 15.69 1567
é:!mmmm i losi| [231) {133 Ay a1} (pay o3 .21} j2.31) in.31) igarl |
31” Tangible Assets : . ’ \
5 Acaters Tﬁzwgzglg i
:;%?ﬂfnma """ T ._ Lo e
Dividends for __ Forecasted X Estimated Dividend
FY'22 o Profit Payout Ratio
= b552.69crores
=
2 Revenue &  _  Ra&s for FY ‘21 + Profits of
o Surplus for FY’22 FY ‘22 - Dividends for FY ‘22
g
E = 352357+ T782.88-552.659
m
2. ~ 4753.76 crores
ﬁ g
218



Here's a snapshot of the shareholder's equity section:

54 Shareholder'S Equity:

612563 764683

H Reserves And Surplus 4,753 75

“3634 " 3634

Minority Interest
285.93 4,43 : NN 481418 618606 7707.26
Total Liabilities And Equity 6,241.82 1, 3 8,0 938030 1093286 1265073

=T}
58
59 Total Equity
&0
&1
62

. D;Elshtz;nard | Compar

?

==t |_ Income Statement Balance Sheet

Ready (% Accessibility: Investigate

We are now completely done with forecasting line items for the income statement and balance
sheet. Inupcoming modules, we'll learn how to derive cash from the cash flow statements. Before
we move ahead, it is suggested that you re-visit your assumptions sheet and check ifeverything is
making logical sense to you. Also, you can play around with assumptions now to see what impact
it has on the cverall balance sheet and profit-loss statements.

il Medeling |

Finarcia
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Forecasting Cash Flow from

Operating Activities

We'll now move to the cash flow statements. We know from our previous
knowledge that cashflow statements can be denved from income statement
and balance sheet That is what we will do here - creat a forecasted cash
flow structure using forecasted income statements and balance sheet.

al Modelling | Casl

Cash Flow from Operating
Activities
| Cash Flow from Investing
| Activities
E Cash Flow from Financing
E Activities
Z i
(i i
< i
I_I (|
- \
&
E Here, we will talk about the first one.
g Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Starting with profit before tax, which we get from the income staterment. We have to adjust for
220 non cash items from profit, so that we arrive at a figure that reflects the true cash profit from

operating activities.



[Eritannia LTD.] Z/
|

[ ash Flow Starement ZEBHA
j:[n IR Crores, unkeae atheruiss stated] Fran
|

FYa0i19 A FY IR0 A FY2024 A FYXRZE FYM2IE

| Profit On Sals Df Azsels (ncluding Asaels Scrapoed | Wiitten OFF)

= # oo mm e -

|\Profit On Sala Of hvesimarts (Nst)

| Provigion For Doubtiul Trada Raceveblea And Advancea

isn are Of (Profit} / Loae 01 Associsle Companies (Net)
(ehareOrinotte Ifareed L N e e el ]

First, add back depreciation and amortization, linked from the income
statement.

Profit on sale of aszets = O since +he~j are not operational in nature
and camot be forecasted.

other financial items ke erofit on sale of inveatments, provision for
doubtful debts, share of associates, share of m'lnor'li:l interest, ESoP
expenses, and net 3a1n on financial assets wil be forecasted as nil as
we cannot forecast them,

interest paid (ﬁnancira costs) wil ke linked from the income statement.
Remember to enter it with a negative sign. fso, we reed fo enter
interest and dividende eamed info the cashd ow from operations.

Share based Pa:.jmenh:; and other ac{]u.shrenirs are not forecastable.
Hence, +he.\:j would be Nil.

# ZEBRA| EARN



Difference between Income Statement and Cash Flow Statement

e Income statement F/}m

BALANCE SHEET | | \ncome. and

ExPErtE:Ea are
recorded when
eamed.

The income statement and
balance sheet are recorded
on an accrual basis. i.e.
irrespective if cash is
received or not.

W records items cd't.j when
cash for them is Paid or
earmed,

The cash flow statement gives a true
picture of the business's cash. The cash flow
statement is recorded on a cash basis.

We will now adjust for changes in working capital.

‘Change in Inventory

Change in Previous year _ Current year
Inventory inventory Inventory

For F1 22 we conclude that 66 crores have been freed up from lm&ninr&
a cash inflow.

# ZEBRALLCARN
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Change in Accounts Receivables

Change in Previous _ Current year
Accounts year Account Account
Receivables Receivables Receivables

we £ind that cash worth #1526 crores has been used U, hence a neﬂafwe
number on the cash flow statement, since it's a cash outflow,

* Change in Finance Receivables wil te O, since we have forecasted
it a3 constant,

Change in Other Current and Non-Current Assets wil be also
be O, since we have assumed them to be constant,

Change in Trade Payables

Change Current . Previous
in Trade year Trade year Trade
Payables Payables Payables

For FY 22, we fird this to be a cash inflow of #3.49 chores and trade
f:.atjakﬂaa increased,

~ Since we have forecasted provisions to be constant, their change 4g-
ure here would be O,

" Change in Other Current Liabilities

Change in Currentyear _ Previous year
Other Current Other Current Other Current
Liabilities Liabilites Liabilities

The £ lqure is & cash inflow of 23,93 crores,

g |

il
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Remember to calculate the for change in inventory, change in accounts receivables, finance
receivables, other current and non-current assets, trade payables, provisions and current liabilities
for other periods of forecasting too.

A | E | c | i) ] E | E | G

[Britannia LTD.] 7/
ZL ':r{

Ijn MR Crores, urless cthevize stated| TE A BN

Particular EY20M9 A  FY2020A  FY2021 A
Cash Flows From Operating Activitie st

| Pre:ff For
Adjustmente To Reconcile Nat Incoms To Caeh Provided By Opersting Activitiee |
Diapraciation & Amcrization I 161 88 18481 19785 224,97 23632 254,52
Prodt On Sale Of Azeete (including Aeaata Scrapped | Wrhen Off} ST [01t) [33 - -

Prodil On Sale Of Investmantz (Nat} k - = - -
Proveion For Doebiful Treds Recenables And Advancea - = - -
Shara Of {Proft} / Loas Of Asaociate Companiss [Nat) e e - -
Shara Of Winority Interset - - - - -
Interest ! Dividend (Hed) ; (13677 HTETT) EHEE  [M3.00) (213000 (34200

RSl S P R B Pt L T R .o =

Rl bt e R S .

Ezop cepenas - - - - - -
Net gain on francial asset measurad e e (85 B8y (G5AT) - - -
Intereat Incoms - - - - - -
Finance cost k H05 T6.20 1T1ES0 fiB.12 11168 113,57
Share Based Pavment 1612 2158 1884 - - -
Other Adjustmenis £ e - - - - -
: ; i i
23 |Increase In nventories k 127 24 4250 (51 44, 66,04 (9726} . (155.74)
24 |(Increase) Decrease In Accounts Recehable (AT TRAS Gt Al [115.26) 005 (15.93)
25 |{ncrease] Decrease In Finance Receivabie k e - - - - -
26 [Other Current And Mon-Currert Assels 080 [ (17062 - - -
27 | Trade Payables | - = - 143.40 & g

Cash generated

H 4ent
+ + c:;z E’,?d,hmel need of:.Era'!rig:s IS obtained

f uc | d+ e ncome ﬁwrm@h SUmming all he. above

axes paid. This we iterms and rmcm cash. 'The

0 jeJr from the tax formula is already ir ce

Expense calculated in in the Enﬁa{re ?;jor Fgai.z
he income statement, this ﬁg.are 15 19%5.08 crores,

Calculate in exact same
rmanner for other Bearg, e



Forecasting Cash Flow from

Investing Activities

The cash flow from investing activities records transactions around Investments

and investment income of a company.

Explainer Vide
H |Intareat Incoma o - = = - -
™ |Fnence cost ] 16.80 1100 118,12 11168 113.57
20 | Shars Besed Paymant L TARAE S 2158 1854 - . -
21 | Other Adjuatmenis € - - - - -
22 Adjustment for working cepital
23 Incragas in imventoriae 12T 24 4260 135 44) BE.04 [BT.26)  [166.74)
24 |{incroose) Decronse In Accounts Recewabl - (BEET) - TRAS G140 [115.26) 6 {15.92)
25 |(Increase) Decrease In Financs Receivable - - - - - -
26 | Other Current And Mon-Current Asacis GO AT 236 (7062} = 7 .
27 | Tradz Poyobies - - = f13.40 1114 152.89
28 |Other Current And Mon-Current Liobiffics 26045 2524 20471 27.92 69,15 42.78
23 |Provsions > * = =
30 |Cagh Provided By Operating Activities 2 483 F.F. 361336 278382  3,04B.40
31 |In
32 -...

33
34

35§ Peymante For Flied Aaacts

401 21

(244.17)

[Z4Z.0T) (240 58]

36§ Precaads From Sele Of Fred Assets | 182 0.7

247 = . -

37§ Purchaee/ealks of nveaimart (PSR T T o e s

Are g2 -

38 fInter corporate deposil [EF420 (1283410

(1 20 El)y > L >

349§ Redesm of inter corporate degoei G540 120424

] il ! il [ P 255 v NP 3'{53}1} """"" S

1,404 41

41 & [NTWEETNG o

4E [Other Tnvesting Activiy &

43 [UEREr TivEsiing 2
44 ﬂ[hu’TMu’h%Ac’h\rg B

A5 TR EREr TivEElng S e Y

46 TOfhEF Tivesting Aelivty 10 L
47 [Wet Cash Fiow From Tnvesting Activities

da

e

i

« Tor 7Y 23 the qure is 20835 crores, for net iaa{neﬁra for fixed

assets, This we can calkculate from the Asset S

* Proceeds from the sale of assets wil be o since onkj net additions
have been subtracted above

* Since we have taken investments and inter corporate deposits as o or
constant in the balance sheet, its charBE wil 52 o in this statement.

« \nterest received wil be linked from the income statement, other
income ing iterms.

« Al other ine tems than these would be o since %EH are fnancial and
we have assumed no chanﬂe n them,

Net cash flow from investing activities would be calculated as the sum of the above
mentioned items. For FY ‘22, it is 104.65 crores.

All cash items relating to long-term assets must be reflected in cash flow from
investing activities. Calculate in the same manner for the entire forecast period.

# ZEBRA| EARN
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Forecasting Cash Flow from

Financing Activities

Cash flow from financing activities is a statement that records financing y
transactions of a company i.e. activities relating to debt and equity. Explainer Videc

Fyaiia A FYaa A FYaiz] A FY20i3E FYHMME

i3 AN g iTEEL13ET)
G R s R R R S R ] B L o
3330 izl 1400

* Proceeds from share alotment wil be o since we have assumed
no new capital is beinj raised ba Britamia, & the company is
i8sUing capital we must red ect it here,

* Proceeds from long term borrom'm\cj and short term borrowin
wil b2 o since we have taken it to be constant. & we had
m&n&\cjﬁ‘_meﬁ ﬂuidance or any other source that indicated Britannia
raising of repaying debt, thia Ine item would have been ditkerent,

* \nterest eaid can be linked to the income statement, It is (448) for
aa Simiary we wil also calculate the dividend payout from the
income statement.

26 | DebiyEquity ! 144% I7.26% 20.B6% 13.15% 17,105 L7.05% 15.78% 16.55% 16.49% 16.31% 15.45%

27 Other Liabil ties turnover | 18.00 14.99 1535 16.13 1547 15.55 15.75 15.63 15.68 15.60 15.67
E i ol s drsal oad) o fesdl e N - O L= Y S 1) )

---------------------- For Britannia, the dividend
PaYout ratio for FY 'f, FY 20,
and FY 21 is 0,34, 031 and
153, Kncmma?-"}‘ 21 fo be an
outlier; we would forecast
.'*.he dw&end payout ratio
33 0.34 explicitiy for al the
forecaste years,

# ZEBRALLCARN




Dividends for Forecasted X Estimated Dividend
FY'22 Profit Payout Ratio

552.69 crores =

Reserves &? R&S for FY ‘21 + Profits of g
Surplus for FY'22 FY ‘22 - Dividends for FY ‘22 =
3523.57 + 1782.88 - 552.69

4753.,76 crores

This can also be linked from the income statement since we have already calculated it earlier.

B54 ad I

fil B 13 u] E F =
: | [Britannia LTD.] 7/
; 4

=8l Ca<h Flow Sratament

=] In MR Cianes, urless ckheruiss skated|
4]

ZEB DA
LEA N

5 | Fyapig a FY2030 A FYZ02T A FYX032E FY20IIE FYMNEAE
43 [Cash Flows From Financing Actviee:
S Ceane PR ST I e e e meeneareneaseae R BN LTSN N - e
51 |Rapeyment 01 Long Term Berrowings g [41.61F :

]

52 |Proceada From Short Tarm Borrowings

53 |Repaymeni 01 Short Term Borrow nga

54 |intgreat Pad

EE |Dwidand Mad (nehiding Dividend Distribution Tax)

R TREERY TR (AEAY] TS AR ET
EEA BT EERR R ER ey (SEREN)  |61A.a8) (B3 A4)

E& | Dvidane Pad To Ninority Sharshokiss e 120 14.00
57§ Payment of bonua datenture - = H

581 payment of debanture and rarast 186015} -

53} Principke paymeni of kasc labliics (203 (255}
G0 Interest Pad an leass fabiftcs [hAG) (104
61 §lssue OF bonua debenture:

] T20.55
G2} Other Financing Actiity & -
53§ Other Financing Activity 7
G4 § Other Financing Actwity & - - - -
65 lict Cash Used In Financing Activitics 05260 5red o 12.24369) NG e s
o ]

1

¢
« Dividend to m’morH\j holders would e nil.
* Payment of bonus dekentures, payments of debenture and interest,

erincipal and interest on kase liabiites, and issue of bonus debenture -
wil 52 nil. a1
4
Summing up all of the above items would give us the net cash flow from financing activities. g
For FY ‘22, it is 670.82 crores. g
il
N
N
227
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

a5 Principlo-peyment OFleRes BIMINBE: . i iR UL SR P AL LS . e et e

Cash And Cash Equivalsnts At Beginning OF Period

| Cash And Cash Eguivalent On Acguisiion 01 Subsidiarg

Effect Of Exchangs Rate Clangs On Cash

| Cazh And Cash Fouivalent At The end of pericd

L

* The increase or decrease in cash and cash equivalents is a sum of
net cash 4 ow from operating actiities, investing activities, and 'qﬂ&ﬂdﬂﬁ
activities. For Ty 22, the increase in cash is 4332.92 crores,

* Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the eeriod is the ending
cash from the previous year. Hence, it is #4hu6 crores for FY 22,

* We cannot forecast acquisitions of subsidiaries or effects of Exc'hanﬂe

rates, hence it would be kLt as nil

- Cazh and cash equivalents for the end of the Per'aod s the sum of the

above 2 forecasted items

Ending Cash for FY'22 Beginning Cash ¥ Increase in Cash

141.46 == 1338.92
1480.38 crores

We can clearly see how the cashflow is increasing at a very rapid pace. This won't be the casein
real. We will have outgo for investment assets and as a result, only adequate amount of cash will

be maintained.

We would now link this ending cash to the cash and cash equivalents line item on the balance
sheet, which should automatically tally the balance sheet.

Now, lets see if the balance sheet matches or not.



Analyzing and Matching the
Balance Sheet

We finally reach the part where we will conclude the forecasting phase of financial modelling. We
have leamt to enter past data, analyse it and forecast using the same for:

27

Balance Sheet
Labilties FAzzets

@/ Income Statement

@/ Balance Sheet

@’ Cash Flow Statements

Betore we move on to valuations, we reed
to make sure that both sides of the balance
sheet are matching e, equity + liabiities is
equal to all assets owned 153 the comapEny,

45 Long-Tem Dedt e BB THECH S S TATYS  TATTE ATTE TATIS LIS . 14775 TATTE  TATTS
au_DOeferred Ten Liabites (et} EEd 850 850 69 E.5D B.60 B.66 850
4 Other Long-Termn Liabilties 54,07 54.07 54.07 54.07 54.07 54.07 5407 54.07
an_Long-Tem Praviiors i = £ : : : : -
Al Cither flems

51 Tofal Nen-Current Liabilities BI0ET E1b.5 EI051 Bil.51 B10.51 BiG5 BI04 a10.51
1 Total Liabilities PENEN 456611 ATARAD 494347 A14TEA 53T 662722 BEOT14 618447

24.08 00 24.09 24.08 2408 2405 2400
812583 TE4EE]  BR5EE #1,018.30 12636 80 1500033 17 285.52
§1487]  Teiogs 928100 1104338 1298089 18033407 20940

s Minarity Inerest 334 3.3 334 36 34 36 34 B3 3534
i TotelBaquity a3 . 481408 ! BiB60E  TIOVOE G317 107673 1204723 1506076 1733575
2t Total Liabilties And Equity [ETR TR P PR ERTN o 38050 1083286 1285071 iA4BAE3  BASTS1  IB62445 20GEAED 2351912

"

.. - m_ “lnna-mnSLabQ;mmt hrq-m:tshn-l CPS \Mu.-ﬁun}“
Rty I X Arraiziiy; ey aie
|
|
i e oA : A=
. Just beiow the totel fiabiities
: TOW We wil create a rew row
‘ and calculate the different
This figure is insignificant given the size of the entire be‘maﬁ *‘3‘}'51 assets ard
balance sheet, and can be attributable to rounding Jfﬁﬂﬁ* *%ﬁtﬁ‘& CASil4, e Cén
error. Hence, we can consider our balance sheet as see ‘ﬂ’l&'} there lc‘.‘:an Eq\-k&i

matched! If we find significant difference here, we
need to look into our model and see where we have dl%rﬁma of 438 CVOT@E; i'or

made an error. These two must match. al the &fﬁﬁﬁ’fﬁd 3@&%‘5.

al Medeling |

FiMmancic
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This confirms that we have not made any errorin linking the Excel sheet or skipped any line item.
Forecasts may be right or wrong, but matching of the balance sheet confirms that we have got
the technical part right.

Norte

(1 You do find a stark difference betueen the
balance sheet totals, then You should investigate
the error. 1+canbedu.e+oamror}3emr3

£ tlﬁqﬂ Pae.+ numbers, dc?'\ reversal, or You mﬂhf have

5mf>|3 n to add / subtract an &Em t can \:.E

%usira{*u-::j +nj to comrect an ermror, but invest

and mercamrﬂ t+ would make You @ 300:! analge.i and

is an imeortant part of analvje.ls.

cial Modelling | Cash Flow Staterment

A&
I 4

You may notice that cash and equivalents represent a big part of the balance sheet. \We need
to understand that we have not allocated cash into different items like short term advances,
investments, etc. Since we do not want to predict management’s decision making on these items,
our cash figure is a ‘total' figure, one that includes investments in other line items. Regardless of
the allocation of cash, the effect on the balance sheet would remain the same.

with this, we conclude our ?or&caaﬂnﬂ phase.
oo In the upcoming lessons, we will tak about,

{ The Concept of Valuation

Techniques of Valuation
x .
3 g
> l Methods of Arriving at a buy or sell
a decision on a company’s stock
N
N
we woud confinue with our examele on Britannia.
230
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Valuation
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Financial Modelling | wvaluat

Introduction

Now that we are thorough with forecasting financials for companies, let's get
started with the process of valuing the company based on the forecasts.
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Explainer Video

We now know how to forecast profit and loss items, cash flow statements, and balance sheet
iterns. We also learned how to match the balance sheet. We'll now talk about the process of
valuing a company. We had even discussed these earlier in Chapter 3.

(o )

Absolute

Valuation

Relative
Valuation

v

DCF Method

To find out the abaciute

valug of a business,

v
Using different ratios,
such as EV/EBITDA,
PE ratio, PEG ratio, etc.

To value a Cor\"\f:néﬂ\j
relative to = peers,

We have also in the past chapters explored the concept of compounding and discounting. Recall
that the time value of money states that the value of money changes over time. Here's a timeline

graphic to helps you recall the same:

'
L
¢
r

T 100

-

- , l i I i i - . I I’

110

FV of future cash flows = PV [ 1 + 1 |no ofyess

]
1 Timeline

T2
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We saw how 100 is more valuable than the same F100, one year from today.
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After forecasting cash flows for future years in the previous lesson, we would calculate the values
of those cash flows as of today. Recall the discounting formula:

l’ \l
- 1
: ]
| snmio CFO !
i Cash Flow Terminal Value = -
: ! r-gl
i : |
I : | | :
E Value CF, " CF, + CF, E
B TP TR T [1+r] !
»  Company : -
] 2 ]
" H '
' Discounted Rate :
: [WACC] :

PV of Future

Mo. of periods
Cashflow Future Value /[ 1+ Rate of return JNe-ofp

For example, suppose the rate of retun is 10% and the cashflows for the 5 year are as follows:

Present-50Cr; Year1-40Cr;Year2-100Cr; Year3-150Cr; Year4- 180 Cr

o0 2 3 “
| s0cr. 40Cr  100Cr  150Cr 180 Cr

+m (~~~c5.|:u"[1.1]1 BD,!’[T'I.T]? 100{{1.1]3 1?_1:1,'['1.1]4

i /

’
el 90.7 Cr R ’ |

!
’

sl 129.6 Cr [ ——— e )
7/

#

T 1481 Cr E o e —————— -

356:5,CF; (Present vame of cash flows)

[ p——

al Medelling | valuatio

Finardcl

# ZEBRA| EARN

P
Lrd

L



Medelling |

# ZEBRALLCARN

|
A

LA

[

You will notice a term called Terminal Value' The terminal value of a firmis nothing but the value
of its perpetual cash flows, after the last year of forecasting, assuming the company will cperate
forever Its formula is:

. Last forecasted cash flow (1 + Growth Rate
TerminalValue = —cccarcscsrinaroasmsnes (_‘_____________1

WACC - Growth Rate

Once we obtain the terminal value, we will discount it to the present. Adding the present value of
all cash flows plus the present value of the terminal value will give us the value of the company.

Value of a
company

= PV of expected cash flows + PV of Terminal Value

Next, we will see how to put this method into action calculating the different inputs required for
the same and the forecasts that we have, as per the model.



WACC

Explainer Video

Company A Manufacturing Process
: Selis
Saks = :
Cos‘r + Profit

. Aestrye
22t8

Customers

Large companies not only use their promoters' money, but also those of lenders and different
shareholders. However, using others' capital comes at a cost. Since different types of capital
have different costs, the total average cost of the entire capital used by a company is known as
its weighted average cost of capital (WACC). Recall its formula:

Cost of

Mot nf Ecniih e ot oF Mo bt aw Dato "
LOST 01 ,_[ll.:[.__n' LOsT OT Uebl |._.'}. rdieg i:‘[g.';1:J[E!dl= Stock

1 H H H

WACC = I:K"‘ ¥ % of Equity]+|: Ku « % of Debt (1-.T):|+ [I{p % of Preferred Stock]

i i . P i

Weighted cost of Weighted cost of Weit ,.'r'r'u t cost of

Equity Debt Preferred Stock
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Let's use this formula to calculate Britannia's WACC. The 2 main components of WACC are - the
cost of equity and cost of debt.

Cost of Equity

2 a ¢
- [ A0 Cost of Equity -
Company A \y Shareholders

S
The rate of return that the company i
e.xPecmd to delver to its shareholders

Recall the CAPM formula:

e e O e S LA x]

Cost Equity = Risk-free rate +{BE{Market return - Risk-free rate) |
e ST ——————
5 \
: 7 Market Premium
|3 Cov(r,r )
L Var(r )
Bi Market beta of asset i

Cov Covariance
Var Variance
Average expected rate of retumn on the market

Expected returmn on an asset |

'Beta' of a stock, is simply the volatility of a stock's price in relation to the general market index.
The higher the beta, the riskier a stock is considered. Usually, the beta of a company reduces

as it grows. Do not get intimidated by the formula here. You can directly look up for the B of any
company on different platforms.
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There are 2 ways to calculate it

Obtain it from various financial
information websites like ET,
Bloomberg, and Moneycontrol to
name a few.

Calculate \ Bloomberg

Calculate it using the formula. You
can use excel which comes with
these functions pre-built in it.

Sensitivity Ananlysis

hi 3hi sensitive
,r""ﬂ‘ “h‘.ﬂ
Expected CFs,
DCF Growth Rates and
Cost of Capital

DCF is an absolute valuation technique. Even a little variation in these assumptions can change
the final company value drastically.

It's very likely that our assumptions
would not be accurate.

A solution to this problem is sensitivity
analysis.

”/’_\ Helps us obtain ditferent values

for the company gven ditterent
ysSiS assumetions for the long teren-
growth rate and cost of capital

il Medeling |
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It's always better to allow for different scenarios and work with a range rather than an absclute
nurmber. Below, you can find a sensitivity analysis table for the intrinsic value of a company
given different assumptions for WACC and long-term growth rate:

Intrinsic Value LTGR Hypothetical numbers
359 0.50% 1% 1.5% 2% 2.5%
WACC
8% 521.7 556 5957 | 6419 | 696.6

9% 4347 | 4596 487.7 520 5571

10% 3671 385.6 406.4 429.7 456.1

1% 313.2 3274 343.1 360.5 799
12% 269.5 280.4 292.6 3059 320.7

Dikferent values of company
under different scenarios. We
wil see how sensitivity and
acenario analsia can be used
to find alternate vales for
the cornpany, This will be used
once we calcuate an em*er{aris.e.
value of the company.



for companies

The following is a screenshot of our Valuation sheet in the model. This is where we make
assumptions and keep an account of all calculations.

WACC

} = | 8 1 o I GE [ H 1 _J K L ™

1 :m’m_ o

- [

E!

4

g"jtnqu‘)‘mmn-n 0832

1' 'tcniuqu:i_:z T “_'_'_'_'_1 rﬁmm Sauhpeicipn| Rluk Froe rate  7.43%

i i market Returm 13.72%

B' I%amhalc'ﬁﬁt E'Iﬂa ! Massan Pramiars 36
ik TR Ssm 1 Waight o Equity  83.20%

11 ‘9!-9!& ! Waighl ofDebt.  J3.80%

o anT
SN

gl

BEHH O &S EI"-FE]_H
s I 1

= CALCHLATION OF FUEECASHFLOW

Equity e
Total Deibt oeErAr

2T Revenues '--—-—i“"——“—'
B S CIowihAememe " r T TC
23 EEMDA {1

L A iy

1. Teo Raie

X2 Ret Opsrafimg Profit Afisr Tames .

33 Operaiing Cash Flowr

¥ VeawioCheon)
Tl I:IFDIDl.Il'l Fapncd

10T LPGENIG LIEEHEID T4OE3 1000 1VR60.  LOT9EES 2 OO

i1

1al Modelne

|

Finary

1,551 08 1554 50 1BE 1 1EF3e0  5diEd B3 Ar 1 EEIGS 1EE6Ad

-ﬂ St P wrEaH
A1 Termirua|'Unk FLFB|1+kong evmgerchiate] M9 ACT - kongtsm atsl
a2 SAEES
43 Prews Uk wol Termne Lsie 20 2401
e Comparas BV Eliked 1]

Cost of Debt

Lets begin with calculating the WACC. The first important component of WACC is the cost of

debt. The formula:
obtained from income statement

Interest ExpenseJ

(Short term debt + long term debt]"\\!
obtained from Balance Sheet of that ear

Cost of Debt

|Coaf of Equiy K2}
Slock Bala
'Lnnnn‘]‘w Loal of DBt

‘n.oz=

Gash T

Wi :i.aﬁmtdrd;:tdmm_-dmmnm:m -

Hake sure to make this
number & positive one and
convert it fo percenta terme.
You can find the interest rates
for different kinds of debts in

;ﬁmm‘[mul&[ﬁnm _________'_'_'_'_'_'_'_' :
i s the notes section of the annual

. The effective cost of
debt for Britannia tums out to
ke 5.34%.
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Tax Rate

The next component in WACC is the tax rate. |t is calculated as:

Effective Tax _ _ Current Tax
Rate - Profit before Tax

You will find both line itermms in the income statement.

o T—— Junas Since fax is an mﬂiﬁ‘q
E |Coaf of Equity =) . iii.7eFO0% Rizk i X c r
? sma:’&lxl'l_‘ B e ?—m’e—%?-fl to represent it
@ T ity 1 ﬂ’ejaﬂ\ﬂ?- numser and
T j RN ‘Wisighd of Dieid -

E = am conveﬁ it to percenta

= i it terms in 30‘4‘" sheet, Here,
——— Britannids efectve fa
= I waE rate is 33.9%,

Beta

Let's now find the beta of Britannia, an input for finding its cost of equity, which in turn, is a
component of WACC.

gl Britaress inchsvries jid o o | = Bnignw Atruisl Boona 311 W ™ Peitarni Lhaie Broe Sodug [ o w = a X
& = #  evonamichinds Fdiat et comvbritannls indurtras-S8disockviromganyd. 13334 rma o - o » 0O .{p‘ 3
OVERVIEW MEWS AMALVEE BECOS  FIMANCIALS FORECAST TECHWSCALS DEERS SHAMMOLDINGS MF  FRO CORPACTIONS  ABOUT  (ngo. . S8eIE-ET 200
Britannia Share Price VIEW AL ey Mietrics Britpnnis
Inslghts l}ull-_ a
EIE Raist (x| EPS - T |8 e
0 Intraday fact check -~ eo2s &35 Y By

P the last 17 years, only 152 %

trading Lassinns Saw irtraday eCap R o) Sectdrl MIao Aonk

gains higher than 5% 9153822 # . The beta of a stock can
© rolomumniingiws @ b oo Sbe obtained from fnancial
() Employes & Intesest Expense  + v i) = m; in%m{'bﬂ websaites,
® swanwmswmyioo  + ——1 = Britannia's beta on the

wee g% . Beonomic Times website s
disf:&a\jed as .64,

ET Stock Screeners Check whether Britanniz belongs to an;
et i S e

Watng (o s irdbetimss oo

We now need the rest of the inputs like the risk free rate and market premium to calculate at the
cost of equity.
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Risk Free Rate kGt Vidd

In calculating the cost of equity, we need the risk free rate. The risk free rate is the rate at which
one can grow their capital without any risk.

sl elinnnin Maehimirien Lo fmaririsl - 30| 3 Orianeis Aeri Bepart 20T - M @ ewerer fack ot g BO0E D W
- o 8 thiorgin/Senpta/ B NSDRTismlay acyn paraim=d 1
" 0 - 34

Featioey:
Cosh Regorvo Ratio A.00 LR A5
SRHlery Lapily Ralia 1B THI oo T we’ L"‘SE- fhe. 4 ar
Cirnh-Dlgrcn] e 452 543
Corveck|-Dhasprenid. Rishicy TIE 5
Inzramentn! Crodi-Deposk Ralio # 024 =Ty : govefnmﬁ‘.n‘f '{:D \:‘af'e
Irrensiment.Dapost Ra = iR 3 i 5
Il itwasdiisd-Dejiasi Ralic B FLgt] "

e as the risk free rate,
Pobiy Repo Ratie 400 440 4.5 o
Fiund Risveran Fiepo Fisln 135 a3 s HS O‘? \]
Standing Deposk Facidty (50F) Rals* H [RE] A48 ul 4 qu
Wisrginal Stanching Facdty (MSF) Rak 425 LE 51 d
Bk, e 425 s s -l-h +e :
Base Rate TR T2 720 E ra [5 :}.Lﬂ%'
WIZLR [Chvemght) B.557 00 [ R
Term Dispost Sabe =1 Year o BV G L0675 E00ET
Savings Dewel Ras PR 2000 FTAL
Call My Rades [Wenighlesd Avemgel i3 o 43
81 Thay Treamony Bl {Proacy | Yiskd dad ahs 5% T i
142Dy Treasury Bl {Primary) Yield 412 6.5z 583 571 5.7 578
fid-Cray Treasury Bil w08 (i} aar 0.8 (i) 25
Vet (- P Yieid (7 B Bl TA42 Tah 54 748

LSS Spol Rate (1 Per Foreian Curenoy) T 60 T mm =] Hce
1F-Euro Spot Fate 7 Per Foregn Currency) L] 45 B2 % W L= B2
Formard Prenma of LSS 1-=on® 401 154 M 1 21 309

Lminnth 4.0 s A 1o 28 208

Bemanth 4.21 REx) 342 Ears 288 LB
“ta pirt Pross Reloase Mo, Z022-207041 dated Al 08, 2022
§3 Firaniial Benchimanks incis Private Limnidses (FEL | Pas ke oy bom RRL e eonisinion sl disssimnaglon of sslercons g fo sl

Market Premium

The market premium is the addition return generated from the general market index, above the
risk free rate

| Market Premium = Market Return - Risk Free Rate |

‘l Britmnin deriries Lict dnaraiel - 30 | ZE Oritaoniy dorunl Beport 027 W @ WO - Nimional Gecek lrmmngs - M i CACE Caloslutne, Calndse ooy M -+ w — -
S @ 8§ xicidiect comycakiitsoricagreaiculsnr = B 0 # i
v Errarw Gt : EE— I S

fnvestmenes #f Your Fingertips

-
i 0y, 2003 D44 P
vt ¢ & AR Colgi

CAGR Coleulator (Compound Annual Grawth Re P‘!‘ddll‘E a dlvderd Ej'-'?-id O‘F

“41% wR can estimate the
market retum as 13,629,
Initial Value 484l n Marke + f:'f'e.l"r"rli-tm = 43.6.2%
Final Valus Costs 15752 u - W42% = ~6.3%. He_ncei
Duration of investmant 10 we have established the

T PRk s 6.

The average retum by SENSEX or NIFTY over the past 10 years would be an ideal measure for
general market returns. Nifty was at 4,841 10 years ago and is now at 15,752 A CAGR calculator
would help us obtain Nifty's 10-year CAGR as 12.52%.

ancial Modelling | valuation of a comparny
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We'll finally be estimating Britannia's final WACC in this module.

Cost of Equity
Recall the CAPM formula:
£ i
i Cost Equity = Risk-free rate + B (Market return - Risk-free rate)
L s Sl 4

For Britannia, this is:

Weights of Equity and Debt

4

B L ABILIT I S & BT Y
3H

ar %1}1:&{[‘5j..’. fpan bl el = o 1 535' 1‘552?
ﬂ Shart-Term Borrowings TR0 AT ) §1,335.42 ] 1 -

=3 | Uther Current Liahilitiec 364 47 : Ak -

40 | Short-Term Provisions 196,51 a7 47 JE7 4 o

76.08 76.L

&
(]
B
=
[1¢]
=
=
g
{ oy
[x}]
=
=
[3-]
(45}

Govemmnat Grant
Total Curmrent Liabilities

Total debt is found
to be the sum of
short-term and long-

term debt, 208747
N

Long-Term Provisions \—":r orores,

Other items - : = =

Other tems - - - -
Total Non-Current Liabilities
Todal Liabilities

LnnE-Term Dbt
Deferred Tax Liabilities (MNet)
Other Long-Term Liahilities

Shareholder'S Equity: : - =+—_;='_— J T
Share Capital otal ,g_qu" in
oo I S~ i kel
%E:EL::M is 3584 crores, obtained
Total Llabilities And Equity ; , from shareholders
.......................................................................................................... ' g_quﬁ-t’ line 1+el"ﬁ in +hi?‘_
Dashboard || Company O N \l|_| Income St balance sheet,

RS = R R LA R B R R i i e e

Ready {33 Accessibility: Investigate

By this, we can conclude the weight of equity to be 63.2% and debt to be 36.8% of the total
capital. We now have all components required to calculate the WACC for Britannia.

Weight of Debt = 2087.17 / (2087+3584)
Weight of Equity = 3584 [/ (2087+3584)



Recall its formula:

' ' vy
| i | |
WACC = [Ke » % of Equity :| + [ I(D « % of Debt » (1 T] ]+ [ kﬂ % of Preferred Stuck]

i H i H i
..... L . R | :
'

By this formula, the WACC for Britannia is 9.39%. Hence, we would be using this as our input.
Here is the completed table for WACC and its components:

'L A X B C L o . E
- Britannia Ltd.
Y psunpions |
3
.
S Long Term Growth Rate 0.038
B
7 |Cost of Equity (Ke) i11.7T6700% Rizsk Free rate 7T.42%
8 Stock Beta 0.6% market Return  13.72%
3 |Long Term Cost of Debt 5.31% Market Premiur 6.30%
0 [ Tax Hate i) 33 50% Weight of Equity 63.20%
T m{:ﬂ 8.35% Weight of Debt  36.B0%
2 | Equity 3584
13 iNun'ber of Shares Ouistanding 124.07 Total Debt 208717
M | Current market Price 3315
15 | Market Capitalisation 51827.05
16 |Debt 208717
17 |Cash TERMLER ..o
18 | Minority Interest k34
13 Enterprise Value 92 345
b

Let's also fill in the rest of the cells, i.e. number of shares cutstanding, current market price, and
market capitalization. Remember that the market capitalization of a company is the current
market price multiplied by the number of shares cutstanding.

In the next section, we will calculate an estimated enterprise
value for the company.
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Enterprise
- Value

| _lrz'_; A
[m]gfesret

Explainer Vide

We are now set to calculate the enterprise value. Here's a quick summary of the inputs:

il Medelling |

F12 - I
E , | Britannia L. | J | l J
H
h 5 Lamg Term Growt B »138 + Debt: Already linked to our balance
T RS |, " e e | sheet as 2087 17 crores
e g, s Neaneiiom sos |+ Cash: Here, cash is a total of current
- E————— _ o o s | investments, module cash and bank
;r-:ﬁ_ﬁ_irif_'rr_i_ﬂ_néffrt_'f_'_':_'_'f":::_'::: ﬁ%;%’.’.’.‘.‘.’.’.‘.‘.’.‘ i balance. Using the SUM formula, we
PR ELIL s ., obtainit as 1604.59 crores.
e a— = Minority interest: \We find it to be 36.34
%3 | crores as linked from the balance sheet.
[P S S —— “
Britannia's enterprise value will be calculated Market capitalization
as per the current market prices:
+ Total Debt
+ Minority Interest
- Cash
. Enterprise Value ,
., o~
Enterprise Value = 91827.05 + 2087.17 + 36.34% - 1604.59
- 92,346 crores
12 ?
13 |Humber of Shares O standing 3407 i
e e b 3y can refer to the sheet
6 | Debt 208717
s el dbove where we have
18 {Minorty interest 3634 filed out these detais.
=z 13 |Enterprise Valus gz 348
>,
- In the next section, we will calculate Britannia's enterprise
g value using the discounted cash flows method.
m
H ;‘- """""""" -‘E
= [ i i
N DCF EV < Current EV, The company is overvalued
S DCF EV < Current EV, The company i undervalued,




using DCF ;;";f

We will now calculate the company's value using the DCF method and compare the 2 values.

FCF

Look at the formula below.

FCF = Operating Cash Flows - Capital Expenditures

- we obtain the

/\) operating cash flow

from cash 4§ ow
statements,

oparating Activitias

we obtain capital imesting Activifies

expenditures from e
cash 4 ow from e e
inu&aﬁqﬁ activities e,

FCF = CFO - CFI

Discounting FCF

Future free cash flows need to be discounted to the present.

Let's add a row where we would add the number of years to be discounted. Below that, we'll add a
row to calculate the discount factor. You can see this in the next page. It is calculated as:

Discounting Factor = (1 + WACC)years to discount

1 We will not enter the years to discount in each formula manually. Instead,
we will link it to a row above, which already has the number of years, each
cashflow has to be discounted for.

il Medeling |
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2 Next, we would add a 'present value' row.

FCF (Free Cash Flow)

Present Value - — :
Discounting Factor

PV for Free Cash 1697 155106

Flow FY'22 ;193919 .

| b B c &) E F 5] H
a
24 CALCULATION OF FREE CASH FLOW
2%
A Particulars
22 % Growih Revenue

i e T SR, LA
wes’r_____ 0000 00004
31 Tak Rate | 34 61%| 24 455 Fi

32 Met Operating Profit After Taxes ] 1,161 | 1,398 | | ] | 15 | 333 |
13 Operating Cash Flow 1,156 L 1485 L 1,851 | 1,905 | 2,907 | 2,285 | 2,485 |
34 Caper 1856) (1,532 461 | 20a) 2 (262 (2aa)
a5 FCF 304 | 147 2312 1.697 1,866 2,023 2,205
3G ¥ears to Discount
AT  DHsaodant Facrar
| P

: 2554 | 77| 304|370
L 275 563|323 3,597
A = L1 =1 368) (400]]
L 2415|263 2872 8137

g

i
1,504

EL

A0 Fum ol P [ ] 12,334 41 I

AT Termimal Nale 1 + IBNg Tarm gromah rare) | [WALT - Mong e rars)

an 1 Ea Ane
3 '

Finally, we would sum up the present values of future years. We find Britannia's
forecasted cash flows to be 12334.41 crores. We now need to calculate and
add the present value of the terminal value to arrive at the valuation for the
company.

Terminal Value

You might have noticed that we have projected free cash flows for just 8 years. But what about
the company's cash flows after that? Assuming that a company wouldn't wind up after 8 years,
we would also have to project a value, sormething that reflects its free cash flows indefinitely in the
future. The value that we saw is the terminal value. Terminal value is calculated as:

s CF,x[1+g]
[r-gl [r-g]

“h-—_h--—-ﬂ—hﬁ-—hﬁ&ﬂhh—-hﬁ——-—ﬂ
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The long-term 3row+h rate reflects the rate
Q at which the compEany (Y Expec’red to grow
‘ indEﬁnH-E’.I\j assuming it never shuts down.

Usually, the global economy growth rate or country's GDP growth rate can be used as the long-
term growth rate.

.i fefanni batfres LB f0 36 | 35F Radenmis Srual Repory X O NEE - hatiora] Sioee fnr X wee World fonmees i Dubines X © KNS - Matloval Soci i X + hd o -
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PR RUBLICHTIONS. January 25, 2022

mm:ﬁmb\il roath S eNpectnd 1o modoraie froem 5.9 in 2021 o 4.4
parcant in 2027 < half 3 parcentage pomt lowesr for- 2022 than in the October
Wordd Coanmmic Dutiock (WED, largely reflecting (orecast markdenwns i the
rwe Iegest cconamies, A revised assamplion removing the Bulid Back Batier
hiscal poticy package lroim the basslne, eatller withdreaval of monatary
accommodaticn, and continued supnly shorages produced o doservand 1.7
WO RL D percentage-points reviskon for the United States. In China. pasdemic -induced

ECON OM IC disruptions related to the zero - 1olerance COVIN-19 policy and protracted

financial slress among propeiy developers have mduced 3 008 peroentage
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I
2021 ;

World Emmnic{#ltluuk. October 2021 Recowery During & Pandemsc
!
Dchber 13, 2024

Dascription: This reoort shows that the global aconomic recovery continues
armicl & rﬂiur\'.pnr#'.mnd:—:‘!‘r thal poses unigue peticy challsnges and requines
strong multdatargl edfort

]

WOl EXrE b

I
s EMML NOTIRICATION SIGN-UP Workd Ecanomic Qutlook Update, July 2028: Fault Lines Widen in the Global Recovery

S U L e (ree s Tl AODees wE e

Juby 27, 202
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]
1
'
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January 25. 2022

Description: Global growth is expected to moderate from 5.9 in 2021 to 4.4
percent in 2022 —half a percentage point lower for 2022 than in the October
World Economic Outlook (WEOQ), largely reflecting forecast markdowns in the
two largest econcmies. A revised assumption removing the Build Back Bettar
fiscal policy package from the baseline, earlier withdrawal of monetary
accommodation, and continued supply shortages produced a downward 1 2
perceniage-paints revision for the United States. In China. pandemic-induced
disruptions related to the zero olerance COVID-19 policy and protracted
financial stress armong property developers have induced a 0.8 percentage -

point downgrade.hlohal growth is expectad to slow to 3.8 percent in 2023 : : i
l N Since Britannia is a

S 30‘:;&4 c:anr\r'\l::.an‘kji we
would use the MFs
§oLal GDP growth rate,
Well use a conservative
2.8% in this case,

=
2
3]
]
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In our example above, we have used a conservative
growth rate of 3.8%. The enterprise value is very
sensitive to WACC and growth rate assumptions.
If we would have used a growth rate of 8%, our
enterprise value would have been 131,024 crores;
drastically different from our previous answer.
Our view would have changed from overvalued
to undervalued. The same concept applies to the
WACC rate and Britannia's CMP.

27

P R THE 1

L . e e
d 5 ] i G

TS

1,55520 15451 155360 154183 15 15%22S 152964

our pﬂivicualg calculated Ev
1S 92346 crores, whie the

Ev usiqﬂ the DCF dpproach
IS 40,38 crores, Hence, we

Can conclude that Britannia

s eﬁ&m&lg overvalued as
of the dalj we prepared

this model,

We can sensitivity analysis and scenario analysis to allow for different outcomes.

Disclaimer: Our analysis has been very primary and for educational purposes. We still do not
understand the company. Do not act on this. Also, to keep it for educational purposes, our
annual inputs are as of March 2021, but market cap is as of June 2022. In reality, we will use

same timeline for both.




Remember this!

Here are a few things to keep in mind
while using the DCF approach:

» Do not fuss too much about the exact entererise
value. The idea is to be as close to reai’rj as,
Poaaiblre.

« B SEHSIHVH’\j anaﬁsa with different WACC and ﬁrom#h
rate assumetions would be useful,

» Practice is the ke\j to undera’fandirﬂ valuations and
bu’ﬁd’nn3 Sood financial models, The more you practice,
the beter You 39.1‘.

+ You can also check out Ashwath Damodaran's
YouTube channel for more 'm&'\jh’fs on valing a
ComPan\:}. You should also consider his books to
understand valation better.

With this, we wrap up our
discussion on the discounting
cash flows method. Feel free to
reach out to Zebra's community
for any help or advice on
valuations!
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Introduction

Now that you are well versed with the discounting cash flow method of valuing
companies, let's leam another useful method- relative valuation. We have already
understood earlier what relative valuation is and how it is different from absclute
valuation.

e

tive Valuation

il Modeling | Rel

Finarcia
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Valuation

Or peer companies.

Relative

Relative

Valuation

Trading comparables are
those sets of peer companies
which are listed and we can
get the current value at which
they trade currently.

72N

I'TC Limited

conm dto

a8

This method is most useful for
finding the fair value of a listed

4

company, compared to companies

within the same sector.

Transaction
Comparables

Transaction comparables is
a method used to compare
the share prices/assets of
a company to valuations at
which recent deals have taken
place in the same sector. 3

5

SWIGGY
ComeEare
e e

v
] x

valuation =2en
Uber Eats

n recent
bilinkit
b o

M&Rs or other

tranaactions,
They measure the valuation at
which recent transactions of
similar companies have taken

place in the industry. J
s a popular method for vakin

unfisted companies, METeRrS an\g
acquisitions, startups, 1'POs, eta




Practicing Relative Valuation

The key to a good relative valuation analysis is identifying the right set of comparables.

sy .

Company A Compaﬁy E

(Peer Compan

peedess to sy, its very rare
to £ind & peer Ccompany thats
an exact match,

-

Fal But the point here is, dhatthe
"""""') ¢ more simiar the eeers, the more
“* SENSE A comf;,aﬂsan will make,

Company A Company B

(Daar e Sy

| e, T L !

Try finding peer companies that are as close to the
company we are evaluating as possible.

Since finding an exact peer company is a subjective exercise, making comparisons with a set of
peers would yield better results. We use the mean or median values of multiple companies to
determine an 'average multiple, which can then be used for relative comparison.

Hypothetically,

u pare it saks,
E*EﬂTDH and profits

mﬁ'n the mean or median
of pREr Comparies

Hur tay P .:3

DOBDLA DATRY

PARAG

Price/Earnings = 20 Average Price/Earnings = 16
| |

Parag is doing relatively
expensive than its peers

v

We can even find reasons why Parag Milk maybe more
expensive than others or may simply be over-valued.

falgl

Modeling | Relativevaluati
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Locking at the column with Price/Eamings and Price/Sales, we get a sense of the company's
valuation. We can see why a company is expensive and why one is not.

This is how we use trading comparables to arrive at a relative valuation for a company. You should
give it a try with a company of your choice.

Nofe

Remember that this kind of valuation ia
based on the erinciple of comparison, and
Q not on Esﬁmaﬂnj the exact value of a
‘ compana of its assets, we are &'U.5+ usha its
peers fo conclude whether our compeany =8
valued rG_laﬂueH h'aher or lower.

Next, we will talk about understanding market consensus.

[{felg
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102 CoOnsensus

s

il Medeling | RelativeVvaluati

r..*" Y
T ; Yes, | think it T':,
c Yes, | think od com
i s0 tool ¥ Py
Analyst1 Market
| Participant I
o®.
[
o —
==
.u:\\/‘i_g 50
W —0
Opinion about a company's
operations and future

i R O
N
il In the context of financial mod”llmﬁ or lf,f]ul’fu, research,
& consensus means difterent analgsﬁa. or market
~ particicants aﬁreem on an opinion about a compangs
N operations and future.

]
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In the following image from the financial model, you can notice that we have plotted the different
financial line item estimates from different Indian brokers/research analysts for 2 companies.
Locking at it, one can realize that the sales, EBITDA, and PAT estimates of different brokers are
guite close to each other, representing the market consensus.

0 0] ] o LA P LD R

Z AN AB  AC AD AE AF 4
Sales FY 2022 FY 2023 Sales FY 2022 FY 2023
hdfc securities 14,245 15 563 Rudra Share 725.18
Maotital Dswal 13,970 15,300 Hdfc Eecurities 6723 TR0
IARi Capital 13, RAR 15,740
Ayis Eecurities 13,081 15,240
Median 13.976 15,406 Medizn a8 FEE]
EBITDA FY 2012 FY 2023 EBITDA FY 2021 FY 2023
hdfc secarities 2,608 2847 Rudra Share 10074
Matifal Dswal 3,370 2760 Hdfc Securities BT an
Idbi Capital 2317 2753
Axis Securities 2203 2577
Median 2305 2.757 Median 92 £l
PAT FY 2012 FY 1023 PAT F¥ 2021 FY 2023
hdft securities 1974 2161 Rudra Share pO5
Matilal Dswal 1.600 2,000 Hdft Securities 504 R4
Idb Capital LE15 1957
Ayis Securities 1682 1313
Wedian 1643 1,378 Wedian 35 58

The idea here is to identify the forecasts different analysts and brokers have shared (including
sales, PAT, target prices, multiples, etc.) and try to understand the rationale behind those numbers.
We can then check how far or close are we to such consensus and do we have reasons for our
differences. We don't need to be near the consensus but we shall have reason for our differences.

An obvious question that would come to your mind is -
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You can just Google this - ‘company name’ broker reports pdf.
Here is what an HDFC Securities report on Parag Milk looks like:
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= g s INA Such reports
e L Casily. ¥ You are unabie to

T £ind your desired company
feports even after hours, n
e of scroling, it would make
sense to Googe other peer
COMFBHEE.

\ often €ind broker reports on Trend
D (h++95ﬂ+rendhjne.ccm!re5eamh-mgoﬁafalf)

H ; @’ Assumetion !
@’ Forecast | { |

ol !I |I Detailed Report Spent time
1 analysing
J *". - | Hence, referring to their reports to get estimates
Experienced and forecasts often uelds jood resufts, it explains
Research Analyst us where the market iz at and do we agree with
them or we have different expectations.
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1 | {
2 Britannia Industries Lid.
3
4 Sales FY 2022 FyY 2023 . .
5 | Thefcsecunities 14,245 15553 Here is ‘I'lhE COMP&HSDH
6 Motilal O=wal 13,270 15,990
7| idoicapital 13,248 15,246 ot sales, EBIT EJP! .;3;"‘.{:‘1J
2 Aot Securities 13,881 15 249
9 PAT forecasts from
10 Madian 13,976 15 406
11 difkerent analtjs;.’ra for
12|  eermoa FY 2002 F¥ 2023 . . !
13 | Thomcecuntes 7508 CTT] Britannia \ﬁdU.S"T'-ES- Look
14 Motilal Oswal 2,770 2750
15 |  idniCapital 1317 2753 hou.r ‘H'\etj ‘I'OSEH'\ET' 'FOT!'\“:
16 |  dssecurities 2793 2577
17 A market consensus,
18 | Wedin 2305 2751
19
20 PAT FY 1021 FY 2023
21| Thefceecurities 1.974 2151
22 | Motilal Oswal 1,500 2,000
23 Idbi Capital L1615 1957
29 Anis Securities 1,682 1913
25
26 Wedizn 1,549 1978

That being said, it is important to realize that other analysts also have as much information as
you. You have to just use their estimates as a reference and try to understand their rationale.
You don't need to change your assumptions to match their numbers. This is how you should use
CoNsensus- just as a reference.

This brings us close to the end of our financial modelling book. So far, we have covered,

. comFa

analusis,

+ lkamed how to hardcode raw data,

+ pormalize it

+ how to forecast,

« and how to value businesses us{mj difterent methods like
DCF and relative valuation.

From knowing nothing about financial modelling to now being equipped with what it needs to
build one yourself, you have come a long way. Rermember, the crux of financial modelling is to

try and reflect reality as much as possible.

# ZEBRA| EARN

261



L LR UL LA AL AR LR R LR AR AR LR LER AR AR LR RN L RRRA T

LR L R R PR LR R LR R AR LA LR R AR LR RN A LR LR RN RN AR C LR AR LR ER AR ERAR AR LRV LERNARY




L AR RN RN R LR R AN AR LR AR LR R RN R AR RN R RN R ER RN R LR RN LR LR R LR AR

From knowing nothing about financial modelling to having
all the skills to build full-fledged models, we have come a
long way.

Before we let you go, we would like to leave you with a set
of actionable tips, that will help you hone your financial
modelling skills:
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Get started and Practice!

The key to getting ahead is getting started. We suggest
you aim to build at least 5 models in the coming 3
months, starting from scratch, all by yourself. It would be
even better if you build models on companies belonging
to different industries - retail, FMCG, technology, metals,
etc. The more you practice, the better you will get. It

may be a little challenging at first, but your confidence e
will improve with each new model you prepare. Without
practice, all the reading so far will be of no value.
° of .
. ‘
- ]
L] = = i
v : Remember to be realistic :
. :
. q
E The most critical part of your model are the assumptions E
. you make. We insist - keep your assumptions as realistic ]
- as possible. ‘
. ‘
O " :
L ] ‘--! .i.'-ii--i-ii"i'i--'l-i-l'-."II--‘C-‘-‘--i.'i‘.-.-.‘-‘i‘i.'i‘iiii-'-:

Focus on the underlying business

The crux of financial modelling is to be able to estimate the
future of a business. Developing an understanding of the
business and its industry dynamics is crucial. These are not
numbers in thin air but have a business behind it.




Create your portfolio, start working

The best way to leamn is by doing Create your portfolio of
financial models. You can use the portfolio feature of Zebra
Learntopostand discuss your projects with peers. Once you are
confident of your skills, you can start applying to interships and
jobs requiring financial modelling. This portfolio of models will
act as a work sample if you are looking to apply.

Be resilient

Trying to perfect a skill like financial medelling is not a
smooth ride But what good has come from being in
your comfort zone? There will be challenges. Maybe you
would not know how to forecast particular line item, or
you may find it difficult to understand a business. But i
you try hard encugh te find the solution, you will find it
Consistency and hard work will be required but at the end
you will learn this core finance skill.
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Disclaimer

While every effort has been made to avoid any mistake or
omission, this publication is being sold on the condition
and understanding that ZebraLearn Pvt. Ltd. would not be
liable in anymanner, toany person, by reason of any mistake
or omission in this publication or for any action taken or
committed to be taken or advice rendered or accepted on
the basis of this work. For any defect in printing or binding
the publishers will be liable only to replace the defective
copywithanother copyofthisworkthenavailable.Thisbook
is intended for educational purposes only. The discussions
and interpretations presented in this book should not be
used to draw any conclusions or any financial decisions.
An example of a real company is used in this book solely
for educational purposes and should not be taken as an
indication of the value or potential of that company. The
reader should conduct their own primary analysis before
making any financial decisions. ZebraLearn Pvt. Ltd. is
not responsible for any decisions or actions that are taken
as a result of reading this book. The assumptions and
examples presented in this book are hypothetical in nature
and are not intended as a conclusion or recommendation.
Therefore, readers should conduct their own analysis and
form their own opinions.
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